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ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT ON COMPILATION OF UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To
The Board of Directors
Tata Communications Limited

On the basis of the accounting records and other information and explanations provided to qs by
the management, we have compiled the balance sheet of STT Tai Seng Pte Ltd. ("the associatz”)

registered in Shanghai The Republic of China as at 31 March 2017 and the related statement of
profit and loss for the year then ended, attachad herewith,

The management of the associate is responsible for;

a) Completeness and accuracy of the underlying data and complete disclosure of all material
and relevant information to the accountant;

b) Maintaining adequate accounting and other records and internal controls and selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies:

) Preparation and presentation of financial statements in accordance with the applicable iaws

and regulations, if any;

d) Establishing controls to safeguard the assets of the entity and preventing and detecting frauds
or other irregularities;

e) Establishing controls for ensuring that the activities of the entity are carried out in acpordance
with the applicable laws and regulations and preventing and detecting any non-compliance.

The compilation engagement was carried out by us in accordance with the Standards on Related

Services Engagements (ISRS 4410) “Engagements to Compile Financial Information”, issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

This balance sheet and statement of profit and loss has been compiled by us for the purpose of

preparation of statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, based on trial
balance and other information provided by the management.

1. STT Tai Seng Pte Ltd



The balance sheet and the statement of profit and loss are in agreement with the books of

account. We have not audited or reviewed these financial statements and accordingly express no
opinion thereon.

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 121750W / W-100010
v
o
e
(Vinodkumar Varma)
PARTNER
Membership No. 105545

Place Mumbai
Date: 03 May 2017
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STT Tai Seng Pte Ltd

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

P Chiabis Note As at 31 March 2017
No. SGD INR*
(A) |ASSETS
(1) [Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1 55,252,760 2,566,534,905
Capital work-in-progress 18,033 837,647
Goodwill 159,116,535 7.391,090,344
Other intangible assets 2 - 7
214,387,328 9,958,462,896
{2} |Current assets
Financial assets
{1) Trade receivables 3 15,926,937 739,818,965
(ii) Cash and cash equivalent 4 4,013,374 186,424,433
Other current asscts 5 2,256,169 104,800,855
22,196,480 1,031,044,253
TOTAL ASSETS 236,583,808 10,989,507,149
{B) |[EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) |Equity
Equity share capital 6 181,652,881 8,437,921,645
Other equity 7 508,604 23,625,062
Total Equity 182,161,485 8,461,5346,707
(2) [Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
{i} Borrowings 3 40,000,000 1.858.032,600
{11) Other linancial liabilities 9 151,745 7,048.677
Provisions 10 3.806,386 176,809,675
Other non current labilities (Deterred revenue) 176,501 8,198.613
44,134,632 2,050,088,965
(3) |Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 11 5.000,000 232,254,000
(i1} Trade payables 12 4,121,259 191,435,778
(i) Other financial liabilitics 13 131,246 6,096,482
Other current liabilitics 14 1,023,018 47,520,004
Provisions 15 12,168 563,213
10,287,691 477,871,477
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 236,583,808 10,989,507,149

*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 SGD = INR 46.45
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STT Tai Seng Pte Ltd

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCIH 2017

. Note Current year 2016-17
Particulars N SGD INR™
i |Revenue from telecommunications services 16 5,800,758 269,449,850
i |Other Income 17 148,794 6,911,600
i |Total income (i + ii) 5,949,552 276,361,450
v {Expenses: .
(1) Network and transmission expenses 18 1,999,905 92,897,187
(i) Employee benefits expenses 19 181,382 8.425,339
(1ii) Operating and other expenses 20 2,145,129 99,642,959
{1v) Finance costs 21 285,499 l3.26 1 ,657
{v) Depreciation and amortisation expenses ' 829,033 38,509,246
Total expenses 5,440,948 252,736,388
v |Profit before taxes (iii - iv) 508,604 23,625,062
Vi {Tax expenses
(1) Current tax expense/{beneht) B )
(i1} Deferred tax expense/(benefir) i -
Net tax expenses = 5
vii | Profit/ (loss) for the year (v-vi) 508,604 23,625,062

*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 SGD = INR 46.45
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STT Tai Seng Pte Ltd

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

1 Property, plant and equipment
Parfis] As at 31 March 2017
articulars SCD INR
Gross block:
Lease hold improvement 44,721,891 2,077,367,614
P'lant and machinery 30,894,672 1,435,082,230
Furniture and fixtures 13,280 616,867
Computers 310,860 14,439,696
Office equipment 802,502 37,276,860
{a) 76,743,205 3,564,783,267
Accumulated depreciation;:
Lease hold improvement 12,243,133 568,703,322
Plant and machinery 8,635,438 401,123,932
Furniture and fixtures 3,739 174,609
Computers 303,826 14,112,961
Office equipment 304,269 14,133,538
(b) 21,490,445 998,248,362
Net block (a) - (b) 35,252,760 2,366,534,903
2 Other intangible assets
- As at 31 March 2017
art
articulars SGD INR
Gross block:
Computer software 5,212 242,102
(a) 5,212 242,102
Accdmulated amortisation:
Computer software 5212 242,102
{b) 5,212 242,102
Net block (a) - (b) - o
3 Trade receivables
— As at 31 March 2017
articulars SGD INR
Trade receivables 15,929,719 739,948,191
Provision for doubttul debts (2,782) (129,226)
Total 15,926,937 739,818,965

1. STT Tai Seng Pte Ltd




STT Tai Seng Pte Ltd

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

4 Cash and cash equivalents
— As at 31 March 2017
t g « o
articulars SGD iNR
Balance with bank ! 4,013,374 186,424,433
Total 4,013,374 186.424.433
5 Current assets - other assets
—— As at 31 March 2017
t ars
articutars SGD INR,
Prepaid expenses 2,256,169 104,800,855
Total 2,256.169 104,800,835
[ Equity share capitai
P 1 As at 31 March 2017
articulars =
irbiculars SGD IJNR
Equity share capital ' 181,652,881 8,437,921,645
Total 181,652,881 8.437,921.645
7 Other Equity
—— Asat 31 March 2017
articulars SCD TNR
Surplus / (Deficit)
Opening balance 5 -
Profit / (loss) for the vear 508,604 23,625,062
|Closing balance 508,604 23.625,062
b} Non-current liabilities - borrowings
el As at 31 March 2017
t H =
articulars SCD INR
Loan from banks 40,000,000 1,858,032.000
| Total 40,000,000 1,838,032.000
9 Non-current Habilities - other financial liabilities
sl As at 31 March 2017
articulars SGD h\fi{
Lease equalisation 151,745 T.048.677
Totai 151,745 7.048.677 |
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STT Tai Seng Pte Ltd

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

10

14

Non-current liabilities - provisions

. As at 31 March 2017
articulars SGI_) INR

Asset retirement obligation and others 3,486,386 161,945,419

Retention liability 320,000 14,864,256

Total 3,806,386 | 176,809,675

Current liabilitics - borrowings

: As at 31 March 2017
Particulars SGD INR

Loan from bank 5,000,000 232,254,000

Total 5,000,000 232,254,000 |

Current liabilities - Trade payubles

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

SGD INR
Trade payable 4,121,259 191,435,778
Total 4,121,259 191,435.778 |

Current liabilities - other financial liabilities

Particulars

Asat 31 March 2017

SGD INR
Interest accrued but not due 131,246 6,096,482
Total 131,246 6,096,482

Current liabilities - other current liabilities

As at 31 March 2017

Particulars SGD INR
Deterred revenue and advance from customers 862,498 40,063,722
Other Employee dues 137,276 6,376,380
Other Statutory dues 22,771 1,057,731
Others 473 21,971
Total 1,023,018 47,520,004
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STT Tai Seng Pte Ltd

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

15

16

Current liabilities - provisons

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

SGD

INR

Leave entitlerment

12,168

565,213

Total

12,168

565,213

Revenue from operations

Current year 2016-17

Particulars SGD INK
Data and voice revenue 5,800,738 269,449,850
Total 5,800,758 269,449,850

Other income

Particulars

Current year 2016-17

SGD INR
Miscellancous mcome 148,794 6,911,600
Totai 148,794 6,911,600

Network costs

Current year 2016-17

Particulars 3
i SGD INR
Charges lor use of transmission tacilities 1,999,905 92,897,187
Total 1,999,905 92,897,187
Employee benefit expenses
Particulars Current year 2016-17
SGD INR
Salaries, bonus and allowances 164,830 7,650,485
Contribution to provident and other funds 16,352 768,834
Total 181,382 8,425,339

1. STT Tai Seng Pte Ltd




STT Tai Seng Pte Ltd

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Other expenses

Current year 2016-17

Particulars SGD INR
Auditors remuneration 6,000 278,705
Communication expenses 644 29,914
Electricity 981,152 45,575,295
Exchange (Gain)/Loss -Net 18,548 861.569
Insurance expenses 9,662 448,808
Legal and professional fees 886,113 41,160,658
Miscellaneous expenses 19,819 920,610
Printing and stationery 1,314 61,036
Provision for doubtful debts 2,777 128,994
Rates and Taxes 2,924 135,822
Rent 658 30,565
Repairs and Maintenance - Plant & Machinery 210,872 9,795,173
Repairs and Maintenance -Building 1,750 81,289
Security charges 1,425 06,192
Travelling and conveyance expenses 1,471 68,329
Total 2,145,129 99,642,939

Finance costs

Particulars

Current year 2016-17

SGD INR
Interest expenses 285,499 13,261,657
Total 285,499 13,261,657

1. STT Tai Seng Pte Ltd
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STT GLOBAL DATA CENTRES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

Amount in ¥ lakhs

DATED: 30 May 2017

2. STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited

DATED: 30 May 2017

Note No. As at As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
A |ASSETS
1 |Non-current assets
(a) |Property, plant & equipment 3 74,378.50 58,555.01 41,463.73
(b) |Capital work in progress 2,596.93 7,837.78 1,730.65
(c) |Intangible assets 4 120.90 151.95 222.71
(d) |Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 5 108.82 64.00 0.75
(e) |Deferred tax assets (net) 6 1,958.21 1,862.56 1,510.94
(f) |Non current tax assets (net) 5,575.71 3,191.04 2,265.68
(g) |Other non-current assets TA 926.27 929.26 439.83
Total non-current assets 85,665.34 72,591.60 47,634.29
2 |Current assets
(a) |Inventories - stores and spares - - 0.66
(b) |Financial assets
(i) Investments 8 10,700.18 3,152.88 3,201.50
(ii) Trade receivables 9 14,368.67 12,629.42 8,943.79
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 1,338.23 691.34 391.62
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 11 2,292.34 - -
(c) |Other current assets 7B 1,929.65 1,625.93 1,721.01
Total current assets 30,629.07 18,099.57 14,258.58
Total assets 116,294.41 90,691.17 61,892.87
B |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
I |Equity
(a) |Equity share capital 12 1.00 1.00 5.00
(b) |Other equity 13 12,238.69 8,804.98 5,612.47
Total equity 12,239.69 8,805.98 5,617.47
II |Liabilities
1 |Non-current liabilities
(a) |Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14A 78,923.64 35,000.00 35,000.00
(ii) Other financial liabilities 15A 6.73 6.73 -
(b) |Provisions 16A 289.31 245.20 246.40
(c) |Other non current liabilities 17A 3,305.22 1,622.25 1,305.30
Total non-current liabilities 82,524.90 36,874.18 36,551.70
2 |Current liabilities
(a) |Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14B - 32,400.00 9,400.00
(ii) Trade payables 18
(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 18 (a) 66.97 50.75 231
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 18 (b) 9,733.55 4,346.09 3,220.53
enterprises
(iii) Other financial liabilities 15B 6,663.01 6,234.00 3,539.94
(b) |Provisions 16B 11.78 10.00 9.28
(c) |Other current liabilities 17B 5,054.51 1,970.17 3,551.64
Total current liabilities 21,529.82 45,011.01 19,723.70
Total equity and liabilities 116,294.41 90,691.17 61,892.87
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
GURVINDER SINGH SUMIT MUKHIJA BRUNO LOPEZ
Partner Chief Executive Officer Director
TRI PHAM
Director
MUMBAI MUMBAI




STT GLOBAL DATA CENTRES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Amount in ¥ lakhs

Year ended
Note No.
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
I |Revenue from operations 73,765.80 62,292.28
73,765.80 62,292.28
II |Other Income 19 589.93 433.80
III |Total Income (I + II) 74,355.73 62,726.08
IV |EXPENSES:
Operating and other expenses 20 47,125.56 41,125.78
Employee benefits 21 2,578.24 1,555.50
Finance costs 22 7,709.61 5,543.58
Depreciation and amortisation 23 11,523.86 9,381.87
Total Expenses 68,937.27 57,606.73
V |Profit before tax (III-IV) 5,418.46 5,119.35
VI |Tax expense
(a) |Current tax 24 2,072.76 2,270.25
(b) |Deferred tax 24 (93.01) (349.06)
1,979.75 1,921.19
VII |Profit for the year (V - VI) 3,438.71 3,198.16
VIII|Other comprehensive income/(loss)
(A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(1) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (7.64) (7.40)
(i1) Tax impact on above 2.64 2.56
Other comprehensive (loss) for the year, net of tax (5.00) (4.84)
IX |Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (VII + VIII) 3,433.71 3,193.32
Earnings per share
Basic/ Diluted (of ¥10 each) 26 34,387.17 9,017.79
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
GURVINDER SINGH SUMIT MUKHIJA BRUNO LOPEZ
Partner Chief Executive Officer Director
TRI PHAM
Director
MUMBAI MUMBAI
DATED: 30 May 2017 DATED: 30 May 2017
2. STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited 12



STT GLOBAL DATA CENTRES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Equity Share Capital

?in lakhs
No.of Shares Amount
Balance at 1 April 2015 50,000 5.00
Capital Reduction during the year (40,000) (4.00)
Balance at 31 March 2016 10,000 1.00
Changes in equity share capital during
the year - -
Balance at 31 March 2017 10,000 1.00
Other Equity { in lakhs
Other
Reserve & Surplus comprehensive
Income
Particulars Total Other Equity
Debenture Retained Reamursement
Redemption General Reserve . of defined benefit
earnings
Reserve plan

Balance at 1 April 2015 4,375.00 - 1,237.47 - 5,612.47
Profit for the year - - 3,198.16 - 3,198.16
Dividend Distribution Tax - - (0.81) - (0.81)
Transfer from Retained earnings 4,375.00 - - - 4,375.00
Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve - - (4,375.00) - (4,375.00)
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans - - (7.40) (7.40)
Tax impact on above - - 2.56 2.56
Balance at 31 March 2016 8,750.00 - 59.82 (4.84) 8,804.98
Profit for the year - - 3,438.71 - 3,438.71
Transfer to General Reserve on redemption of debentures (8,750.00) - - - (8,750.00)
Transfer from DRR on redemption of debentures - 8,750.00 - - 8,750.00
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans, net of tax - - (7.64) (7.64)
Tax impact on above - - 2.64 2.64
Balance at 31 March 2017 - 8,750.00 3,498.53 (9.84) 12,238.69
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
GURVINDER SINGH SUMIT MUKHIJA BRUNO LOPEZ

Partner

MUMBAI
DATED: 30 May 2017

2. STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited

Chief Executive Officer

TRI PHAM
Director

MUMBAI
DATED: 30 May 2017

Director
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STT GLOBAL DATA CENTRES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
? in lakhs ?in lakhs
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit before tax 5,418.46 5,119.35
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 11,523.86 9,381.87
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangibles (net) (57.61) (177.26)
Finance costs 7,709.61 5,543.58
Gain on investments carried at fair value through profit or loss (net) (385.95) (172.08)
Allowance for doubtful trade receivables 284.13 142.36
Interest on income tax refund (65.58) -
Bad Debts written off - 80.61
Interest on fixed deposits (41.33) -
Operating profit before working capital changes 24,385.59 19,918.43
Changes in working capital:
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Inventories - 0.66
Trade receivables (2,023.38) (3,908.59)
Other assets (272.48) (550.41)
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables 5,432.67 1,145.01
Provisions 38.26 (7.88)
Other liabilities 4,767.29 (1,261.85)
Cash Generated from operations 32,327.95 15,335.37
Income tax paid (net) (4,489.36) (3,195.62)
Net Cash flow from operating activities (A) 27,838.59 12,139.75
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangibles (21,805.18) (29,831.65)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangibles 143.27 290.34
Purchase of current investments (mutual funds) (65,050.00) (47,755.00)
Proceeds from sale of current investments (mutual funds) 57,888.65 47,975.70
Increase in Earmarked funds (2,292.34) -
Interest received on fixed deposits 41.33 -
Net Cash flow used in investing activities (B) (31,074.27) (29,320.61)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from short term borrowings 3,822.00 23,000.00
Proceeds from long term borrowings (net of arrangement fees) 78,923.64 -
Repayment of long term borrowings (35,000.00) -
Repayment of short term borrowings (36,222.00) -
Reduction of share capital and dividend distribution tax thereon - (4.81)
Interest paid (7,641.07) (5,514.61)
Net Cash flow from financing activities (C) 3,882.57 17,480.58
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A)+(B)+(C) 646.89 299.72
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 691.34 391.62
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year (Refer note 10 Cash and cash equivalents) 1,338.23 691.34
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
GURVINDER SINGH SUMIT MUKHIJA BRUNO LOPEZ
Partner Chief Executive Officer ~ Director
TRI PHAM
Director
MUMBAI MUMBALI
DATED: 30 May 2017 DATED: 30 May 2017
2. STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited 14



STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited

(Formerly known as Tata Communications Data Centers Private Limited)

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2017

1.

a.

Corporate information

STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited (formerly known as Tata Communications Data Centers Private
Limited) (‘“the Company”) was incorporated in India on 13 December 2007. The Company was originally incorporated
with the name S & A Internet Services Private Limited which was changed to Tata Communications Data Centers
Private Limited on 27 February 2014 and then to STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited on 11 April 2017
(vide SRN G39621719).

The Company is domiciled in India and its registered office is at Plot No. C21 & C36, ‘G’ Block, Bandra Kurla
Complex Mumbai — 400 098.

Significant accounting policies
Statement of compliance

In accordance with the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”), the Company has adopted
Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 with effect from 01 April 2016. Previous periods have been restated to Ind AS. In accordance with Ind
AS 101 - First time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, the Company has presented a reconciliation from the
presentation of the financial statements under Accounting Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 (“Previous GAAP”) to Ind AS of shareholders equity as at 31 March 2016 and 01 April 2015
and of the comprehensive net income for the year ended 31 March 2016.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS as notified under the Companies (Indian
Accountig Standards) Rules, 2015 read with section 133 of the Companies Act 2013.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities
which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount:

e Derivative financial instruments,
e Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer 2(q) below),

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (“INR”) and all values are rounded to the nearest lakh
(INR 00,000), except when otherwise indicated.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future
periods

Judgements:

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — As lessor
The Company has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Company has

determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not
constituting a major part of the economic life of the commercial property and the fair value of the asset, that it retains

2. STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited
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STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited

(Formerly known as Tata Communications Data Centers Private Limited)

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2017

all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and accounts for the contracts as operating
leases.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF
model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible,
a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as
liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair
value of financial instruments.

Estimates and assumptions:

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the standalone financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the
control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such obligations
are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may
differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined
benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting
date.

Useful life of assets

The Company reviews the useful life of assets at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may result in
change in depreciation expense in future periods.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be
made.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of
which will be confirmed only by occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Contingent
liabilities are disclosed in the notes. Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
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d. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of three months
or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

e. Property, plant and equipment

i. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction, less accumulated depreciation/
amortisation and impairment loss, if any. Cost includes inward freight, duties, taxes and all incidental expenses
incurred for making the asset ready for its intended use.

ii. Capital work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation/ under development
as at the balance sheet date are carried at cost, comprising direct cost, directly attributable cost and attributable
interest.

The depreciable amount for property, plant and equipment is the cost of the property, plant and equipment or other
amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value (wherever applicable). Depreciation on property, plant
and equipment has been provided on the straight-line method as per the estimated useful lives. The asset’s residual
values, estimated useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and any change
in estimate is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

ii

iii.

iv.

Vi.

Property, plant and equipment Estimated Useful lives of Assets

Vil.

Plant and Machinery

- Network Equipment & Components (Refer 1 below) 3 to 8 years
- Electrical Equipment & Installations* 10 years

- General Plant & Machinery* 15 years
Office Equipment - Integrated Building Management 8 years

Systems (Refer 1 below)

Leasehold Improvements

Asset life or lease period whichever

is less

Building

- RCC Structure 60 years
- Temporary Structures 3 years
Furniture and Fixtures* 10 years
Office Equipment* 5 years
Computers

- End user devices like laptops & Desktop* 3 years
- Server & Network* 6 years

* On the above categories of assets, the depreciation has been provided as per useful life prescribed in Schedule 11
to the Companies Act, 2013.

In these cases, the lives of the assets are other than the prescribed lives in Schedule II to the Companies Act,
2013. The lives of the assets have been assessed based on technical advice, taking into account the nature of
the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement,
anticipated technological changes, manufacturers warranties and maintenance support, etc
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2. Property, plant and equipment are eliminated from financial statement, either on disposal or when retired from
active use. Losses arising in the case of retirement of property, plant and equipment and gains or losses arising
from disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year
of occurrence.

f- Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the
assets will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at the end of each financial period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption
of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

Estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

| Software and Application | 3to 6 years |

An intangible asset is de-recognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
when the asset is derecognised.

g.  Impairment of non- financial asset

The carrying values of assets / cash generating units (“CGU”) at each balance sheet date are reviewed for impairment,
if any indication of impairment exists. The following intangible assets are tested for impairment at the end of each
financial year even if there is no indication that the asset is impaired:

i.  anintangible asset that is not yet available for use; and
ii.  an intangible asset with indefinite useful lives.

If the carrying amount of the assets exceed the estimated recoverable amount, impairment is recognised for such
excess amount. The impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case any impairment loss of the revalued asset is treated as a revaluation
decrease to the extent a revaluation reserve is available for that asset.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and the value in use. Value in use is arrived at by
discounting the future cash flows to their present value based on an appropriate discount factor.

When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset (other than a revalued asset) in earlier
accounting periods no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, to the extent the amount was previously charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
In case of revalued assets such reversal is not recognised.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for the company as a CGU. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a significant period.

4
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For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the significant
period.

h. Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement
at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent
on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that
right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Colocation services include the use of certain assets that are dedicated to the customers over the period of the service.
These assets meet lease criteria as the conditions pertaining to specific assets and the right to use the specific assets
as specified in the standard are met. The Company classifies these leases as either finance lease or operating lease
depending on the tenure and terms of the individual agreements.

Lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term since the payment to the lessor are structured in a manner that the increase is not expected to be
in line with expected general inflation.

Lessor

Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantially vests with the
lessor are classified as operating leases.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset are transferred from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded
as receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods
so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the finance lease.

Rental income and rental expenses on assets given or obtained under operating lease arrangements are recognised
on a straight line basis over the term of the lease. The initial direct costs relating to operating leases are recorded as
expenses as they are incurred.

i. Employee benefits

Employee benefits include contribution to provident fund, gratuity fund, compensated absences and performance
incentives.

i. Short term employment benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services
rendered by employees are recognised during the period when the employees render the service. These
benefits include compensated absences such as paid annual leave and performance incentives payable
within 12 months.

ii. Post-employment benefits

Contributions to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are recognised as expenses when
employees have rendered services entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit schemes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit
Method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date, which recognises each period
of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measure each unit separately
to build up the final obligation.
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Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling (if applicable),
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately
in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through Other Comprehensive
Income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to the Statement of Profit
and Loss in subsequent periods. Past service cost is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
period of plan amendment.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

The Company recognises changes in service costs comprising of current service costs, past-service costs,
gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements under employee benefit expenses in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. The net interest expense or income is recognised as part of finance cost in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined
benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost, and as reduced by the fair value of scheme
assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the present value of
available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the scheme.

iii. Other long-term employee benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period
in which the employee renders the related service are recognised as a liability at the present value of the
defined benefit obligation as at the balance sheet date.

J. Revenue recognition

i. Revenues for colocation services are recognised over the period of the respective arrangements based on
contracted fee schedules.

ii. Revenues from long term contracts of co-location and managed service arrangements are recognised on a
straight line basis over the period of the contracts. Amounts received in advance for any services are recorded
as deferred revenue.

k. Other Income
Interest income for all financial instruments measured at amortised cost. Interest income is recorded on accrual basis.
Interest income is included in Other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

I Taxation

Current Income tax

i. Current tax expense is determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

il. Provision for current income taxes and advance taxes paid in respect of the same jurisdiction are presented
in the balance sheet after offsetting them on an assessment year basis.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the reporting date between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
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utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity) is recognised outside the Statement of Profit and Loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

m. Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments such as derivatives and certain investments, at fair value at each
balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

e  Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

e  Level 2: Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

e Level 3: Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in
whole or in part using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from
observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the balance sheet on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis

of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained
above.
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n.

Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are converted into INR at rates of exchange approximating those prevailing at the
transaction dates or at the average exchange rate for the month in which the transaction occurs. Foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities are outstanding as at the balance sheet date are translated to INR at the closing rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Exchange differences on foreign currency transactions are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest, amortisation of any fee paid to the lender at the time of availing the borrowing.
Costs in connection with the borrowing of funds to the extent not directly related to the acquisition of qualifying
assets are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the tenure of the loan. Borrowing costs, allocated to and
utilised for qualifying assets, pertaining to the period from commencement of activities relating to construction /
development of the qualifying asset up to the date of capitalisation of such asset are added to the cost of the assets.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during extended
periods when active development activity on the qualifying assets is interrupted.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on
initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability.

A. Financial assets
i. Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a
business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

ii. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are
held within a business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows that give rise
on specified dates to solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and by
selling financial assets.

The Company has made an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent
changes in the fair value of equity investments not held for trading.

ii. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or
at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly
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attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
immediately recognised in profit or loss.

iv. Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at lower
of the original carrying amount of the asset and maximum amount of consideration that the Company could
be required to repay.

V. Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model to the following:
¢ Financial assets measured at amortised cost;
¢ Financial assets measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income;

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:
e the 12-month expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date)

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
e Trade receivables

Under the simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at reporting date.

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade
receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life
of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

For assessing expected credit loss on a collective basis, financial assets have been grouped on the basis of
shared risk characteristics and basis of estimation may change during the course of time due to change in
risk characteristics.

B. Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

i.  Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

. Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost on accrual basis.
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II. Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
Statement of Profit and Loss.

ii. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

iili. Derivative financial instruments - Initial and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign
currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are
carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

r. Recent accounting pronouncements
Standards issued but not yet effective

In March 2017, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
(Amendments) Rules, 2017, notifying amendments to Ind AS 7, 'Statement of cash flows'. These amendments are
in accordance with the recent amendments made by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) to IAS 7,
'Statement of cash flows'. The amendments are applicable to the Company from 1 April 2017.

Amendment to Ind AS 7

The amendment to Ind AS 7 requires the entities to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and
non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance
sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities, to meet the disclosure requirement.

The Company is evaluating the requirements of the amendment and the effect on the financial statements is being

evaluated.
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3. Property, plant and equipment

(Tin lakhs)
Leasehold Building Plant and Furniture and Office Computers Total
Improvements Machinery Fixtures Equipment
Cost
?ggﬂce at1 April - | 1,553.53 72,494.02 4,453.17 8,363.46 618.72 | 87,482.90
Additions 2,229.56 259.04 19,938.00 704.64 3,321.88 5.14 26,458.26
Disposals - - (640.56) - - (544.98) (1,185.54)
Transfers 1,457.17 - - (1,457.17) - - -
Balance at 31 3,686.73 | 1,812.57 91,791.46 3,700.64 11,685.34 78.88 | 112,755.62
March 2016
Additions 2,777.74 70.34 21,417.22 95.92 2991.55 10.13 27,362.90
Disposals - - (521.83) - - - (521.83)
Transfers 73.87 - (83.96) (12.68) - - (22.77)
Balance at 31
March 2017 6,538.34 | 1,882.91 112,602.89 3,783.88 14,676.89 89.01 | 139,573.92
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at 1 April
2015 - 2.05 40,186.10 1,498.71 3,796.47 535.84 46,019.17
Depreciation 350.11 28.77 7,050.27 315.62 1,489.15 44.31 9,278.23
Disposals - - (584.45) - - (512.34) (1,096.79)
Transfers 51.30 - - (51.30) - - -
Balance at 31
March 2016 401.41 30.82 46,651.92 1,763.03 5,285.62 67.81 54,200.61
Depreciation 476.47 30.47 8,858.91 356.66 1,736.56 6.94 11,466.01
Disposals - - (461.28) - - - (461.28)
Transfers 2.09 - (11.04) (0.97) - - (9.92)
Balance at 31
March 2017 879.97 61.29 55,038.51 2,118.72 7,022.18 74.75 65,195.42
Carrying Amount
Balance at 1 April
2015 - | 1,551.48 32,307.92 2,954.46 4,566.99 82.88 41,463.73
Balance at 31
March 2016 3,285.32 | 1,781.75 45,139.54 1,937.61 6,399.72 11.07 58,555.01
Balance at 31
March 2017 5,658.37 | 1,821.62 57,564.38 1,665.16 7,654.71 14.26 74,378.50

a. Finance cost capitalised during the year is TNil (2016: ¥14.81 lakhs) in respect of capital expenditure.
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4. Intangible assets
(Tin lakhs
Software ‘ Total
Cost
Balance at 1 April 2015 1,003.06 1,003.06
Additions 57.22 57.22
Disposals (790.35) (790.35)
Balance at 31 March 2016 269.93 269.93
Additions 39.06 39.06
Disposals (96.87) (96.87)
Transfers 22.77 22.77
Balance at 31 March 2017 234.89 234.89
Accumulated Amortisation
Balance at 1 April 2015 780.35 780.35
Amortisation 103.64 103.64
Disposals (766.01) (766.01)
Balance at 31 March 2016 117.98 117.98
Amortisation 57.85 57.85
Disposals (71.76) (71.76)
Transfers 9.92 9.92
Balance at 31 March 2017 113.99 113.99
Carrying Amount
Balance at 1 April 2015 222.71 222.71
Balance at 31 March 2016 151.95 151.95
Balance at 31 March 2017 120.90 120.90
5. Other financial assets
(Tin lakhs)
As at As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Unsecured — at amortised cost
Non-Current
a. Security deposits 108.82 64.00 0.75
108.82 64.00 0.75
12
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6.

Deferred tax assets (net)

(Tin lakhs)
Major components of deferred tax asset and liability consist of the following:
As at Recognisedin ~ Recognised in As at
1 April Statement of Other 31 March
2016 Profit and Comprehensive 2017
Loss Income
Deferred tax assets arising out of timing differences
on:
Difference between accounting and tax depreciation / 1,299.14 (194.34) - 1,104.80
amortization
Provision for doubtful trade receivables 296.42 98.33 - 394.75
Provision for leave encashment 41.63 4.40 - 46.03
Provision for bonus - 0.02 - 0.02
Provision for gratuity 46.69 8.26 2.64 57.59
Provision for stamp duty 102.44 155.03 - 257.47
Expenditure disallowed u/s. 40 (a) (ia) 73.33 54.51 - 127.84
Others 391 0.15 - 4.06
Total deferred tax assets (A) 1,863.56 126.36 2.64 1,992.56
Deferred tax liability arising out of timing
differences on:
Fair valuation of investments 1.00 28.25 - 29.25
Others - 5.10 - 5.10
Total deferred tax liabilities (B) 1.00 33.35 - 34.35
Deferred tax assets (net) 1,862.56 93.01 2.64 1,958.21
As at Recognised Recognised in As at
1 April in Statement Other 31 March
2015 of Profit and Comprehensive 2016
Loss Income
Deferred tax assets arising out of timing differences
on:
Difference between accounting and tax depreciation / 1,115.31 183.83 1,299.14
amortization
Provision for doubtful trade receivables 247.15 49.27 296.42
Provision for leave encashment 39.17 (0.10) 39.27
Provision for bonus 54.46 (54.46) - -
Provision for gratuity 49.32 (2.63) 2.56 49.25
Provision for stamp duty - 102.44 - 102.44
Expenditure disallowed u/s. 40 (a) (ia) - 73.33 - 73.33
Others 6.05 (2.14) - 391
Total deferred tax assets (A) 1,511.46 349.54 2.56 1,863.56
Deferred tax liability arising out of timing
differences on:
Fair valuation of investments 0.52 0.48 - 1.00
Total deferred tax liabilities (B) 0.52 0.48 - 1.00
Deferred tax assets (net) 1,510.94 349.06 2.56 1,862.56
13
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7. Other Assets

(Tin lakhs)
As at As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

A Non-Current

a. Capital Advances 86.71 13.64 106.46

b.  Prepaid Expenses 839.56 915.62 333.37
Total (A) 926.27 929.26 439.83

B  Current

a.  Prepaid expenses 283.85 122.09 46.92

b.  Cenvat credit receivable 1,459.48 1,333.32 1,447.82

c.  Advance to contractors and vendors 181.26 170.33 132.22

d.  Export incentive receivable (net of provision of ¢ - - 84.31
105.20 lakhs) (2016: ¥105.20 lakhs, 2015: ¥Nil)

e.  Others 5.06 0.19 9.74
Total (B) 1,929.65 1,625.93 1,721.01
Total (A) + (B) 2,855.92 2,555.19 2,160.84

8. Investments
(Tin lakhs)
As at As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Current
Investments at fair value through profit or loss (Quoted 10,700.18 3,152.88 3,201.50
Mutual Funds)
Total 10,700.18 3,152.88 3,201.50
9. Trade receivables - Unsecured
(Tin lakhs)
As at As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
At amortised cost
Considered good 14,368.67 12,629.42 8,943.79
Doubtful 1,140.63 856.50 714.14
15,509.30 13,485.92 9,657.93
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (expected (1,140.63) (856.50) (714.14)
credit loss allowance (Refer note 29 (d))
Total 14,368.67 12,629.42 8,943.79

The Company’s exposure to customers is diversified and no other single customer has more than 2% of outstanding
accounts receivable as on 31 March 2017, 31 March 2016 and 01 April 2015.
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STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited

(Formerly known as Tata Communications Data Centers Private Limited)

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2017

10. Cash and cash equivalents

(Tin lakhs)

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

a. Balances with banks 1,338.23 691.34 328.73
b. Remittances in transit - - 62.89
Cash and cash equivalent as per Statement of
cash flows 1,338.23 691.34 391.62
11. Bank balance other than note 10 above

(Tin lakhs)

As at As at As at

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
a. Restricted bank balance (Refer i below) 2,292.34 - -
Total 2,292.34 - -

i.  ¥2,292.34 lakhs (2016: Nil, 2015: Nil) held towards interest and principal payments equivalent to 3 months as
at the balance sheet date in accordance to the provisions of the bank term loan facility availed by of the Company.

12. Equity Share Capital

(Tin lakhs)

As at

31 March 2017
a. Authorised:

50,000 (2016: 50,000; 2015: 50,000) 5.00
Equity shares of ¥10 each

b.  Issued, Subscribed and Paid up:
10,000 (2016: 10,000; 2015: 50,000) 1.00

Equity shares of ¥10 each fully paid up
(Refer i below)

As at
31 March 2016

5.00

1.00

As at
1 April 2015

5.00

5.00

i Issued, Subscribed and Paid up:

Equity shares As at 31 March 2017
No of No of
shares 7in lakhs shares
Opening Balance 10,000 1.00 50,000
Add: Issued during the year - - -
Less: Capital reduction during
the year - - 40,000
Closing Balance 10,000 1.00 10,000

As at 31 March 2016

As at 1 April 2015

No of
7in lakhs shares Jin lakhs
500 50,000 5.00
4.00 - -
1.00 50,000 5.00

Vide its order dated 20 November 2015, the Hon’ble High Court of Bombay had passed an order for reduction
0f 40,000 equity shares of ¥10 each bearing distinctive numbers 10,001 to 50,000 out of the existing issued and
paid up share capital comprising of 50,000 equity shares of 10 each, thereby reducing the issued and paid up
share capital of the Company to ¥100,000 comprising of 10,000 equity shares of ¥ 10 each with effect from the
date of the order. The aforesaid order had been taken on record by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai,

Maharashtra on 11 December 2015.
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(Formerly known as Tata Communications Data Centers Private Limited)

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2017

il.

iii.

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares with a face value of ¥10 per share. Each shareholder of equity
shares is entitled to one vote per share at any general meeting of shareholders. The Company declares and pays
dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are
eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, in
proportion to their shareholding.

Number of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% of the issued share capital:

As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016 As at 1 April 2015

No of No of No of

shares Percentage shares  Percentage shares Percentage

STT India DC Pte. Ltd.

(Holding Company w.e.f. 19

October 2016) 7,400 74% - - -
Tata Communications Limited

(Holding Company upto 18

October 2016) 2,600 26% 10,000 100% 10,000 100%
13.  Other Equity
(Tin lakhs)
As at As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
General Reserve (Refer i below) 8,750.00 - -
Retained Earnings 3,498.53 59.82 1,237.47
Debenture Redemption Reserve (Refer ii below) - 8,750.00 4,375.00
Other Comprehensive Income (9.84) (4.84) -
Total 12,238.69 8,804.98 5,612.47

ii.

General reserve: The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profit from retained earnings for
appropriation purposes. As the general reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another
and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve will not be reclassified
subsequently to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Debenture redemption reserve (DRR): The Company had issued redeemable non-convertible debentures,
Accordingly, the Companies (Share capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 (as amended), requires that where a
company issues debentures, it shall create a debenture redemption reserve out of profits of the company
available for payment of dividend. The Company is required to maintain a Debenture Redemption Reserve of
25% of the value of debentures issued, either by a public issue or on a private placement basis. The amounts
credited to the debenture redemption reserve may not be utilized by the company except to redeem debentures.

16
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(Formerly known as Tata Communications Data Centers Private Limited)

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2017

14. Borrowings

(Tin lakhs)

As at As at As at

31 March 2017 31 March 1 April
2016 2015

Non — current financial liabilities

Unsecured Debentures

3,500, 9.75% Rated Non-Convertible - 35,000.00 35,000.00
Redeemable Debentures of Face Value ¥ 10

lakhs each (refer i below)

Secured

Loan from Banks (net) (refer ii below) 80,600.00 - -
Less: Arrangement fees (1,676.36) - -
Total (A) 78,923.64 35,000.00 35,000.00

Current financial liabilities

Unsecured

Loan from Tata Communications Limited - 32,400.00 9,400.00
(Rate of interest — nil (2016: 9.50%; 2015 -

8.50 %))

Total (B) - 32,400.00 9,400.00
Total (A) + (B) 78,923.64 67,400.00 44,400.00

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company had issued Unsecured Non-Convertible Redeemable
Debentures in Demat form for cash at par to Tata Communications Limited on a private placement basis
aggregating to ¥35,000.00 lakhs. Debentures were due for redemption on 26 June 2017. During the current year,
the Company had repaid debentures ¥35,000.00 lakhs to Tata Communications Limited.

For facilitating the above redemption, the Company had a Debenture Redemption Reserve of ¥8,750.00 lakhs in
2016 (2015: ¥4,375.00 lakhs). During the current year, the Company has transferred ¥8,750.00 lakhs to General
Reserve on redemption of the debentures.

Secured bank loan

The loan has been secured by a first ranking exclusive charge in favour of the Security Trustee (for the benefit of
the Finance Parties) by the Borrower over: (a) All movable fixed assets of Borrower, including but not limited to:
(1) cooling infrastructure, wiring, equipments, racks, computers, other electrical and electronical devices, power
equipments, in each case located in the Data Center Facilities; and (ii) and other movable fixed assets used in the
Business (“Movable Fixed Assets”); (b) the Account Assets; (c) the receivables; and (d) the Insurance Assets.

17
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(Formerly known as Tata Communications Data Centers Private Limited)

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2017

The repayment schedule of loan from bank is stated below:

(Tin lakhs)
Date of Repayment Amount of
Repayment

24 April 2019 6,045
24 October 2019 6,045
24 April 2020 6,045
24 October 2020 6,045
24 April 2021 6,045
24 October 2021 6,045
24 April 2022 6,045
24 October 2022 6,045
24 April 2023 8,060
24 October 2023 8,060
24 April 2024 8,060
24 October 2024 8,060

80,600

Details of Covenant restrictions on bank loan

Bank loan contain certain debt covenants relating to debt service coverage ratio, asset cover ratio, cash and cash

equivalents, tangible net worth and net debt to EBITDA.

As per the terms of the facility agreement, the Company is required to maintain Debt service coverage ratio of
not less than 1.3:1 for each relevant period until final settlement of the loan. As on 30 September 2016, there
was a breach in the said covenant viz. 0.38:1. However, the Company has received waiver from the agent as
regards this breach. As on date of balance sheet the Company was in process of refinancing the borrowing and

subsequent to 31 March 2017, the Non-current borrowing of ¥ 80,600 lakhs has been refinanced.

15. Otbher financial liabilities

(Tin lakhs)

As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

A Non-current

a. Payable for capital goods

As at
1 April 2015

a. Payable for capital goods

- Payable to related parties 6.73 6.73 -
Total (A) 6.73 6.73 -
B Current

2. STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited

- Payable to related parties 6.73 6.73 -
- Others 6,646.70 6,217.69 3,533.02
b. Other payables 9.58 9.58 6.92
Total (B) 6,663.01 6,234.00 3,539.94
Total (A) + (B) 6,669.74 6,240.73 3,539.94
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(Formerly known as Tata Communications Data Centers Private Limited)

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2017

16. Provisions

(Tin lakhs)

A Non-current

Provision for employee benefits (Refer i below)
- Provision for compensated absences

- Provision for gratuity

Total (A)

B Current

Provisions for employee benefits (Refer i below)
- Provision for compensated absences
Total (B)

Total (A) + (B)

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

130.53 110.30 103.90
158.78 134.90 142.50
289.31 245.20 246.40
11.78 10.00 9.28
11.78 10.00 9.28
301.09 255.20 255.68

i. The provision for employee benefits includes gratuity, annual leave and

compensation claimed by employees. For other disclosures, refer note 25.

17.  Otbher liabilities

leave entitlements accrued and

(Tin lakhs)

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

2. STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited

A Non-current
a. Deferred revenue 3,278.88 1,608.70 1,305.30
b. Accrued employee benefits 26.34 13.55 -
Total (A) 3,305.22 1,622.25 1,305.30
B Current
a. Deferred revenue
- Payable to related parties 44.55 1.95 1.99
- Others 3,322.25 1,196.63 3,001.14
b. Statutory remittances 404.40 421.68 321.99
. Accrued payroll 1,147.05 243.46 178.79
d. Others 136.26 106.45 47.73
Total (B) 5,054.51 1,970.17 3,551.64
Total (A) + (B) 8,359.73 3,592.42 4,856.94
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2017

18. Trade and other payables

(Tin lakhs)
As at As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Current
a. Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 66.97 50.75 231
small enterprises (Refer note 34)
(a) 66.97 50.75 2.31
b. Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises
- Payable to related parties 6,339.75 1,562.30 1,460.56
- Trade payables 3,391.66 2,781.80 1,757.40
- Accrued payroll 2.14 1.99 2.57
(b) 9,733.55 4,346.09 3,220.53
Total (a + b) 9,800.52 4,396.84 3,222.84
19. Other income
(Tin lakhs)
Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
a. Interest Income
- Bank deposits (at amortised cost) 41.33 -
b. Interest on income tax refund 65.58 -
c. Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and 57.61 177.26
intangibles (net)
d. Gain on investments carried at fair value through profit or loss 385.95 172.08
(net)
e. Other non-operating income (net)
- Foreign exchange gain (net) 2.30 21.24
- Miscellaneous income 37.16 63.22
Total 589.93 433.80
20
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STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited

(Formerly known as Tata Communications Data Centers Private Limited)

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2017

20. Operating and other expenses

(Tin lakhs)

Year Ended Year Ended
31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016
Power and fuel 23,604.70 20,215.07

b. Repairs and maintenance:
Buildings 44.94 35.12
Plant and machinery 2,804.07 2,755.27
Others 11.67 11.31
c. Allowance for doubtful trade receivables 284.13 142.36
d. Bad debts written off - 80.61
e. Network and cable charges 535.30 555.36
f. Rent 9,698.78 8,075.77
g. Rates and taxes 889.53 408.19
h. Travelling 84.73 86.37
i Services rendered by agencies 8,237.48 8,158.44
J- Legal and professional charges 427.20 141.40
k. Insurance 181.90 53.58
L Corporate social responsibility expenditure (Refer i) 71.01 36.94
m. Other expenses (Refer ii) 250.12 369.99
Total 47,125.56 41,125.78

i.  Asrequired by the Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereon, gross amount required to be spent by the Company
during the year toward Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) amount to ¥70.93 lakhs (2016: ¥36.00 lakhs).
The Company has spent ¥71.01 lakhs (2016: ¥36.94 lakhs) during the year on CSR activities mainly for skill
development training and employment opportunities for marginalised unemployed youth, single women,
widows etc. in Maharashtra including ¥0.50 lakhs (2016: ¥Nil) on construction/ acquisition of assets.

ii.  Other expenses include auditors’ remuneration as follows (excluding service tax):
(Tin lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Auditors’ remuneration and expenses

e Audit fees 15.00 15.00
e Tax audit fees 3.50 3.52
e  Other professional services 791 7.51
e  For reimbursement of expenses 0.08 -
21
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STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited

(Formerly known as Tata Communications Data Centers Private Limited)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2017

21. Employee benefits

(Tin lakhs)
Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
a. Salaries and related costs 2,463.41 1,445.33
b. Contribution to provident funds (Refer note 25) 55.22 48.06
c. Gratuity expense (Refer note 25) 12.27 9.70
d. Staff welfare expenses 47.34 52.41
Total 2,578.24 1,555.50

22. Finance costs

(Tin lakhs)

Year Ended Year Ended

Interest costs:

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

a.  On loan from banks 3,895.07 1.92
b. Onloan from Tata Communications Limited 3,696.72 5,535.79
c.  Others 117.82 20.68
d.  Less: Interest capitalization - (14.81)
Total 7,709.61 5,543.58
23. Depreciation and amortisation
(Tin lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment assets (Refer note 3) 11,466.01 9,278.23
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer note 4) 57.85 103.64
Total 11,523.86 9,381.87
24. Income Tax
i. Income tax recognised in Statement of Profit and loss:
(Tin lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Current tax
In respect of current year 2,353.71 2,184.97
In respect of prior years (280.95) 85.28
Total Current tax (a) 2,072.76 2,270.25
Deferred tax
In respect of the current year (374.82) (329.14)
In respect of the earlier years 281.81 (19.92)
Total deferred tax (b) (93.01) (349.06)
Total Income tax (a+b) 1,979.75 1,921.19
22
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2017

ii. The Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

(Tin lakhs

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Profit before tax 5,418.46 5,119.35
Income tax expense calculated at 34.608%
Tax rate (2016: 34.608% Tax rate) 1,875.22 1,771.70
Reasoning
Effect of adjustments that are not deductible
in determining taxable profit 103.67 75.68
True up impact of prior years 0.86 73.81
Total 104.53 149.49
Income tax expense recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss 1,979.75 1,921.19

ili. = Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
(<Tin lakhs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Deferred tax
Re-measurements of the defined benefit
obligation 2.64 2.56
Total Income tax 2.64 2.56
Bifurcation of income taxes recognized in
Other Comprehensive Income into:
Items that will be reclassified to profit and - -
loss
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and
loss 2.64 2.56

25. Employee Benefits
i. Defined Contribution Plan - Provident Fund:

The Company makes contribution towards provident fund under a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for
qualifying employees. The provident fund is administered by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. Under
this scheme, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to fund the benefits.

Provident fund contributions amounting to ¥55.22 lakhs (2016: ¥48.06 lakhs) have been charged to the Statement
of Profit and Loss, under Contribution to provident, gratuity and other funds in note 21 “Employee benefits expense”.

ii. Defined Benefit Obligation — Gratuity

The plan provides for lump sum payments to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on
termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary for each completed year of service or part
thereof in excess of six months. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The cost of providing
benefits for defined benefit schemes is determined using the Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations
being carried out at each Balance Sheet date.
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(Formerly known as Tata Communications Data Centers Private Limited)

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2017

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risk such as interest rate risk and salary risk:

Interest rate risk The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government
bonds. If bond yields fall, the defined benefit obligation will tend to increase

Salary risk

Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation

No other post-retirement benefits are provided to the employees.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were

carried out as at 31 March 2017 by an independent actuary.

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as

follows:

As at

7.90%

10% 10% for 2015

15%
8%

As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Principal Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate 7.20%
Salary Escalation Rate 10%
Withdrawal rate
Less than 5 years 15%
5 years and more 8%

As at
1 April 2015

7.80%

and 9%
thereafter

15%
8%

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the Balance Sheet

date for the estimated term of the obligations.

The estimates of future compensation cost considered in the actuarial valuation take account of inflation, seniority,

promotion and other relevant factors.

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows:

2. STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited

(<in lakhs
Year ended March
2017 2016
I Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current service cost 12.27 9.70
Interest cost 10.17 10.50
Components of defined benefit cost recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss (Refer note 21 and 22) 22.44 20.20
Year ended March
I Expenses recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income 2017 2016
Actuarial changes arising from changes in Financial assumptions 751 420
Actuarial changes arising from experience adjustments 0.13 3.20
Components of defined benefit cost recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income 7.64 7.40
24

38



STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited

(Formerly known as Tata Communications Data Centers Private Limited)

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2017

The details in respect of the unfunded amounts recognised in the balance sheet for these defined benefit schemes
are as under:

(<in lakhs)
Gratuity
(Unfunded)
As at 31 Asat31
Particulars March March As at 1 April
2017 2016 2015
III Amount recognised in the balance sheet
Obligation at the end of the year 158.78 134.90 142.50
Net liability arising from defined benefit
obligation 158.78 134.90 142.50
Non-current provision (Refer note 16A)
IV~ Change in the defined benefit obligation
Opening defined benefit obligation 134.90 142.50
Current service cost 12.27 9.70
Interest cost 10.17 10.50
Liability transferred to other companies 6.10 (18.60)
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligations- experience 0.13 3.20
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligations— financial 7.51 4.20
assumptions
Benefits paid (12.30) (16.60)
Closing defined benefit obligation 158.78 134.90

V A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016
is as shown below: (As per actuarial valuation report)

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.
As at 31 March  As at 31 March As at 1 April

2017 2016 2015
Discount rate
Increase (1%) (10.54) (8.90) (8.40)
Decrease (1%) 11.97 10.10 9.50
Salary escalation rate
Increase (1%) 5.67 5.00 4.60
Decrease (1%) (5.85) (5.10) (4.60)
Withdrawal Rate
Increase (5%) 2.95 4.30 6.10
Decrease (5%) (6.90) (8.90) (10.60)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of
the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation
has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same
as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognized in the balance sheet. There
was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

25
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(Formerly known as Tata Communications Data Centers Private Limited)

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2017

(Zin lakhs)

VI Maturity profile of defined benefit plan As at 31 March
2017

March 31, 2018 13.84

March 31, 2019 29.48

March 31, 2020 15.29

March 31, 2021 15.98

March 31, 2022 19.92

March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2027 97.76

Total expected payments 192.27

VI Leave plan and Compensated absences

Leave unavailed of by eligible employees may be carried forward / encashed by them / their nominees in
the event of death or permanent disablement or resignation, subject to a maximum leave of 120 days in
addition to accumulated leave balance available in accumulated quota.

The liability for compensated absences as at the yearend is ¥ 142.31 lakhs (2016: ¥120.30 lakhs, 2015: &
113.18 lakhs) as shown under non-current provisions ¥130.53 lakhs (2016: ¥110.30 lakhs, 2015: ¥103.90
lakhs) and current provisions ¥11.78 lakhs (2016: ¥10.00 lakhs, 2015: ¥9.28 lakhs). The amount charged
to the Statement of Profit and Loss is 26.91 lakhs (2016: ¥35.25 lakhs)

26. Earnings per share

(Tin lakhs)

As at As at

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders (A) 3,438.71 3,198.16

Number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 10,000 10,000
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the

year (B) 10,000 35,465
Basic and diluted earnings per share (¥ per equity share of

¥10 each) (A/B) 34,387.17 9,017.79

27. Segment reporting
The Company is engaged in providing data center colocation services, manage hosting and infrastructure services.
Considering the nature of the Company's business and operations, there are no other reportable segments (business
and/or geographical) in accordance with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standard 108 on Segment Reporting.

Information about major customers: -

(%in lakhs)

Name For the Year Ended
31 March, 2017

Customer A 14,125.79

Customer C 7,123.74

Customer B 4,373.34

26
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2017

(T in lakhs)
Name For the Year Ended
31 March, 2016
Customer A 9,129.94
Customer B 8,427.11
Customer C 5,199.45

28. Financial Instruments:
The significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on
which income and expense are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity
instrument are disclosed in note 2(s) to the financial statements.

Financial assets and liabilities

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as at 31 March 2017 is as follows:

(<in lakhs)
. Fair value
Fair value . through Other Amortised Tota.l
through Profit . Carrying
Comprehensive cost
or loss value
Income

Financial Assets:
Investments 10,700.18 10,700.18
Other financial assets 108.82 108.82
Trade receivables 14,368.67 14,368.67
Cash and Cash equivalents 1,338.23 1,338.23
Other bank balances 2,292.34 2,292.34
Total 10,700.18 - 18,108.06 28,808.24
Financials Liabilities:
Borrowings 78,923.64 78,923.64
Other financial liabilities 6,669.74 6,669.74
Trade payables 9,800.52 9,800.52
Total - - 95,393.90 95,393.90

27

2. STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited

41



STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited

(Formerly known as Tata Communications Data Centers Private Limited)

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2017

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as at 31 March 2016 is as follows:

(<in lakhs)
. Fair value
Fair value . through Other Amortised Tota.l
through Profit . Carrying
Comprehensive cost
or loss value
Income

Financial Assets:
Investments 3,152.88 3,152.88
Other financial assets 64.00 64.00
Trade receivables 12,629.42 12,629.42
Cash and Cash equivalents 691.34 691.34
Other bank balances - -
Total 3,152.88 - 13,384.76 16,537.64
Financials Liabilities:
Borrowings 67,400.00 67,400.00
Other financial liabilities 6,240.73 6,240.73
Trade payables 4,396.84 4,396.84
Total - - 78,037.57 78,037.57

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as at 01 April 2015 is as follows

(Zin lakhs)
. Fair value
Fair value . through Other Amortised Tota.l
through Profit . Carrying
Comprehensive cost
or loss value
Income

Financial Assets:
Investments 3,201.50 3,201.50
Other financial assets 0.75 0.75
Trade receivables 8,943.79 8,943.79
Cash and Cash equivalents 391.62 391.62
Other bank balances - -
Total 3,201.50 - 9,336.16 12,537.66
Financials Liabilities:
Borrowings 44.400.00 44,400.00
Other financial liabilities 3,539.94 3,539.94
Trade payables 3,222.84 3,222.84
Total - - 51,162.78 51,162.78

Carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and trade payables as at 31 March 2017, 31 March
2016 and 1 April 2015 approximate the fair value because of their short term nature. Difference between carrying
amounts and fair values of other financial assets, other financial liabilities and borrowings subsequently measured
at amortised cost is not significant in each of the years presented.

Fair value hierarchy:

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either
observable or unobservable and consist of following three levels:

Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
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29.

Level 2: Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole
or in part using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current
market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

The following table summarises financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis and
financial assets that are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis (but fair value disclosure are
required):

As at 31 March 2017:

(Tin lakhs)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
i. Mutual funds 10,700.18 - - 10,700.18
Total 10,700.18 - - 10,700.18
As at 31 March 2016:
(Tin lakhs)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
i. Mutual funds 3,152.88 - - 3,152.88
Total 3,152.88 _ ] 3,152.88
As at 31 March 2015:
(Tin lakhs)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
i. Mutual funds 3,201.50 - - 3,201.50
Total 3,201.50 ] ] 3,201.50

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other
payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s
principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, current investments and cash and cash equivalents that
derive directly from its operations. The Company has investments in mutual funds on which gain or loss on fair
value is recognised through profit or loss and also enters into derivative transactions.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The company’s senior management
ensures that financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are
identified, measured and managed in accordance with the company’s policies and risk objectives. All derivative
activities for risk management purposes are carried out by specialist teams that have the appropriate skills,
experience and supervision. It is the Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may
be undertaken. The senior management reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are
summarised below.
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a)

b)

c)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price
risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and
borrowings, deposits, Fair Value through Profit or Loss investments and derivative financial instruments.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016.

The analysis excludes the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other
post- retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-financial assets and liabilities of foreign operations.

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis:

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks.
This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016 including
the effect of hedge accounting.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows with respect to interest payments on borrowings will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates
primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency)
and the Company’s net investments in foreign subsidiaries.

The Company’s objective is to try and protect the underlying values of the functional currency of respective group
company’s balance sheet exposures. All exposures in currency other than functional currency are treated as ‘Forex
Exposures’ irrespective of the group company from where the exposures originate. Exposures are broadly
categorized into receivables and payable exposures.

The Company manages its foreign currency risk by entering into derivatives on Net Exposures, i.e. netting off the
Receivable and Payable exposures in order to take full benefit of Natural Hedge.

Non-crystalized (not in books) exposures for which cash flows are highly probable are considered for hedging after
due consideration of cost of cover, impact of such derivatives on Statement of Profit and Loss due to MTMs (mark
to market loss or gains), market / industry practices, Regulatory restrictions etc.

As regards net investments in foreign operations, hedging decisions are guided by regulatory requirement,
accounting practices and in consultation and approval of Senior Management on such hedging action.

The foreign exchange rate sensitivity is calculated by aggregation of the net foreign exchange rate exposure and a
simultaneous parallel foreign exchange rate shift of all the currencies by 5% against the functional currency of the

Company.

The following analysis has been worked out based on the net exposures of the Company as of the date of balance
sheet which would affect the statement of Profit and Loss and equity.
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The following tables sets forth information relating to foreign currency exposure (net) as at 31 March 2017, 31
March 2016 and 01 April 2015.

(¥in lakhs)

As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016 As at 01 April 2015
Financial Financial Financial Financial Financial Financial

Currency liabilities Assets liabilities Assets liabilities Assets
USD - 239.90 - 233.53 - 694.23
ZAR 4.28 - - - - 463.41
SGD 57.43 - - 2.02 4.28 -
Others 0.72 5.96 - 2.24 - 0.66

5% appreciation/ depreciation of the respective foreign currencies with respect to functional currency of the
Company would result in decrease/ increase in the Company’s profit before tax by approximately ¥9.17 lakhs, ¥
11.89 lakhs and ¥57.70 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2017, 31 March 2016 and 01 April 2015 respectively.

d) Credit risk

Creditrisk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade
receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign
exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

In determining the allowances for doubtful trade receivables the Company has used a simplified approach by
computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix
takes into account historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The expected
credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and rates used in the provision matrix.

Ageing of receivables

(T in lakhs)
As at 31 March 2017  As at 31 March 2016  As at 31 March 2015
Within Credit period 3,494.07 2,043.90 1,277.23
0-90 days 8,660.38 8,092.52 5,051.42
91-180 days 960.76 1,251.46 1,095.06
181-360 days 782.34 824.71 1,249.58
More than 360 days 465.12 416.77 270.50
Total 14,368.67 12,629.42 8,943.79
Movement in expected credit loss allowance
(Tin lakhs)
Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March 2017 March 2016
Opening balance 856.50 714.14
Movement in expected credit loss calculated at lifetime expected
credit loss 284.13 142.36
Balance at the end of the year 1,140.63 856.50

e) Liquidity risk

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity planning tool.

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank overdrafts, bank loans, debentures, preference shares, finance leases and hire purchase contracts.
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Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at
a reasonable price. The Company’s corporate treasury department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as
settlement management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual

undiscounted payments.

(Tin lakhs)
Year ended 31 March 2017 On 0to12 1toS >5 Total
demand months years years
Non-Current Borrowings - 48,360.00 32,240.00 80,600.00
Non-Current financial liabilities - - 6.73 - 6.73
Current Financial Liabilities 4,030.49 2,632.52 - - 6,663.01
Trade Payables 1,800.90 7,999.62 - - 9,800.52
(Tin lakhs)
Year ended 31 March 2016 On 0to12 1 to S years >5 Total
demand months years
Non-Current Borrowings - - 35,000.00 - 35,000.00
Non-Current financial liabilities - - 6.73 - 6.73
Current Borrowings - 32,400.00 - - 32,400.00
Current Financial Liabilities 2,567.69 3,666.31 - - 6,234.00
Trade Payables 1,255.62 3,141.22 - - 4,396.84
(Tin lakhs)
Year ended 1 April 2015 On 0to12 1 to S years >5 Total
demand months years
Non-Current Borrowings - - 35,000.00 - 35,000.00
Current Borrowings - 9,400.00 - - 9,400.00
Current Financial Liabilities 1,685.90 1,854.04 - - 3,539.94
Trade Payables 1,005.74 2,217.10 - - 3,222.84

30. Capital Management:

The Company’s objective for capital management is to maximise shareholder value, safeguard business continuity
and support the growth of the Company. The Company determines the capital requirement based on annual operating
plans and long-term and other strategic investment plans. The funding requirements are met through equity, loans

and operating cash flows generated. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
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31.

i

Related Party Transactions

Names of related parties and nature of relationship

Sr No Category of related parties

A Holding Company

B Investing Company, its subsidiaries and joint
ventures

C Tata Sons Limited, its subsidiaries and joint
ventures

D Key Managerial Personnel

Names

STT India DC Pte. Ltd. (w.e.f 19 October 2016)
Tata Communications Limited (upto 18 October 2016)

Tata Communications Limited (w.e.f 19 October 2016)

Tata Communications (Australia) Pty Limited
Tata Communications (America) Inc.

Tata Communications (Hong Kong) Limited
Tata Communications (Canada) Limited

Tata Communications International Pte Limited

Tata Communications Services International Pte
Limited
Tata Communications Payment Solutions Limited

Tata Communications Transformation Services Limited
Tata Communications (UK) Limited

Tata Communications (Ireland) Limited

Tata Communications (Middle East) FZ — LLC

Tata Communications (France) SAS

Smart ICT Services Private Limited

Tata Sons Limited (upto 18 October 2016)

APTOnline Limited (formerly APOnline Limited)
MP Online Limited

Tata AIA Life Insurance Company Limited

Tata AIG General Insurance Company Limited
Tata Autocomp Systems Limited

Tata Consultancy Services Limited

Tata Interactive Systems GmbH

Tata Sky Limited

Tata Consultancy Services (South Africa) (Pty) Ltd.
Infiniti Retail Limited

Tata Capital Limited

Landmark E-tail Limited (w.e.f. 12 June 2015)

Tata Teleservices Limited

Tata AutoComp GY Batteries Private Limited
(formerly Tata AutoComp GY Batteries Limited)

Mr. Sumit Mukhija (w.e.f. 19 October 2016)
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ii.

Summary of transactions and balances with related parties

(Tin lakhs)
Holdin C;nmve::llng. ts Tata Sons Limited,
Particulars 1ng . p il its subsidiaries and Total
Company subsidiaries and s .
. joint ventures
associates
Transactions
Revenue from operations 3,745.48 4,000.79 1,611.11 9,357.38
8,427.11 555.62 2,059.28 11,042.01
Other Income 31.86 31.86
Services rendered by agencies 4,759.78 3,178.82 7,938.60
7,908.31 - 7,908.31
Rent 4,240.44 4,601.16 8,841.60
7,440.50 - 7,440.50
Network and cable charges 229.13 173.28 402.41
435.33 - 435.33
Other Expenses 16.57 30.52 23.99 71.08
81.37 - 52.30 133.67
Salaries and related costs 2.02 2.02
1.16 1.16
Brand equity 77.44 98.46 175.90
- 137.23 137.23
Finance costs 3,585.82 110.92 3,696.74
5,535.79 - 5,535.79
Loan taken 3,822.00 3,822.00
23,000.00 23,000.00
Loan Repaid 36,222.00 36,222.00
Redemption of Debentures 1,100.00 33,900.00 35,000.00
Equity capital reduction - -
4.00 4.00
Purchase of property, plant and ) ) ~
equipment®
45.76 2.17 47.93
Sale_ of pro’]:erty, plant and ) 30.38 30.38
equipment
87.17 - 87.17
34
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Holdin C;ll:lve;:lmgi ts Tata Sons Limited,
Particulars g . p .y, its subsidiaries and Total
Company subsidiaries and .
. joint ventures
associates
Balances
Receivables 408.11 - 408.11
186.10 1,427.11 1,613.21
570.63 1,186.87 1,757.50
Payables - 6,353.21 - 6,353.21
1,342.83 90.58 142.35 1,575.76
1,368.74 11.17 80.65 1,460.56
Other liabilities — current 44.55 - 44.55
- 1.95 1.95
- 1.99 1.99
Other assets — current - -
15.03 15.03
Letter of Comfort provided to _ _
third parties
5,600.00 5,600.00
5,600.00 5,600.00
Loan Balances - -
32,400.00 32,400.00
9,400.00 9,400.00

Note: Previous year’s figures are in italics
* Figure are inclusive of VAT & Swachh Bharat Cess (SBC)

32. Operating lease arrangements

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Company for certain buildings to set up internet data
centers/colocation services

a. As lessee:
(Tin lakhs)

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
31 March 2015

Minimum lease payments under operating leases

recognised as expense in the year 8,633.27 7,278.93 6,202.65
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At the balance sheet date, minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases fall due as

follows:

(Tin lakhs)
As at As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Due not later than one year 10,114.70 7,440.39 6,317.82
Due later than one year but not later than five years 15,686.39 20,461.08 23,535.62
Later than five years - - -
25,801.09 27,901.47 29,853.44

b. As lessor:

The Company has leased certain facilities under non-cancellable operating lease arrangements to its customers.
Future lease income in respect of these leases will be recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss of subsequent
years as follows:

(Tin lakhs)
As at As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Due not later than one year 21,622.76 14,473.73 5,915.44
Due later than one year but not later than five years 68,462.40 52,805.40 23,265.56
Later than five years - 6,593.07 8,728.63
90,085.16 73,872.20 37,909.63

33. Contingent liabilities and commitments:

i. Contingent liabilities

(Tin lakhs)

As at As at As at

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

. Claims against the Company not 525.06 - -
acknowledged as debt

il. Other claims 115.26 - -

ii. Capital Commitments:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account, not provided for amount to ¥7,977.42
lakhs (2016: ¥5,402.78 lakhs, 2015: ¥18,308.65 lakhs)

36
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34.

35.

36.

37.

Micro and small enterprises

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the
basis of information collected by the Management:

(Tin lakhs)
As at As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
a. Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier 37.71 46.16 2.03
beyond scheduled date as at the end of the accounting
year
b. Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier 0.40 2.48 0.28
as at the end of the accounting year
c. The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of 668.19 1,439.93 831.87
the payment made  to the supplier beyond the
appointed day
d. The amount of interest due and payable for the year 0.40 2.48 0.28
e. The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid 0.40 2.48 0.28

at the end of the accounting year

f. The amount of further interest due and payable even - - -
in the succeeding year, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid

g.Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises™ 66.97 50.75 2.31

* Includes principal amount of T28.86 lakhs (2016: ¥2.11 lakhs) remaining unpaid to supplier prior to scheduled
date

Specified Bank Notes (SBNs)

During the year, the Company did not have any holdings or dealings in specified bank notes, as defined in the
Notification G.S.R. 308(E) dated 30 March 2017 on the details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted
during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016.

Events after the reporting period

At the date of finalising our review report, the Company has repaid the loan facility of ¥80,600 lakhs taken from
Standard Chartered Bank, by way of refinancing from HDFC Bank Limited, ICICI Bank Limited and Axis Bank
Limited.

Other than the above, there are no subsequent events between the year ended 31 March 2017 and signing of financial
statements as on 30 May 2017 which have material impact on the financials of the Company.

First-time Ind AS adoption reconciliation

These are the Company's first standalone financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. The accounting
policies set out in note 2 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017,
the comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 and in the
preparation of an opening Ind AS balance sheet at 01 April 2015 (the Company’s date of transition). In preparing
its opening Ind AS balance sheet, the Company has adjusted the amounts reported previously in financial statements
prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules,
2006 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act (previous GAAP or Indian GAAP).

A. Exemptions and exceptions availed

The transition as at 01 April 2015 to Ind AS was carried out from Previous GAAP. The exemptions and
exceptions applied by the Company in accordance with Ind AS 101 — First time adoption of Indian Accounting
Standards, the reconciliation of equity and total comprehensive income in accordance with Previous GAAP to
Ind AS are explained below.
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A.1 Ind AS optional exemptions

a. Designation of previously recognised financial instruments

Ind AS 101 allows an entity to designate investments in equity instruments at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income on the basis of the facts and circumstances at the date of transition to Ind AS. The
Company has designated its investments in mutual funds at Fair Value through Profit or Loss held at 1 April
2015.

. Fair value measurement of financial assets or financial liabilities at initial recognition

The Company has applied requirements of fair value measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
at initial recognition for transactions entered into on or after date of transition to Ind AS.

A.2 Ind AS mandatory exceptions

a. De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities

The Company has elected to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively from the date
of transition to Ind AS.

b. Classification and measurement of financial assets

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of financial assets (investment in debt
instruments) on the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS. The
Company has applied the above requirement prospectively.

. Estimates

An entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with
estimates made for the same date in accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any
difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error. Ind
AS estimates as at 1 April 2015 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with
previous GAAP. The Company has made estimates for impairment of financial assets based on expected
credit loss model in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as this was not required under previous

GAAP.

B. Reconciliations between Previous GAAP and Ind AS

i. Equity reconciliation

2. STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited

(Tin lakhs)
Sr. . As at As at
no  Torticulars Notes 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Equity as reported under previous GAAP 8,911.44 5,641.69
a Provision for expected credit loss I (169.56) (40.32)
Impact of measuring investments at fair value through
b profit or loss (FVTPL) L 2.88 150
c Tax adjustments on above items v 61.22 14.60
Equity under Ind AS 8,805.98 5,617.47
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ii. Total comprehensive income reconciliation

(Tin lakhs)

Sr. .

1o Particulars Notes F(;rltll\l;a{.i;r;)n&ed
Net profit as reported under previous GAAP 3,274.56

a Impact of measuring investments at fair value through profit or I 138
loss (FVTPL)

b, Actuarial gains on gmployee defined benefit plans reclassified to i 7 40
Other Comprehensive Income

c Provision for expected credit loss I (129.24)
Tax adjustments on above items v 44.06
Net profit for the period under Ind AS 3,198.16
Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) (4.84)
Total Comprehensive Income under Ind AS 3,193.32

iii. Reconciliation of Statement of Cash Flow

There are no material adjustments to the Statement of Cash Flows as reported under the Previous GAAP.
Notes to reconciliations between Previous GAAP and Ind AS

L Trade receivables

Under previous GAAP, the Company had created allowance for trade receivables based on incurred loss
model. In Ind AS, impairment allowance has been calculated based on expected credit loss model. As a result,
for the year ended 31 March 2016 ¥129.24 lakhs provision for expected credit loss is recognised in Statement
of Profit and Loss and impact of ¥40.32 lakhs and ¥ 169.56 lakhs has been recognised in equity as at 31
March 2016 and 01 April 2015 respectively.

1I. Fair valuation of investments

Under previous GAAP, mutual funds were measured at lower of cost or fair value. Under Ind AS, these
investments are classified as fair value through Profit or Loss and accordingly all gain and losses on these
investments needs to recorded through Profit and Loss.

As at 01 April 2015, fair value gain on these instruments of ¥2.88 lakhs is recognised in equity and fair value
gain of ¥ 1.38 lakhs for year ended 31 March 2016 is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.
Corresponding impact of fair value gain is recognised in current investments.

11 Employee benefits

Under previous GAAP, actuarial gains and losses on re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability was
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Under Ind AS, actuarial gains and losses on re-measurement of
the net defined benefit liability are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. Accordingly, ¥7.40 lakhs
on re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability is reclassed to other comprehensive income from
employee cost resulting in increase in net profit for the year ended 31 March 2016. However, the same does
not result in difference in equity or total comprehensive income.

Iv. Tax adjustments

Tax adjustments include tax impact on account of differences between previous GAAP and Ind AS. These
adjustments have resulted in an increase in equity under Ind AS by ¥61.22 lakhs and ¥14.60 lakhs as at 31
March 2016 and 01 April 2015 respectively. Also, an increase in net profit and other comprehensive income
by ¥44.06 lakhs and ¥2.56 lakhs respectively for the year ended 31 March 2016.
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38. Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of directors on 30 May 2017.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

SUMIT MUKHIJA BRUNO LOPEZ
Chief Executive Officer Director

TRI PHAM

Director

MUMBAI

Dated: 30 May 2017
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ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON COMPILATION OF UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To
The Board of Directors
Tata Communications Limited

On the basis of the trail balance and other information and explanations provided to us by the
management, we have compiled the balance sheet of UNITED TELECOM LTD. (“the associate”™

registered in Kathmandu as at 31 March 2017 and the related statement of profit and loss for the
year then ended, attached herewith.

The management of the associate is responsible for:

a) Completeness and accuracy of the underlying data and complete disclosure of all material
and relevant information io the accountant;

b) Maintaining adequate accounting and other records and internal controls and selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies;

c) 'Preparation and presentation of financial statements in accordance with the applicabls laws
and regulations;

d) Establishing controls to safeguard the assets of the entity and preventing and detecting frauds

or other irregularities;

e) Establishing controls for ensuring that the activities of the entity are carried out in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations and preventing and detecting any non-compliance.

The compilation engagement was carried out by us in accordance with the Standards on Related
Services Engagements (ISRS 4410) “Engagements to Compile Financial Information”, issusd
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

This balance sneet and statement of profit and loss has been compiled by us for the purposs 'O'f
preparation of statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, basad on tial
palance and other information provided by the managerment.

3. United Telecom Limited
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The balance sheet and the statement of profit and loss are in agreement with the books of

account. We have not audited or reviewed these financial statements and accordingly express no
opinion thereon.

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 121750W / W-100010 / 250N
\“’*W ; i {-_‘ ':'*-Q-{,\; coantets )

(Vinodkumar Varma) \5-;‘-5_'-'7;"&'?6} o/

PARTNER Luie

Membership No. 105545

Place: Mumbai
Date: 03 May 2017
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UNITED TELECOM LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

Piietivilars Mute Ag ot 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
No. NPR INR® NPR INR*
{A) [ASSETS
(1) [MNon-gurrent assets
Property, plant and equipinent & - 294,545,182 188,083 465 712,508,205 445132 169
Capital work-m-progress 1.519.458 957,277 1,630,752 1,058,899
Other mtangible sssets i 16,846,933 10,613,568 38.128.011 24,020,647
316,911,603 199,654,310 732.717.008 4742117135
(2} |Current assets
Inventories 37,480,788 23,618,566 38,770 807 2423 609
Financiat assets
i) Trade recamvables 3 19,049,427 12,001,139 20,3585 536 12,845 408
(1) Cash and cash equivalent 4 3124068 1,968,163 1,667,396 1,050,460
(i) Other fnancial assets 3 586,764.005 369,661,323 1,000.806,363 630,508,009
646,427,287 407.249.191 1061634103 668 829 483
TOTAL ASSETS 963,338,890 606,903,501 1814350111 1,143,041 200
(B} JEQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) |E
Equity share capital ) & 3,827 300,000 2.411,199,000 3.572.400,000 2,250.612,000
Other equly 7 (3.403,410,812) (2,044, 148,812} 12,648 345,647} (1.608,583,454)
Total Equity 423,889,188 267,050,188 923.854.358 382,028,246
{2) | Nus-current labilities
Deferred tx liabilines {Net) 45,155,449 28,573,933 13,760 9935 22,320,427
45355449 28,573,933 33,760,993 22.529.427
(3) | Current liabilities
Financial labilities
(1) Trade payables 3 471,323,950 296,934,088 318,154,383 513437387
Onher current habibities 9 22,770,303 14,345,291 36,581,175 23.046,140
494,094,253 311,279.37% §5:4.735.758 538,483,327
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES B63.338, 5490 GU6,9403,501 181633111 1.145,040 200

*Exchunue e as 0 3 3

20ET L NPR = INR O3 (as ut 31 March 2016 | NPR = INR© 63 )
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UNITED TELECOM LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

i

Tax expenses

(1) Current tax expense/(benefit)
{11h Deterred tax cxpense/(benetin)
Mot tay expenses

Nute Current vear 2006-17 Asat 31 Mareh 2016
M. NPR INR® NR INIL*
i |Revenue from telecommunications services 10 YUY, 167.299 61,845,398 110574367 69,661,851
i |Other ncome i1 - - 1. 452,042 14,786
iV Total income {1 + ii) 95,167.29% 61,845,398 112,026,409 70,576,638
W |Expenses:
(i) Network and transmission expenses 12 474.990,016 299,243,710 304,362,607 317,748,442
(1) Employes benefits expenses 13 12,201,722 T.687.085 43.630.700 28747541
{ind Operating and other expenses 14 112,340,632 TU774.598 83,170,300 32,397 289
(1) Finanee costs 15 - - 22937233 14,450,457
1) Depreciaton and amortisation expenscs 253,500,098 159,705,062 136,100,757 85,745,477
Totul expenses #53,032.469 337,410,456 792,201,596 499087005
v (Profit before taxes (i -iv) (754,863,170 {475,563,057) {6BO1T3.18T} {428,510,363)

vi

Profit / (loss) for the year {v-vi)

(754,363,170)

(475.565,057)

(680,175,187)

{428,510,368)

“Exchanie rate as ot 31 March 2017 | NPR = INR 063 {as 2131 March 2016 1 NPR = INR 063 )
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UNITED TELECOM LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

1 Property, plant and equipment
Barkiaiare As at 31 March 2017 Asat 31 March 2016
NPR INK NPR INR
Gross block:
Land 9,406,115 5,925,852 9,406,113 5,925.452
Plant and machinery 1,787,710,234 1,126,257,447 1,970,016,137 1.241,110,166
Fumiture and fixtures 38,847,311 24,473,806 38,847,311 24,473,806
Computers 28,284,425 17,819,188 28,183,889 17,755,850
Office equipiment 73,770,355 47,735,323 73,708,990 47 696, 664
Vehicles 18,140,866 11,428,746 18,140,866 11,428 746
(a) 1,958,159,305 1,233,640,362 2,140,303,308 1,348,391,084
Accumulated depreciation;
Plant and machinery 1,511,257,063 952,091,950 1,296,731,835 §16,941,056
Furniture and fixtures 38,103,880 24,005,444 38,103,880 24,005 444
Computers ; 27,955,082 17,611,702 27,955,082 17,611,702
Office equipment 67.808.873 42,719,591 32,654 804 35,172,520
Vehicles 14,489,223 9,128.211 11,949,502 1.525.180
(b) 1,65%,614,123 1,045.556,898 1,427,395,103 899238915
|
Net block (i) - () 208,545,182 188,083,465 712,908,205 449,133,169 J
2 Other intangible assets
. As at 31 March 2017 Asat 31 March 2016
Particul;
R NPR INR NPR INR
Gross block:
License Fees 200,976,744 132,285,349 209,976,744
[at 209,976,744 132,285,349 : 200,976, 7-H
Accumulated amorfisation:
License Fees 193,129.811 121,671,781 171,848 733 FUB. 264,702
(b} 193,129,811 121,671,781 171.848.733 108,261,702
i Net bluck (- b} 10,840,933 1,613,568 38.128.0H1 24020647
3 Trade receivables
Pt As at 31 March 2017 Asat3 1 March 2016 i
N NPR INR NPR INR
Trade receivables 485,743,927 306,018,674 481 .4354.751 303.308,493
Provision lor doubtful debts (460,604,500} (294,017,535 (461.4065.215) {290,723 053]
Taotal 19,049,427 12,001,139 20,389,336 12,845,408
4 Cash and cash egquivalents
Puarticulars As at 31 March 2017 Mgt 31 March 2016
NER INR NPR INR
Balance with bank 3,124,008 1,968,163 1,667,396 1.030.460
Total 3,124,008 1,968,163 1,667,396 1,050,460
L] Current assets - other finar assets
T ] As at 31 March 2017 Asar3 | warch 20te
| NPR INR NPR INR
|
Secunity Deposit 176,953,458 L1 480679 392054, 1444 372981501
Onhers U8, 510,547 238,180,645 408,772,220 257,520,498
Total 386,704,005 369.061.323 000,806,363 630,308,009
6 Equity share capiral
Particulirs As at 31 March 2017 Asar 31 March 2016
3 NPR INR NER INE
Eguity share captal 3,827, 300,000 2,411, 194,000 3,572 400,000 225061 2.0uL
Total 3,427.300,000 2,411, 199,000 3,572,400,000 2.250.612,000
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1

Other Equity

Asar 3 Maveh 2017

Asat 31 March 2016

Furticulars - =
NFR INR NPR INK
Surplus / (Deticit)
Opening bakance (2,648,545,642) (1,668,583,754) (1.968,370,455) (1,290,073 387)
Profit/ (loss) for the year (754,865,170) (475,563,057} (680,175,187) (428,510,368)
Closing balance (3,403,410,812) (2,144,148,812) (2.648,543,642) (1,668.583.754)
Curyent liabilities - Trade payables
Particulars As a1 31 March 2017 Asat 3] March 2016
NPR INR NPR INR
Payable for capital and other supplics 471,323,950 296,934,088 §18.154.583 515,437,347
Tutal 471,323,950 296,934,088 818,154,583 513.437,387
Current liabilities - other current liabilities
Purticubivs As at 31 March 2017 Asat 31 March 2016 :
NPR INR NPR INR
Deferred revenue and advance from customers 22,770,303 14,345.291 36,581,175 23,046,140
Total 22,770.303 14,345,291 36,581,175 23,046,140

Revenue from uperations

Particulurs

Curreny year 2006-17

Asat 31 March 2010

NPR INR NER [NR
(LYt and voice revenug 98,167,294 61,845,398 110574367 69.061,451
Tural 94,167,299 61,845,398 I 10,574,367 69,601,851
Uther income
: Current vear 2016-17 Asat 31 March 2016
Particulars -
iy NPR INR NPR INR
Miscellancous meome = - 1,432,042 914,786
[Fom g 1.452.042 914,786
Tretwirk costs
B . T
Puarticulars Current veur 2006-17 : 4 Asat 31 March 2010 -
NPR INR NP N
Charges 1or use of mansmission facilities 474,990,016 299,243,710 504,362,007 J17. 748 442
Tutal 4749900146 209,243,710 514,362,607 317,748,442
Emplovee benefit expenses
Particulars Current vear 2006-17 Asat 31 March 2016
NFR INR NPR INR
Salares, bonus and ablowances 12,088,483 T.015,744 45,477,890 25.651,070
Sttt weliine expenses 113,234 71,341 152810 96.270
Tutal 11,201,722 7.087.085 43,630,700 2R 747341
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Ohher expenses

Particulars

Current year 2016-17

As at 31 March 2016

NPR INR NPR INR
1.878,174 1,183,249 13,358,632 3415938
Conununication expenses 2,876,304 1,812,072 3,029,842 1,908,801
Exchange (Gainy'Luoss -Met 44,388 17,965 76,263 48,046
Insurance expenses 1,617,131 1,018,793 4,682,870 2,950,208
Miscellaneous expenses 59,564,841 37,525,850 4,154,036 2,617,042
Printing and stationery 151.27% 158,306 434,237 273.569
Provision for doubtlul debts 5.229,285 3294450 6,834,215 4305535
Remt 17,659,253 11,125,329 21,791,678 13.728.757
Repairs and Mamtenance - 1T sy siems 7,032,801 4,430,665 9851, 144 5206221
Security charyes 12,277,040 7,734,535 11,374,714 7,166,070
Travelling and convevance expenses 3910.135 2,463,385 7,582,670 4.777.082
Total 112,340,632 70,774,598 83.170.300 52,397,280

Finuance costs
P'.Irriculmls Current year 2016-17 As at 31 March 2016

NPR INR NPR INR
Interest expenses % = 12,937,233 14,450,457
Total T P 12,937.233 14,450,457
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ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON COMPILATION OF UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To
The Board of Directors
Tata Communications Limited

On the basis of the accounting records and other information and explanations provided to us by
the management, we have compiled the balance sheet of Smart ICT Services Private Limited
("the associate”) registered in India as at 31 March 2017 and the related staternent of profit and
loss for the year then ended, attached herewith.

The management of the associate is responsible for:

a) Completeness and accuracy of the underlying data and complete disclosure of all material

and relevant information to the accountant;

0) Maintaining adequate accounting and other records and internal controls and selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies;

¢} Preparation and preséntaiion of financial statements in accordance with the applicable laws

and regulations, if any;

d) Establishing controls to safeguard the assets of the entity and preventing and detecting frauds
or other irregularities;

e) Establishing controls for ensuring that the activities of the entity are carried out in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations and preventing and detecting any non-cormpliance.

The compilation engagement was carried out by us in accordance with the Standards on Related
Services Engagements (ISRS 4410) “Engagements to Compile Financial Information”, issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

This balance sheet and statement of profit and loss has been compiled by us for the purpose of
preparation of statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, based on trial
balance and other information provided by the management.

4. Smart ICT Services Private Limited
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The balance sheet and the statement of profit and loss are in agreement with the books of

account. We have not audited or reviewed these financial statements and accordingly express no
opinion thereon.

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 121750W / W-100010
. |

-3
o =4
(Vinodkumar Varma) TR
PARTNER / o
Membership No. 105545 113/
Place Mumbai '\J‘\ R
Date: 03 May 2017 \}ff
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SMART ICT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

Pivticalars Note | Asat31 March 2017
No. INR
(A) |ASSETS
(1) |Non-current assets
Financial assets
(1) Other financial assets 1 9,713
Non current tax asset 8,368
18,081
(2) |Current assets
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 2 1,706,492
(ii) Cash and cash equivalent 3 234,636
Other current assets 4 410,171
2,351,299
TOTAL ASSETS 2,369,380
(B) |[EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) |Equity
Equity share capital 5 500,000
Other equity 6 (8,452,725)
Total Equity (7,952,725)
(2) |Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Other financial liabilitics 7 8,350,000
8,350,000
(2) |Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Trade pavables 8 1,366,277
Other current liabilities 9 605,828
1,972,105
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,369,380
ZaANA N
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SMART ICT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

; Note | Current year 2016-17
Particulars No. INR
i |Revenue from telecommunications services 10 2,024,839
i |Other Income 11 6,863
iii |Total income (i + ii) 2,031,702
iv  |Expenses:
(i) Network and transmission expenses 12 1,601,001
(i1) Operating and other expenses 13 1,228,513
(111) Finance costs 14 679
Total expenses 2,830,193
v |Profit before taxes (iii - iv) (798,491)
vi |Tax expenses
(1) Current tax expense/(benefit) .
(1) Deferred tax expense/(benefit) 3
Net tax expenses =
vii | Profit/ (loss) for the year (v-vi) (798,491)

4. Smart ICT Services Private Limited

65



SMART ICT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

1

Non-current assets - financial assets - other financial assets

Particulars As at 31 March 2017
INR
Vendor deposits 9,713
Total 9,713
Trade receivables
o As at 31 March 2017
articulars INR
Trade receivables 1,706,492
Total 1,706,492

Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

INR

Balance with bank

234,636

Total

234,636

Current assets - other assets

Particelars

As at 31 March 2017

INR

Indirect tax receivable

410,171

Total

410,171

Equity share capital

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

INR

Equity share capital

500,000

Total

500,000
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SMART ICT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

10

Other Equity

As at 31 March 2017

Particulars INR
Surplus / (Deficit)
Opening balance - (7,654,234)
Profit / (loss) for the year (798,491)
Closing balance (8,452,725)

Non-current liabilitics - other financial liabilities

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

INR

Preference Share Capital

8,350,000

Total

8,350,000

Current liabilities - Trade payables

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

INR

Trade payable

1,366,277

Total

1,366,277

Current liabilities - other current liabilities

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

INR
Deferred revenue and advance from customers 312,763
Other Statutory dues 293,065
Total 605,828

Revenue from operations

Particulars

Current year 2016-17

INR

Managemen: consultancy Services

2,024,839

Total

2,024,839
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SMART ICT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

11

13

Other income

Particulars

Current year 2016-17

INR

Interest income - others

6,863

Total

6,863

Network costs

Particulars

Current year 2016-17

INR

Charges for use of transmission facilities

1,601,001

Total

1,601,001

Other expenses -

Current year 2016-17

Particulars INR
Auditors remuneration 22,500
Communication expenses 2,341
Directors fees 400,000
Legal and professional fees 769,000
Miscellaneous expenses 24,426
Printing and stationery 675
Travelling and conveyance expenses 9,571
Total 1,228,513

Finance costs

Particulars

Current year 2016-17

INR

Interest expenses

679

Total

679
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Lrang & Associaie

ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON COMPILATION OF UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To
The Board of Directors
Tata Communications Limited

On the basis of the trail balance and other information and explanations provided to us by the
management, we have compiled the balance sheet of Tata Communications International Pia.
Ltd. (“the subsidiary”) registered in Singapore as at 31 March 2017 and the related statement of
profit and loss for the year then ended. attached herewith,

The management of the subsidiary is responsible for:
a) Completeness and accuracy of the underlying data and complete disclosure of all material
and relevant information to the accountant:

D) Maintaining adequate accounting and cther records and internal controls and selecting and
applying appropriate accounting poiicies;

¢) Preparation and presentation of financial statements in accordance with the applicable laws
and regulations;

d) Establishing controls to safeguard the assets of the entity and preventing and detecting frauds
or other irregularities;

e)

Establishing controls for ensuring that the activities of the entity are carried out in a;cordance
with the applicable laws and regulations and preventing and detecting any non-compliance.
The compilation engagement was carried out by us in accordance with the Standa_rds on Related
Services Engagements (ISRS 4410) “Engagements to Compile Financial Information”, issusd by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

This balance sheet and statement of profit and loss has been compiled by us for the purpose _o-f
preparation of statement pursuant-to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, based on trial
balance and other information provided by the management.
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The balance sheet and the statement of profit and loss are in agreement with the books of

account. We have not audited or reviewed these financial statements and accordingly express no
opinion thereon.

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 121750W / W-100010

\.'I‘J
N W
(Vinodkumar Varma)
PARTNER
Membership No. 105545

Place Mumbai
Date: 03 May 2017
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Tata Communications International Pte, Ltd.

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

Particilare Note As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2(?16
No. USD INR* UsD INR*
(A)|ASSETS
(1) [Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1 50,910,881 3,305,134,395 100,100 462 6,631.655.608
Capital work-in-progress 2,899,484 188,234,501 2,685229 177,896,421
Other intangible assets 2 702,029 45,575,722 260,875 17,680,469
Intangible assets under development - - 95,199 6,306,934
Investments in subsidiaries & associates 3 225,991,565 14,671,372,399 192,503,193 12,753,336,536
Financial assets
(i) Loans 4 78,136,781 5,072,639,823 77,178,276 5,113,060,785
(11) Other financial assets ¥ 134,500 8,731,740 141,625 9,382 656
Non current tax asset - = 140,013 9,275,861
Other non-current assets o 7,701,321 499,969,759 8,399,261 556,451,041
366,476,561 23,791,658,339 381,510,133 | 25,275,046,311
(2) |Current asszis
Financiul assets
(1) Trade receivables 7 26,876,224 1,744,804,462 31,180,372 2,065,699,645
(11) Cash and cash equivalent 8 12,322,463 799,974,298 1,497,574 99214278
(ii1) Other financial assets 9 522,290 33,907,066 197,513 13,085,236
Other current assets 10 4,125,683 267,839,340 4.543.025 300,975 407
43,846,660 2,846,525,166 37,418 484 2,478,974 ,566
TOTAL ASSETS 410,323,221 26,638,183,505 418,928,617 | 27,754,020,877
(B)|EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) | Equity
Equity share capital 11 191,102,863 12,406,397,866 110,810,000 7.341,162,500
Other equity 12 (92,990,802) (6,036,962,869) (428,553,094)] (28,391,642477)
Total Equity 98,112,061 6,369,434,997 (317.743,094)] (21,050,479,977)
(2} |Non-current liabilities
Financial habilities
(1) Borrowings 13 42,884,439 2,784,057,780 19,595 800 1,298.221,750
(1) Other financial liabilities 14 33,597,596 2,181,155,932 38.873.264 2,575,353,740
Provisions 15 9,108,655 591,333,483 9,990,073 661,842 336
Other non current liabilities { Deferred revenue) 57,140,510 3,709,561,909 62,340,660 4,130,068,725
142,731,200 9,266,109,504 130,799,797 8.665,480,551
(3) |Current liaviiities
Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings 16 88,498,279 5,745,308,273 461,192 359 30,553,993,784
(1) Trade payables 17 42,483,205 2,758,009,668 24,534 321 1,625,398,766
(iii) Other financial liabilities I8 21,046,723 1,366,353,258 102.863.589 6814712772
Other current habilities 19 16,488,410 1,070,427,577 16,845,420 1.116,009.075
Provisions 20 470,700 30,557,844 436,225 28,899 906
Current tax liabilities (Net) 492,643 31,982,384 - -
169,479,960 11,002,639,004 605,871,914 | 40,139,014,303
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 410,323,221 26,638,183,505 418,928,617 27,754 ,020,877

*Exchange rate asat 31 March 2017 1 USD = INR 64.92 (asat 31 March 2016 1 USD = INR 66,25 )
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Tata Communications international Ple. Lid.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Nute No.

Current year 2016-17

Previous year 2013-16

Particulars UsD INR* usD INR*
A JCONTINUING OPERATION
{ 5 498 7.121,743,018
i |Revenue from telecommunications services 21 142,814,006 9.271,485,270 107,498,008
it [Other Income 22 3,033,346 196,924,823 2,730,077 180,567,601
iii |Total income (i + i) 145,847,352 | 9,468,410,093 | 110228085 |  7.302,610,619
iv |Expenses: b S el
2 3 47 228 54 ) 4 672
{1} Newwork and transmission expenses 23 78,608,497 5,103,263,626 47,228,599 4. —‘\‘-' ‘_" :
(1) Employee benefits expenses 24 23,539,014 1,528,152,790 16,604,636 1 100057153
(it} 0p-cl'am1g und other expenses 25 27,074,326 1,757,665,245 29,900,878 1,980,953.146
{iv) Finance costs 26 20,678,617 1.342,455,816 16,225,213 1074 920,33
) -
: 460,43 759,253,543
(v) Depreciation and amortisation expenses 9,744,606 632,619,822 I, 100.4:[ ; 5 _’ 5
(vi) Stafl’ optimisation cost 336,318 21,833,765 1,049 828 69,551,105
(vii) Allowance for loans receivables (33,270,020) (2,159,889,698)) 128,942,800 S,)-flAéU,JE_PO
Total expenses 126,711,358 8.226,101,366 251,412,384 16,636,070.450
v |Profit before taxes (i - iv) 19,135,994 1,242,308,727 | (141,184.299)] (9,353 459.831)
Vi Tax expenses 3
i = 1,060,938
(13 Current tax sxpense/{benetit
(1) Deferred tax expensal/(benefit = - o - SRR AR
Net:tax expenses i & 1,060,938 70,287,145
Net tax expense
vii | Profit/ (loss) for the year (v-vi) 19,135,994 1,242,308,727 | (142.245237) (9423, 746,974)
B |DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
| - »
i |"otis (loss) before excepional item and tax from discontinued operations 8,252,932 335,780,345 o6 310 SE =y
U pegsanment Juss on goodwill - ) )
i |Proficon disposal of subsidiaries 109,661,846 019,247,042 =
v | Profit f{luss) from discontinued operations (before fax) (i) 117,914,778 7,635,U27,3488 1400310 97145060
Tax expense on discontinued operations z = = e
550175 66,310 97 143,001
Vi | Profit/{loss) from discontinued uprerations {iv-v) 117,914,778 7,655.017,348 1.366,3 10 3 Vel
C _[Profiti{loss) for the year 137,050,772 8,897,336,115 (140.778,927) r‘i._:_lq.(ﬁ):\‘;’l 1)

“Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 USD = INR 6492 (as at 31 March 2016 | USD = INR 66.25 )
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

I Property, plant and equipment

TRAEEIERIMIBL SILINIEED BRELK D BB LIVIED B EC. LaRU.

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

2 Other intangible assets

Particulars USh INR Uso INR
Gross block:

Lease held improvement 2.957.571 192,005,509 38,340,802 2.540.078.133
Cables 50,085,449 5,199,147,349 75478877 3.000,475 601
Plant and machinery 56,262,278 3.652,547,088 75602275 3.008.650.719
AFurmiture and fixtures 97,889 6,354,954 . 158,126 10,475,848
Computers 2,112.231 137,126,037 3,466,107 229 629 389
Office equipment 334,765 21,732,944 568 485 57,537,131
(a) 141,850,183 9,208,913,881 193,914 672 12,846,847 021

|Accumulated depreciation:
Lease hold improvement 1,335,005 86,668,525 7.772.430 514,923 488
Cables 49,222,861 3,195,548,136 44 604 023 2,955,016,524
Plant and machinery 38,120,146 2,474,759 878 37.933.077 2.513.066,351
Furniture and fixtures 611,339 3,930,192 64 384 4.396.690
Compuiers 1,593.310 122,914,075 2986432 197.851.120
Office equipment 307,435 19,958,680 448,864 29,737,240
(b} 90,939,502 5,903,779,486 93,814,210 6,215,191.413
Net hlock () - (b) 50,910,881 3,305,134,395 100,100,462 6,631,655,608

As at 31 March 2017

Asar 31 March 2016

FREBlIE USD INR USD INR
Gross block:
Computer software 2,703,960 175,541,083 2,034,652 134,793 693
Lo} 2,703,960 175,541,083 2034652 134,795 695
Accumulated amortisation:
Computer software 2,001,931 129,965,361 1767777 117,115,226
(k) 2,001,931 129,965,361 1,767,777 117,113.226
Net block () - () 702,029 l 45,575,722 266,875 17.680.469

Tovestments in subsidiaries & assovintes

As ot 31 March 2017

Asat 31 March 2016

ERcheihon £Sh INR usb | INR
Investments in subsidiaries 203,387,020 13,203,885,338 203,126,193 13.457,110.286
Impairment of investment in subsidiaries (10,623,000) (689,645,160) (10,623,000) (703.773.750)
Investments in associates 33,227,545 2,157,132,221 -
Total 123,991,365 14,671,372,399 1925035, 193 12,733.336.5336

4 Non-current assets - financial assets - loans

Loan to others

56,369,786

3,659,326,507

Particulars Asoat 31 Mareh 2007 “Asal 31 March 2016

USD INK UsD INR
Inter company loans given 492,641,130 J1.985,508,160 381372451 38.515.923.554
Allowances for loan receivables (470,924,133))  (30,372,394,844)) (304194 155)| (33.402,862,769)

Tutal

78,136,781

5,072.639.523

7778276

3.113.060,783
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ESDED 31 MARCH 2017

5 Non-currvent assets - financial assets - other financial assets

Particulars As at 31 Mareh 2017 Asat 31 March 2016

USD INR UsD INR
Vendor deposits 134,500 8,731,740 141,625 9,382,656
Total 134,500 8,731,740 141,625 9,382,636

6 Non-current assets - others

Particulars AS at 31 March 2017 Asar 3l March 2016

usp INR Usp INR
Prepaid expenses 7,701,321 499,964,759 8,399,261 336,431,041
Total 7,701,321 499,969,759 8,399,261 556,451,041

Trade receivables

8 As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Particulurs - T
Lsp INR Uso INR
Trade 1eceivables 28,413,265 1,844,589,164 28,86:H,024 1.912,24 1,590
Intercompany receivables - - 3270 714 216,684,303
Provision for doubtlul debis (1,537,041) (99,784,702) (954,300} (63,226,748)
Total 26,876,224 1,744,804,462 31,180,372 2.063,6U0 645

8 Cash and cash equivalents

) T As at 31 March 2017 Asal3l March2016 |
Particulars - = 3
USD INR USD INR
Cash in nand 100,438 6,521,733 - =
Balance with bank 12,222,005 793,452,565 1497574 99,214,278
Total 12,322,463 799,974,298 1497574 Y9 214278

9 Current assets - other financial assets

) Asat 3l March 2017 Asat 31 March 2016
Particulars : 7 ==}
Usb INR UsD (i
Security Deposit 245 15905 243 16,231
Advances o employees 18,034 1,170,767 189,991 12.586.904
interest Recervable 313,166 20,330,737 -
Others 190,845 12,389,657 7277 482 11
Total 522,290 33,907,066 197,513 13,085.236
1 Current assets - other assets
o Asat31 March 2017 Asat 31 March 2016
Particutars
1ISD INR Usn iNE
Advances to Vendors | Suppliers 3,000 324,600 36,U3y 2,587 384
Prepaid expenses 4,120,683 267,514,740 4390111 200 844,854
Indireet tax receivable - — 116,875 7. ST
Total 4,125,683 267,839,340 4,543,025 144,275,407
5. Tata Communications International Pte. Ltd. :
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NOTES TOTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

I Equity share capital

. As at 31 March 2017 Asat 31 March 2016
Particulars :
Usp INR usp INR
Equity share capital 191,102,863 12,406,397,866 110,810,000 7,341,162 500
Total 191,102,863 12,406,397,866 110,810,000 7,341,162 ,500
12 Other Equity
) As at 31 March 2017 Asat 31 March 2016
Particulars w
UsD INR s INR
Surplus [ (Deficit)
Opening balance (428,553,094)] {27,821,666,862)| (313,633,892)] (20,910,745,345)
Profit / {loss) for the year 137,050,772 8,897.336,115 | (140,778,927 (9,326,603,914)
Closing balance (291,502,322 (18,924,330,747)| (456412819)] (30,237,349.259)
Share premium 232,046,371 15,064,450, 405 = #
Compulsory convertible preference shares (30,955,250) (2.009,614,830) 30935250 2.050,785.313
classified as equity
Dividend (2,579,601 ) (167,467,697) (3,093,523 (205.,078.531)
Totai (92,990,802) (6,036,962,86%) (428.5333.004)] 28,391.642477)

i3 Non-current liabilities - borrowings

As at 31 March 2017

Asat 31 March 2016

Particulars ==
usb INR usp INR
Loun trom banks 42,884 434 2,784,057,780 19,395 800 1,298 221,750
o Total 42,884 439 2,784,057,780 19,345 50t 1:298.221,750

L Nonecnrrent liabilities - other financinl labilities

As at 31 March 2017

Az at 31 March 2016

Particulars -
UsSD INR usD INR
Dividend payable 33,461,000 2,172,288.120 30,881,399 2.045,892.684
Lease equalisation 136,396 8.867.812 7991 863 329 461.056
Total 33,397,596 2,181,155,932 38,873,264 2,575.353.740

15 Non-current labifities - provisions

As at 31 March 2017

Asat 31 March 2016

Particulars
iculars UsD INR UsD INR
Asset retirement obligation and others 7.976,991 517,866,250 9,644,952 639309320
Retenion habiliy 1,131,004 73,407,627 340,121 21,533,016
Total 9,108,655 391,333,883 9.990.073 B61,842 336

o Current habihities - borrowines

As at 31 March 2017

Asat 31 March 2016

Particulars — —— -
usb INR usb INR
Loan from bank 40,000,000 2,396.500,000 §3.000.000 4.306,250,000
|ln[n.-: company loans taken 45,498,279 3.148,508,273 396,192,359 26.247,743.784
I Ptk §8,498,279 3,745,308,273 461,192,359 30,553,993,784
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

17 Current liabilities - Trade payables

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

Particulars
g UsDh INR USD INR
Trade pavable 26,159,694 1,698,287.334 24534321 1.625 398,766
Inter Company - Payables 16,323,511 1,059,722,334 - +
Total 42,483,205 2,758,009,668 24,534 321 1,625,398.766

18 Current Habilities - other financial liabilities

As at 31 March 2017

Asat 31 March 2016

Farticulars USD INR USD INR
Current portion of long term loans 16,731,340 1,086,198,593 89 493 482 5,928.943,183
Deposit from customers and contractors 1,166,862 75,752,681 192,580 12,738,425
Interest acerued but not due 3,000,604 194,799,212 6471.211 428,717,729
Dervative Liabilities 147,917 9,602,772 6,706,316 444,293 435
Total 21,046,723 1,366,353,258 102,863 589 6.814,712.772

19 Current linbilities - other current liabilities

As at 31 March 2017

Asat 31 March 2016

Farticulars UsD INR ) NR
Delerrad revenue and advance from 11,083,894 719,566,398 | 11424012 756,840,795
customers
Other Emplovee dues 4,894,760 317,767,819 3418976 359,007 160
Cither Statutory dues 500,889 32,517,714 =
(nhers 8867 575,646 2432 161,120
Total 16,488,410 1,070,427,577 16,845,420 L 116,008,075

20 Current linbilitics - provisons

Particulirs

Asat 31 March 2017

Asat 31 March 20156

UsD INR S0 INR
Leave cnitlement 470,700 30,557 844 436,225 28,899 9006
Fotal 470,700 30,557,844 436,225 25,899,906

21 Revenue from operations

Current year 2016-17

Previgus year 2013-16

Particulars
Usp INR Ush INR
Data and vorce revenue 142,814,006 9,271,485.270 107 498,008 7421743018
Manugement consultancy Services = 5 -
Total 142,814.606 9,271,485,270 107 498 08 712174318

22 Otherncome

Current year 2016-17

Previous vear 2015-16

Particulars Usb INR UsD INR
Interest inwome - others 326,063 21,168,010 -
Interest vn loun to subsidiaries 348374 22,616,440 310,200 33,800,750
Prefit onsule ol laed ussers H 63
m sale of investments - = E
Met 497,310 920,636 60,992,135
W 1,861,592 35 1.294% 241 86,07 1,?!’.\'
3,033,340 196,924,823 3730077 180,867,601
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

253 Network and transmission expenses

) Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2013-16
Particulars
usp INR usp INR
Charges for use of transmission facilities 78,558,316 5,100,005,875 47,110,677 3,121,082,339
Rent of satellite channels 50,181 3,257,751 117,922 7.812,333
Total 78,608,497 3,103,263,626 47,228,599 3,128,894 672
24 Employee benefit expenses
Particulars Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
Usp INR uso INR
Salaries, bonus and allowances 22,330,792 1,449,715,017 15,493 982 1.026,476.289
Comiribution to provident and other funds 983,030 63,818,308 865,270 37,324,110
Staff weltare expenses 225,192 14,619,465 245383 16,256,734
|_T|Jtn| 23,539,014 1,528,152,790 16,604,636 1,100,057,133
25 Operating and other expenses
Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
Particulars r - 2 -
: Usb INIK usp INR
Adverusing and publicity 1,072,439 69,622,740 1,043,478 69,130,418
Auditors remuneration 30,374 3,270,280 36,946 3,772,673
Bad debts - - 1,410,064 93,416,738
Communication expenses 236,894 16,677,538 440,482 28.181,935
CSR expenses L 30,199 1,960,519 = -
Directors tees 73.887 4,796,744 47935 377019
Donations - - 42 466 2813373
Electricity 931,143 61,748,204 1046448 69,327,208
Entertainment expenses 39,199 3,843,199 38,059 3.836.588
Insurance expenses 27,364 1,776,471 29,078 1926410
IT consumables 39,150 2,541,618 29,629 1,962,916
Legal and professional tees (590,602) (38,341,882) 2343315 155 244,651
Muscellaneous expenses 4,219,487 273,929,094 4.825.412 319,683 362
Printing and stationery 38,183 2,478,840 43,281 1,867,392
Provision for doubttul debts 572716 37,180,723 (1,230,761 {81,537 830)
Rates und Taxes 238,133 16,757,994 406,369 264935223
Recruiment ExRpenses 363.318 36,570,605 4949 368 33.083.130
Reloeation Expense 91,644 5,949,528 147.858 9,795,393
Rent 603,060 39,150,053 359,644 23 8206400
Repars and Maintenance 14,275,386 926,758,039 14,834,298 982.772.218
- Plant & Machinery
Repairs and Maintenance -Building 4,280 277,858 1917 126,983
Seminars, trainings and conferences 219,758 14,915,889 282,737 18,731,349
Services rendered by agencies 2,039,432 132,399,925 889 380 38,934 644
Sundry balances written oft = = b.454 427,578
Travelling and conveyance expenses 2,208,882 143,400,619 2,256,559 149,497,019 |
Totul - 27,074,326 1,737,663,243 29,900,878 | 1,980,933, 146

26 Finance costs

Guaraniee fees

1,743,829

113,339,219

Current year 2016-17 Previous vear 2015-16
Particulars = y
Usp INR UspD INE
[nterest expenses 15,932,788 1,229,116,397

|, 446,441 187

[371,520,3306)

Totad

20,678,617

1,342,455,810

1074920331
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Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON COMPILATION OF UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To
The Board of Directors
Tata Communications Limited

On the basis of the trail balance and other information and explanations provided to us by the
management, we have compiled the balance sheet of Tata Communications Lanka Limited
(“the subsidiary”) registered in Colombo as at 31 March 2017 and the related statement of profit
and loss for the year then ended, attached herewith.

The management of the subsidiary is responsible for:

a) Completeness and accuracy of the underlying data and complete disclosure of all material
and relevant information to the accountant;

b) Maintaining adequate accounting and other records and internal controls and selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies;

c) Preparation and presentation of financial statements in accordance with the applicable laws
and regulations;

d) Establishing controls to safeguard the assets of the entity and preventing and detecting frauds
or other irregularities;

e) Establishing controls for ensuring that the activities of the entity are carried out in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations and preventing and detecting any non-compliance.

The compilation engagement was carried out by us in accordance with the Standards on Related
Services Engagements (ISRS 4410) “Engagements to Compile Financial Information”, issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

This balance sheet and statement of profit and loss has been compiled by us for the purpose of
preparation of statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, based on trial
balance and other information provided by the management.

6. Tata Communications Lanka Limited




Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

The balance sheet and the statement of profit and loss are in agreement with the books of
account. We have not audited or reviewed these financial statements and accordingly express no
opinion thereon.

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 121750W / W-100010
\\)
J

JoXrTZ=
(Vinodkumar Varma)

PARTNER
Membership No. 105545

Place Mumbai
Date: 03 May 2017
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Tata Communications Lanka Limited

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

Particulars Note As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
No. USD INR* USD INR*
(A) |ASSETS
(1) [Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1 1,315,869 85,426,195 1,607,941 106,526,097
Capital work-in-progress 16,999 1,103,578 41,921 2,777,246.38
Other intangible assets 2 549,209 35,654,678 16,436 1,088,915
Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 3 33 2,169 33 2,213
Other non-current assets 4 186,030 12,077,090 292,117 19,352,756
2,068,141 134,263,710 1,958,448 129,747,228
(2) |Current assets
Inventories 203,370 13,202,778 199,876 13,241,808.85
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 5 3,711,793 240,969,596 6,683,375 442,773,598
(ii) Cash and cash equivalent 6 9,791,821 635,685,002 11,474,532 760,187,744
(iii) Other financial assets 7 69,187 4,491,623 74,625 4,943,924
Other current assets 8 316,033 20,516,858 733,304 48,581,383
14,092,204 914,865,857 19,165,713 1,269,728,458
TOTAL ASSETS 16,160,345 1,049,129,567 | 21,124,160 1,399,475,685
(B) EQ[JIT\’ AND LIABILITIES
(1) |Equity |
Equity share capital 9 1,197,348 77,731,817 1,197,348 79,324,289
Other equity 10 11,997,930 778,905,604 12,829,220 849,935,892
Total Equity 13,195,278 856,637,420 14,026,568 929,260,181
(2) |Non-current liabilities
Provisions 11 9,774 634,527 9,774 647,526
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 239,069 15,520,339 235,849 15,625,011
248,843 16,154,865 245,623 16,272,537
(3) [Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
'(i) Borrowings 12 - E 10 663
(ii) Trade payables 13 2,202,000 142,953,814 6,337,393 419,852,288
(ii) Other financial liabilities 14 6,476 420,420 5,868 388,763
Other current liabilities 15 434,307 28,195,207 436,042 28,887,775
Provisions 16 73,442 4,767,840 72,656 4,813,480
! 2,716,224 176,337,281 6,851,969 453,942,967
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES i 16,160,345 1,049,129,567 21,124,160 1,399.475,685

*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 USD = INR 64.92 (as at 31 March 2016 1 USD = INR 66.25 )
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Tata Communications Lanka Limited

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Particul Note Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
§ ar.
O No. USD INR* USD INR*
i |Revenue from telecommunications services 17 15,240,879 989,437,843 | 23,204,454 1,537,295,060
ii |Other Income 18 535,969 34,795,105 374,372 24,802,155
iii | Total income (i + ii) 15,776,848 1,024,232,947 23,578,826 1,562,097,215
iv [Expenses:
(i) Network and transmission expenses 19 9,607,791 623,737,765 17,903,930 1,186,135,348
(ii) Employee benefits expenses 20 686,797 44,586,872 699,771 46,359,829
(iii) Operating and other expenses 21 1,477,860 95,942,660 1,664,122 1 10,248,079
(iv) Depreciation and amortisation expenses 468,977 30,445,969 467,407 30,965,682
Total expenses 12,241,424 |. 794,713,266 20,735,229 1,373,708,938
v |Profit before taxes (iii-iv) 3,535,423 229,519,681 2,843,597 188,388,277
Vi |Tax expenses
(i) Current tax expense/(benefit) 181,158 11,760,748 118,565 7,854,961
(i) Deferred tax expense/(benefit) 3,219 209,007 228 15,098
Net tax expenses ]84,377 11,969,755 1 18,793 7,870,059
vii | Profit/ (loss) for the year (v-vi) 3,351,046 217,549,926 2,724,803 180,518,217

*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 USD = INR 64.92 (as at 31 March 2016 1 USD =INR 66.25 )
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Tata Communications Lanka Limited

Property, plant and equipment

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR uSD INR
Gross block:
Plant and machinery 3,225,855 209,422,512 3,226,353 213,745,917
Furniture and fixtures 94,840 6,157,025 96,560 6,397,070
Computers 223,495 14,509,294 188,648 12,497,921
Office equipment 40,425 2,624,403 45214 2,995,454
(a) 3,584,615 232,713,234 3,556,775 235,636,362
Accumulated depreciation:
Plant and machinery 2,069,307 134,339,386 1,793,610 118,826,675
Furniture and fixtures 40,136 2,605,654 28,320 1,876,205
Computers 134,012 8,700,053 115,622 7,659,954
Office equipment 25,292 1,641,947 11,282 747,431
(b) 2,268,747 147,287,040 1,948,834 129,110,265
Net block (a) - (b) 1,315,869 85,426,195 1,607,941 106,526,097
Other intangible assets
. As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Particulars
USD INR USD INR
Gross block:
Computer software 16,436 1,067,054 16,436 1,088,915
License Fees 823,656 53,471,741 - -
(a) 840,092 54,538,795 16,436 1,088,915
Accumulated amortisation:
Computer software 13,861 899,860 - -
License Fees 277,022 17,984,257 - -
(b) 290,883 18,884,117 - -
Net block (a) - (b) 549,209 35,654,678 16,436 1,088,915

Non-current assets - financial assets - other financial assets

'

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR UsSD INR
Vendor deposits 33 2,169 33 2,213
Total 33 2,169 33 2,213
Non-current assets - others

Particulars As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

USD INR UsSD INR
Advance Income tax Paid 181,282 11,768,828 292,117 19,352,756
Others 4,748 308,262 - -
Total 186,030 12,077,090 19,352,756

6. Tata Communications Lanka Limited
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Tata Communications Lanka Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

w

Trade receivables

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR usSD INR
Trade receivables 2,204,423 143,111,111 2,227,893 147,597,927
Intercompany receivables 1,709,815 111,001,204 4,698,540 311,278,302
Provision for doubtful debts (202,445) (13,142,719) (243,059) (16,102,632)
Total 3,711,793 240,969,596 6,683,375 442,773,598

Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

P ot -

i USD INR USD INR

Balance with bank 9,791,821 635,685,002 11,474,532 760,187,744
Total 9,791,821 635,685,002 11,474,532 760,187,744

Current assets - other financial assets

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

Particulars
USD INR uUSD INR
Security Deposit 36,242 2,352,803 38,124 2,525,743
Interest Receivable 32,945 2,138,819 36,501 2,418,181
Total 69,187 4,491,623 74,625 4,943,924

Current assets - other assets

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR USD INR
Advances to Vendors / Suppliers 4,767 309,459 20,007 1,325,481
Salary Advances 204 13,229 320 21,204
Prepaid expenses 110,143 7,150,473 712,977 47,234,698
Service Tax receivable 200,920 13,043,697 - -
Total 316,033 20,516,858 733,304 48,581,383

Equity share capital

\

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR usD INR
Equity share capital 1,197,348 71,731,817 1,197,348 79,324,289
Total 1,197,348 77,731,817 1,197,348 79,324,289

Other Equity

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

Particulars
USD INR USD INR

Surplus / (Deficit)

Opening balance 12,829,220 832,872,974 11,238,695 744,563,561
Profit / (loss) for the year 3,351,046 217,549,926 2,724,803 180,518,217
Closing balance 16,180,266 1,050,422,900 13,963,498 925,081,778
Dividend (4,182,337) (271,517,296) (1,134,278) (75,145,886)
Total 11,997,930 778,905,604 12,829,220 849,935,892
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Tata Communications Lanka Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

11

12

16

Non-current liabilities - provisions

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD

INR

usD

INR

Asset retirement obligation and others

9,774

634,527

9,774

647,526

Total

9,774

634,527

9,774

647,526

Current liabilities - Borrowings

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR usSD INR
Book overdraft - 10 663
Total - - 10 663
Current liabilities - Trade payables
: As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Particulars
USD INR usD INR
Trade Payables 2,202,000 142,953,814 6,337,393 419,852,288
Total 2,202,000 142,953,814 6,337,393 419,852,288
Current liabilities - other financial liabilities
Parficl As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
articular:
o USD INR USD INR
Others 6,476 420,420 5,868 388,763
Total 6,476 420,420 5,868 388,763
Current liabilities - other current liabilities
. As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Particulars
USD INR uUsD INR
Deferred revenue and advance tfrom customers 129,857 8,430,334 161,202 10,679,607
Accrued Payroll 84,330 5,474,731 82,025 5,434,182
Other Statutory dues 220,099 14,288,845 192,815 12,773,985
Others 20 1,297 - -
Total 434,307 28,195,207 436,042 28,887,775
Current liabilities - provisons
i d As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Particulars
USD INR usD INR
[
Leave entitlement 43,104 2,798,335 29,950 | 1,984,207
(Provision for Gratuity Funded 30,337 1,969,505 42,706 2,829,273
|Total 73,442 4,767,840 72,656 4,813,480
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Tata Communications Lanka Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

17

20

21

Revenue from operations

Particulars

Current year 2016-17

Previous year 2015-16

USD INR USD INR
Data and voice revenue 15,240,879 989,437,843 23,204,454 1,537,295,060
Total 15,240,879 989,437,843 23,204,454 1,537,295,060

Other income

Current year 2016-17

Previous year 2015-16

Particulars
USD INR USD INR
Interest income - others 368,946 23,951,944 216,079 14,315,246
Profit on sale of fixed assets 492 31,926 40,497 2,682,928
Provision for Doubtful Debts write back 40,614 2,636,645 - -
Miscellaneous income 125,918 8,174,591 117,796 7,803,980
Total 535,969 34,795,105 374,372 24,802,155

Network costs

Particulars’

Current year 2016-17

Previous year 2015-16

USD INR USD INR
Charges for use of transmission facilities 9,607,791 623,737,765 17,903,930 1,186,135,348
Total 9,607,791 623,737,765 17,903,930 1,186,135,348

Employee benefit expenses

Particulars Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
USD INR uUSD INR
Salaries, bonus and allowances 572,309 37,154,305 583,303 38,643,856
Contribution to provident and other funds 78,326 5,084,907 72,154 4,780,179
Staff welfare expenses 36,162 2,347,660 44314 2,935,795
Total 686,797 44,586,872 699,771 46,359,829

Other expenses

Current year 2016-17

Previous year 2015-16

Particulars
USD INR USD INR

Advertising and publicity 4,511 292,829 33,351 2,209,493
Auditors remuneration 8,166 530,167 4,876 323,010
Bad debts Written off 21,030 1,365,267 - =

Communication expenses 13,109 851,058 20,024 1,326,585
Directors fees 1,980 128,548 2,458 162,823
Donations 909 59,021 - =

Electricity 81,829 5,312,326 74,895 4,961,789
Entertainment expenses 749 48,606 1,572 104,122
Exchange (Gain)/Loss -Net 50,196 3,258,715 84,229 5,580,180
Insurance expenses 5,853 379,948 8,106 537,045
Legal and professional fees 5,604 363,794 141,748 9,390,818
Miscellaneous expenses 34,681 2,251,519 59,946 3,971,412
Printing and stationery 1,892 122,809 1,278 84,648
Provision for doubtful debts - - 74,772 4,953,657
Rates and Taxes 5,309 344,669 5 &

Rent 93,832 6,091,562 97,308 6,446,686
Repairs and Maintenance - Plant & Machinery 1,019,579 66,191,067 928,166 61,490,993
Repairs and Maintenance -Building 736 47,801 - -

Seminars, trainings and conferences 2,411 156,534 13,409 888,345
Services rendered by agencies 87,208 5,661,561 69,716 4,618,670
Travelling and conveyance expenses 38,276 2,484,858 48,269 3,197,802
Total 1,477,860 95,942,660 1,664,122 110,248,079
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Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON COMPILATION OF UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To
The Board of Directors
Tata Communications Limited

On the basis of the trail balance and other information and explanations provided to us by the
management, we have compiled the balance sheet of Tata Communications (Netherlands) BV
(“the subsidiary”) registered in Netherlands as at 31 March 2017 and the related statement of profit
and loss for the year then ended, attached herewith.

The management of the subsidiary is responsible for:

a) Completeness and accuracy of the underlying data and complete disclosure of all material
and relevant information to the accountant;

b) Maintaining adequate accounting and other records and internal controls and selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies;

c) Preparation and presentation of financial statements in accordance with the applicable laws
and regulations;

d) Establishing controls to safeguard the assets of the entity and preventing and detecting frauds
or other irregularities;

e) Establishing controls for ensuring that the activities of the entity are carried out in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations and preventing and detecting any non-compliance.

The compilation engagement was carried out by us in accordance with the Standards on Related
Services Engagements (ISRS 4410) “Engagements to Compile Financial Information”, issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

This balance sheet and statement of profit and loss has been compiled by us for the purpose of
preparation of statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, based on trial
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Suresh Surana & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

The balance sheet and the statement of profit and loss are in agreement with the books of

account. We have not audited or reviewed these financial statements and accordingly express no
opinion thereon.

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 121750W / W-100010

N

&
N

(Vinodkumar Varma)

PARTNER

Membership No. 105545

Place Mumbai
Date: 03 May 2017
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Tata Communications (Netherlands) BV

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

Particilars Note As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
No. USD INR* USD INR*
(A)|ASSETS
(1) |Non-current assets
Propeﬁy, plant and equipment 1 3,465,795 224,999,412 3,749,070 248,375,888
Capital work-in-progress 336,874 21,869,860 60,437 4,003,951
Other intangible assets 2 48,222 3,130,572 92,734 6,143,627
Investments in subsidiaries & associates 3 286,538,652 18,602,089,288 273,097,152 18,092,686,320
Financial assets
(i) Loans 4 695,714,203 45,165,766,059 1,147,089,497 75,994,679,176
(ii) Other financial assets 5 426,604 27,695,131 5,011 331,979
Deferred tax assets (Net) 52,934 3,436,475 1,014,682 67,222,683
Non current tax asset 2,111,248 137,062,220 2,571,359 170,352,534
Other non-current assets 6 5,371,513 348,718,624 10,554,781 699,254,241
994,066,045 64,534,767,641 1,438,234,723 95,283,050,399
(2) |Current assets
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 7 20,633,571 1,339,531,430 1,317,092 87,257,345
(ii) Cash and cash equivalent 8 23,489,196 1,524,918,604 16,904,275 1,119,908,219
(i1i) Other financial assets 9 15,373,094 998,021,263 22,297,466 1,477,207,123
Other current assets 10 2,533,699 164,487,739 4439201 294,097,066
62,029,560 4,026,959,036 44,958,034 2,978,469,753
TOTAL ASSETS 1,056,095,605 68,561,726,677 1,483,192,757 98,261,520,152
(B)|[EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) |Equity
Equity share capital 11 179,800,561 11,672,652,420 179,800,561 11,911,787,166
Other equity 12 (72,827,912)|  (4,727,988,047)|  (80,860,037)| (5.356,977,451)
Total Equity 106,972,649 6,944,664,373 98,940,524 6,554,809,715
(2) [Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings 13 843,340,000 54,749,632,800 1,236,666,667 81,929,166,689
(ii) Other financial liabilities 14 - - 7,258,041 480,845,216
Other non current liabilities (Deferred revenue) 182,862 11,871,401 212,462 14,075,608
843,522,862 54,761,504,201 1,244,137,170 82,424,087,513
(3) [Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(1) "rade payables 15 3,185,913 206,829,472 7,608,478 504,061,667
(i1) Other financial liabilities 16 102,272,013 6,639,499,084 132,392,264 8,770,987 491
Other current liabilities 17 101,425 6,584,511 87,240 5.779.650
Provisions 18 40,743 2,645,036 27,081 1,794,116
105,600,094 6,855,558,103 140,115,063 9,282,622,924
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,056,095,605 68,561,726,677 1,483,192,757 98,261,520,152
*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 USD =INR 64.92 (as at 31 March 2016 1 USD =INR 66.25 )
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Tata Communications (Netherlands) BY

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Note No. Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
USD INR* USD INR*

Particulars

19 265,171,762 | 17,214,950,789 345,376,506 | 22,881,193,523
20 42,042,840 2,729,421,173 58,575,568 |  3,880,631,381

i |Revenue from telecommunications services

ii |Other Income

307,214,602 19,944,371,962 403,952,074 | 26,761,824,904

iii |Total income (i + ii)

iv |Expenses:

(i) Network and transmission expenses 21 244,315,772 15,860,979,918 337,761,336 22,376,688,510
(ii) Employee benefits expenses 22 1,181,627 76,711,225 617,764 40,926,865
(iii) Operating and other expenses 23 16,450,311 1,067,954,190 11,018,097 729,948,927
(iv) Finance costs 24 . 40,014,441 2,597,737,510 48,201,763 3,193,366,799
(v) Depreciation and amortisation expenses 840,174 54,544,096 913,567 60,523,814
Total expenses 302,802,325 19,657,926,939 398,512,527 | 26,401,454,915
v |Profit before taxes (iii - iv) 4,412,277 286,445,023 5,439,547 360,369,989
vi [Tax expenses
(i) Current tax expense/(benefit) 1,952,665 126,767,012 (1,765,415) (116,958,744)
(i) Deferred tax expense/(benefit) 961,748 62,436,680 1,332,735 88,293,694
Net tax expenses 2,914,413 189,203,692 (432,680) (28,665,050)
vii | Profit/ (loss) for the year (v-vi) 1,497,864 97,241,331 5,872,227 389,035,039

*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 USD = INR 64.92 (as at 31 March 2016 1 USD = INR 66.25 )
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Tata Communications (Netherlands) BY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

1 Property, plant and equipment

. As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Particulars
USDh INR uUSD INR
Gross block:
Lease hold improvement 21,973 1,426,487 21,973 1,455,711
Cables 3,293,202 213,794,674 3,111,590 206,142,838
Plant and machinery 8,161,830 529,866,004 7,854,699 520,373,809
Furniture and fixtures 7,154 464,438 7,154 473,953
Computers 382,975 24,862,737 383,958 25,437,218
Office equipment 67,655 4,392,163 67,655 4,482,144
(a) 11,934,789 774,806,503 11,447,029 758,365,673
Accumulated depreciation:
Lease hold improvement 21,973 1,426,487 21,345 1,414,106
Cables 2,240,749 145,469,425 2,017,690 133,671,963
Plant and machinery 5,794,891 376,204,324 5,254,712 348,124,670
Furniture and fixtures 3,980 258,382 3,114 206,303
Computers 381,971 24,797,557 381,984 25,306,440
Office equipment 25,430 1,650,916 19,114 1,266,303
(b) 8,468,994 549,807,091 7,697,959 509,989,785
(a)- (b) 3,465,795 224,999,412 3,749,070 248,375,888
2 Other intangible assets
5 As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Particulars USD INR ) INR
Gross block:
Computer software 133,537 8,669,222 133,537 8,846,826
(a) 133,537 8,669,222 133,537 8,846,826
Accumulated amortisation:
Computer software 85,315 5,538,650 40,803 2,703,199
(b) 85,315 5,538,650 40,803 2,703,199
(a) - (b) 48,222 3,130,572 92,734 6,143,627

3 Investments in subsidiaries & associates

Particul As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
A USD INR USD INR
Investments in subsidiaries 273,183,902 17,735,098,918 273,097,152 18,092,686,320
Investments in associates 13,354,750 866,990,370 = -
Total 286,538,652 18,602,089,288 273,097,152 18,092,686,320
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Tata Communications (Netherlands) BY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

4 Non-current assets - financial assets - loans

Particulars As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
USD INR USD INR
Inter company loans given 695,714,203 45,165,766,059 1,147,089,497 75,994,679,176

Total

695,714,203 45,165,766,059

1,147,089,497

75,994,679,176

5 Non-current assets - financial assets - other financial assets

Particulars As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
USD INR uUsSD INR
Vendor deposits 4,707 305,578 5,011 331,979
Others 421,897 27,389,553 - -
Total 426,604 27,695,131 5,011 331,979

6 Non-current assets - others

Particulars As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
USD INR USD INR
Prepaid expenses 5,371,248 348,701,420 10,554,516 699,236,685
Others 265 17,204 265 17,556
Total 5,371,513 348,718,624 10,554,781 699,254,241
7 Trade receivables
Particular As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
i L USD INR USD INR
Trade receivables 1,455,477 94,489,567 1,425,728 94,454,480
Intercompany receivables 19,314,914 1,253,924,217 - -
Provision for doubtful debts (136,820) (8,882,354) (108,636) (7,197,135)
Total 20,633,571 1,339,531,430 1,317,092 87,257,345

8 Cash and cash equivalents

Particular As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
EEAE USD INR USD INR
Balance with bank 23,489,196 1,524,918,604 16,904,275 1,119,908,219 |
Total 23,489,196 1,524,918,604 16,904,275 1,119,908.219
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Tata Communications (Netherlands) BV

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

9  Current assets - other financial assets

.P il As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

s USD INR USD INR
Advances to employees 2,640 171,389 2,554 169,401
Interest Receivable 15,347,302 996,346,846 22,259,275 1,474,676,969
Others 23,152 1,503,028 35,634 2,360,753
Total 15,373,094 998,021,263 22,297,466 1,477,207,123

10 Current assets - other assets

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR USD INR
Prepaid expenses 2,533,699 164,487,739 4,340,109 287,532,221
Indirect tax receivable - - 99,092 6,564,845
Total 2,533,699 164,487,739 4,439,201 294,097,066

11 Equity share capital

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

S USD INR USD INR
Equity share capital 179,800,561 |  11,672,652,420 | 179,800,561 | 11,911,787,166
Total 179,800,561 | 11,672,652,420 | 179,800,561 | 11,911,787,166

12 Other Equity

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

Closing balance

USD INR USD INR
Surplus / (Deficit)
Opening balance (73,629,271) (4,780,012,273) (79,501,498) (5,266,974,243)
Profit / (loss) for the year 1,497,864 97,241,331 5,872,227 389,035,039

(72,131,407)

(4,682,770,942)

(73,629,271)

(4,877,939,204)

7. Tata Communications (Netherlands) B.V.

Capital reserves - - 127,274 1,806,903
OCI - Reserves derivatives (696,595) (45,217,105) (7,258,040) (480,845,150)
Total (72,827,912) (4,727,988,047) (80,860,037) (5,356,977,451)
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Tata Communications (Netherlands) BY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

13 Non-current liabilities - borrowings

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

Kbl USD INR USD INR
Lown from banks 843,340,000 |  54,749,632,800 | 1,236,666,667 | 81,929,166,689
' Total| 843,340,000 |  54,749,632,800 | 1,236,666,667 | 81,929,166,689

14 Non-current liabilities - other financial liabilities

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

3 USD INR USD INR
Derivative liabilities - - 7,258,041 480,845,216
Total - - 480,845,216

15 Current liabilities - Trade payables

7,258,041

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

4 ™ 1 .

Farticolars USD INR USD INR

Trade payable 3,185,913 206,829,472 2,677,233 177,366,686
Inter Company - Payables - - 4,931,245 326,694,981
Total 3,185,913 206,829,472 7,608,478 504,061,667

16 Current liabilities - other financial liabilities

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR USD INR
Current portion of long term loans 100,000,000 6,492,000,000 130,000,000 8,612,500,000
Deposit from customers and contractors 28,536 1,852,557 38,206 2,531,148
Interest accrued but not due 906,822 58,870,884 2,354,058 155,956,343
Derivative Liabilities 1,336,655 86,775,643 ; -
Total 102,272,013 6,639,499,084 132,392,264 8,770,987,491

17 Current liabilities-- other current liabilities

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

<y l o
e Qs USD INR USD INR
Deferred revenue and advance from 48,434 '3,144,335 38,713 2,564,736
customers
Other Employee dues 46,617 3,026,376 48,525 3,214,781
Other Statutory dues 6,374 413,800 - -
Others & - 2 133
Total 101,425 6,584,511 87,240 5,779,650
‘.\Z‘ : { Acc
S
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Tata Communications (Netherlands) BV

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

18

19

20

21 Network and transmission expenses

Current liabilities - provisons

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

P 1 -

BTG AES USD INR USD INR

Leave entitlement 40,743 2,645,036 27,081 1,794,116
Total 40,743 2,645,036 27,081 1,794,116

Revenue from operations

Particulars

Current year 2016-17

Previous year 2015-16

USD

INR

USD

INR

Data and voice revenue

265,171,762

17,214,950,789

345,376,506

22,881,193,523

Total

265,171,762

17,214,950,789

345,376,506

22,881,193,523

Other income

Current year 2016-17

Previous year 2015-16

Particulars USD INR USD INR
Interest income - others - - 45,850 3,037,563
Interest on loan to subsidiaries 41,974,661 2,724,994,992 50,044,647 3,315,457,864
Exchange gain -Net - - 8,485,071 562,135,954
Miscellaneous income 68,179 4,426,181 - -
Total 42,042,840 2,729,421,173 58,575,568 3,880,631,381

Particulars

Current year 2016-17

Previous year 2015-16

USD A INR uUsSD INR
Charges for use of transmission facilities 242,715,932 15,757,118,305 337,761,336 22,376,688,510
Rent of satellite channels 1,599,840 103,861,613 - -
Total 244,315,772 15,860,979,918 337,761,336 22,376,688,510
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Tata Communications (Netherlands) BV

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

22 Employee benefit expenses

Particulars Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16

USD INR USD INR
Salaries, bonus and allowances 1,173,074 76,155,964 607,289 40,232,896
Staff welfare expenses 8,553 555,261 10,475 693,969
Total 1,181,627 76,711,225 617,764 40,926,865

23 Operating and other expenses

. Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
Particulars
USD INR USD INR
Advertising and publicity - - 5,974 395,778
Auditors remuneration 183,026 11,882,048 183,615 12,164,494
Bad debts - - 80,755 5,350,019
Communication expenses 47,716 3,097,723 18,352 1,215,820
Donations - - 7 464
Electricity 97,986 6,361,251 75,427 4,997,039
Entertainment expenses 4,171 270,781 1,341 88,841
Exchange loss -Net 7,139,470 463,494,392 5 =
Insurance expenses 5,130 333,040 5,636 373,385
IT consumables 561 36,420 13 861
Legal and professional fees 1,145,822 74,386,764 2,371,952 157,141,820
Loss on sale of fixed asset : 68,823 4,467,989 - .
Miscellaneous expenses 68,334 4,436,244 131,883 8,737,247
Printing and stationery 3,266 212,029 1,456 96,460
Provision for doubtful debts 28,184 1,829,705 (65,556) (4,343,085)
Rates and Taxes 11,151 723,923 11,439 757,834
Recruitment expenses 27 1,753 - -
Relocation Expense 17,233 1,118,766 7,571 501,579
Rent 388,410 25,215,577 664,993 44,055,786
Repairs and Maintenance 837,252 54,354,400 624,122 41,348,083
- Plant & Machinery
Repairs and Maintenance -Building 268 17,399 598 39,618
Security charges 259 16,814 : 259 17,159
Seminars, trainings and conferences 3,888 252,409 26,853 1,779,011
Services rendered by agencies 6,328,134 410,822,459 6,808,232 451,045,370
Travelling and conveyance expenses ' 71,200 4,622,304 63,175 4,185,344
Total 16,450,311 1,067,954,190 11,018,097 729,948,927
24 Finance costs
Particulars Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
USD INR USD INR
Interest expenses 40,014,231 2,597,723,877 48,196,395 3,193,011,169
Guarantee fees 210 13,633 5,368 355,630
Total 40,014,441 2,597,737,510 3,193,366,799
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Suresh Surana & Associates LI

Chartered Accountants

Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON COMPILATION OF UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To
The Board of Directors
Tata Communications Limited

On the basis of the trail balance and other information and explanations provided to us by the
management, we have compiled the balance sheet of Tata Communications (America) Inc. (“the
subsidiary”) registered in Delaware, USA as at 31 March 2017 and the related statement of profit
and loss for the year then ended, attached herewith.

The management of the subsidiary is responsible for:

a) Completeness and accuracy of the underlying data and complete disclosure of all material
and relevant information to the accountant;

b) Maintaining adequate accounting and other records and internal controls and selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies;

c) Preparation and presentation of financial statements in accordance with the applicable laws
and regulations;

d) Establishing controls to safeguard the assets of the entity and preventing and detecting frauds
or other irregularities;

e) Establishing controls for ensuring that the activities of the entity are carried out in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations and preventing and detecting any non-compliance.

The compilation engagement was carried out by us in accordance with the Standards on Related
Services Engagements (ISRS 4410) “Engagements to Compile Financial Information”, issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

This balance sheet and statement of profit and loss has been compiled by us for the purpose of
preparation of statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, based on trial
balance and other information provided by the management.
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Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

The balance sheet and the statement of profit and loss are in agreement with the books of

account. We have not audited or reviewed these financial statements and accordingly express no
opinion thereon.

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 121750W / W-100010

.\)‘N‘
\re‘%

(Vinodkumar Varma) 4\ Accountan's Jr Jj
PARTNER N </
Membership No. 105545 \\w\u\fy

Place Mumbai
Date: 03 May 2017
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Tata Communications (America) Inc.

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

Particulars Note As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
No. USD INR* USD INR*
(A)|ASSETS
(1) |Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1 141,352,307 9,176,591,771 151,294,622 | 10,023,268,708
Capital work-in-progress 8,770,880 569,405,530 12,636,251 837,151,629
Goodwill - - 14,567,055 965,067,394
Other intangible assets 2 12,911,496 838,214,321 11,687,830 774,318,737
Intangible assets under development 3,742,032 242,932,717 3,070,241 203,403,466
Financial assets
(i) Investments -others 15,478,602 1,004,870,842 12,678,602 839,957,383
(ii) Loans 3 78,406,764 5,090,167,119 76,729,496 5,083,329,110
(iii) Other financial assets 4 1,278,734 83,015,411 1,208,753 80,079,886
Non current tax asset 3,049,131 197,949,585 2,922,879 193,640,734
Other non-current assets 5 935,374 60,724,480 921,175 61,027,844
265,925,320 17,263,871,776 287,716,904 | 19,061,244,891
(2) [Current assets
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 6 44,400,671 2,882,491,562 39,579,591 2,622,147,904
(ii) Cash and cash equivalent 7 7,184 466,386 36,980 2,449,925
(iii) Other financial assets 8 2,054,785 133,396,643 3,377,824 223,780,840
Other current assets 9 5,104,332 331,373,233 3,908,289 258,924,146
51,566,972 3,347,727,824 46,902,684 3,107,302,815
TOTAL ASSETS 317,492,292 20,611,599,600 334,619,588 | 22,168,547,706
(B)|EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) | Equity
Equity share capital 10 226,603,995 14,711,131,355 226,603,995 | 15,012,514,669
Other equity 11 (120,393,583) (7,815,951,406)| (116,923,391) (7.746,174,654)
Total Equity 106,210,412 6,895,179,949 109,680,604 7,266,340,015
{(2) |Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Other financial liabilities 12 4,983,487 323,527,976 5,054,672 334,872,020
Provisions 13 1,784,078 115,822,344 1,351,313 89,524,486
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) = - 11,729 777,046
Other non current liabilities (Deferred revenue) 79,972,467 5,191,812,558 94,967,320 6,291,584,950
86,740,032 5,631,162,878 101,385,034 6,716,758,502
(3) | Current liabilities
Financial liabilities ¢
(i) Trade payables 14 82,302,133 5,343,054,475 79,222,976 5,248,522,161
(ii) Other financial liabilities 15 1,723,010 111,857,809 2,902,371 192,282,079
Other current liabilities 16 38,181,161 2,478,720,973 39,504,835 2,617,195,319
Provisions 17 2,335,544 151,623,516 1,923,768 127,449,630
124,541,848 8,085,256,773 123,553,950 8,185,449,189
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 317,492,292 20,611,599,600 334,619,588 | 22,168,547,706

*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 USD =INR 64.92 (as at 31 March 2016 1 USD = INR 66.25 )
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Tata Communications (America) Inc.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

. Note No. Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
Particulars
USD INR* USD INR*
i |Revenue from telecommunications services 19 476,423,291 30,929,400,052 478,679,105 | 31,712,490,706
ii |Other Income 20 11,870,366 770,624,161 19,526,384 1,293,622,941
iii [Total income (i + ii) 488,293,657 31,700,024,213 498,205,489 | 33,006,113,647
iv |Expenses:
(i) Network and transmission expenses 21 258,427,361 16,777,104,276 | 259,870,196 | 17,216,400,485
(ii) Employee benefits expenses 22 94,394,680 6,128,102,626 99,649,683 6,601,791,499
(iii) Operating and other expenses 23 81,175,301 5,269,900,538 79,274,320 5,251,923,699
(iv) Finance costs 24 4,782,601 310,486,457 3,356,630 222,376,738
(v) Depreciation and amortisation expenses 36,824,776 2,390,664,458 36,571,286 2,422,847,698
(vi) Staff’ optimisation cost 1,331,007 86,408,974 4,041,162 267,726,983
(vii) Impairment loss on goodwill 14,567,055 945,693,211 = =
Total expenses 491,502,781 31,908,360,540 482,763,277 | 31,983,067,102
v |Profit before taxes (iii - iv) (3,209,124) (208,336,327) 15,442,212 1,023,046,545
vi |Tax expenses
(i) Current tax expense/(benefit) 261,068 16,948,535 311,345 20,626,606
(i1) Deferred tax expense/(benefit) - - - -
Net tax expenses 261,068 16,948,535 311,345 20,626,606
vii | Profit / (loss) for the year (v-vi) (3,470,192) (225,284,862) 15,130,867 1,002,419,939

*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 USD = INR 64.92 (as at 31 March 2016 1 USD = INR 66.25 )
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Tata Communications (America) Inc.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

1 Property, plant and equipment

. As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Particulars
USD INR USD INR
Gross block:
Land 1,498,991 97,314,496 1,498,991 99,308,154
Leasehold land 33,027 : 2,144,113 33,027 2,188,039
Building 5,609,046 364,139,266 5,609,046 371,599,298
Lease hold improvement 5,218,555 338,788,591 5,701,768 377,742,130
Cables 127,054,826 8,248,399,304 121,337,079 8,038,581,484
Plant and machinery 315,194,070 20,462,399,024 306,403,482 20,299,230,683
Furniture and fixtures 1,110,186 72,073,275 1,001,262 66,333,608
Computers 21,170,089 1,374,362,178 23,283,256 1,542,515,710
Office equipment 1,209,068 78,492,695 1,051,309 69,649,221
Vehicles 28,208 1,831,263 28,208 1,868,780

(a)| 478,126,066 31,039,944,205 465,947,428 30,869,017,107

Accumulated depreciation:

Leasehold land 4,355 282,727 2,178 144,293
Building 2,654,999 172,362,535 2,417,063 160,130,424
Lease hold improvement 4,480,871 290,898,145 4,744,822 314,344,458
Cables 80,848,674 5,248,695,916 73,421,443 4,864,170,599
Plant and machinery 227,215,508 14,750,830,779 211,697,909 14,024,986,471
Furniture and fixtures 836,391 54,298,504 765,311 . 50,701,854
Computers 19,922,114 1,293,343,641 20,848,159 1,381,190,534
Office equipment 782,639 50,808,924 727,713 48,210,986
Vehicles 28,208 1,831,263 28,208 1,868,780

)| 336,773,759 21,863,352,434 314,652,806 20,845,748,399

Net block (a) - (b) 141,352,307 9,176,591,771 151,294,622 10,023,268,708

2 Other intangible assets

As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
USD INR USD INR

Particulars

Gross block:
Computer software 64,170,556 4,165,952,496 57,703,908 3,822,883,905
(a) 64,170,556 4,165,952,496 57,703,908 3,822,883,905

Accumulated amortisation:

Computer software 51,259,060 3,327,738,175 46,016,078 3,048,565,168
(b) 51,259,060 3,327,738,175 46,016,078 3,048,565,168
Net block (a) - (b) 12,911,496 838,214,321 11,687,830 774,318,737

3 Non-current assets - financial assets - loans

Particulars As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

USD INR uSD INR
Inter company loans given 78,406,764 5,090,167,119 76,729,496 5,083,329,110
Total 78,406,764 5,090,167,119 76,729,496 5,083,329,110
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Tata Communications (America) Inc.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Non-current assets - financial assets - other financial assets

Particulars As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

USD INR USD INR
Vendor deposits 1,278,734 83,015,411 1,208,753 80,079,886
Total 1,278,734 83,015,411 1,208,753 80,079,886

Non-current assets - others

Particulars As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
USD INR USD INR
Prepaid expenses 935,374 60,724,480 921,175 61,027,844
Total 935,374 60,724,480 921,175 61,027,844
Trade receivables
Parficil As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
ke USD INR USD INR

Trade receivables
Provision for doubtful debts

49,233,706 3,196,252,194
(4,833,035) (313,760,632)

44,040,319 2,917,671,134
(4,460,728) (295,523,230)

Total

44,400,671 2,882,491,562

39,579,591 2,622,147,904

Cash and cash equivalents

Bariioula As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

AriEpeh USD INR USD INR
Cash in hand 29 1,883 199 13,184
Balance with bank 7,155 464,503 36,781 2,436,741
Total 7,184 466,386 36,980 2,449,925

Current assets - other financial assets

Particul As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

TS USD INR USD INR
Security Deposit 85,579 5,555,789 91,839 6,084,334
Advances to employees 149,018 9,674,249 167,416 11,091,310
Interest Receivable 1,200,234 77,919,191 1,493,492 98,943,845
Others 619,954 40,247,414 1,625,077 107,661,351
Total 2,054,785 133,396,643 3,377,824 223,780,840
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Tata Communications (America) Inc.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

9  Current assets - other assets

Particul As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
R USD INR USD INR
Advances to Vendors / Suppliers 392,098 25,455,002 - -
Prepaid expenses 4,712,234 305,918,231 3,908,289 258,924,146
Total 5,104,332 331,373,233 3,908,289 258,924,146
10 Equity share capital
- As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
artiewars USD INR USD INR
Equity share capital 226,603,995 14,711,131,355 226,603,995 15,012,514,669
Total 226,603,995 14,711,131,355 226,603,995 15,012,514,669
11 Other Equity
Pasticn] As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
S i USD INR USD INR
Surplus / (Deficit)
Opening balance (116,923,391) (7,590,666,544)| (132,054,258) (8,748,594,593)
Profit / (loss) for the year (3,470,192) (225,284,862) 15,130,867 1,002,419,939
Closing balance (120,393,583) (7,815,951,406)| (116,923,391) (7,746,174,654)
12 Non-current liabilities - other financial liabilities
Particalii As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
ol USD INR USD INR
Lease equalisation 4,983,487 323,527,976 5,054,672 334,872,020
Total 4,983,487 323,527,976 5,054,672 334,872,020
13 Non-current liabilities - provisions
Particular As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
. USD INR USD INR
Asset retirement obligation and others 748,690 48,604,955 714,504 47,335,890
Retention liability 1,035,388 67,217,389 636,809 42,188,596
Total 1,784,078 115,822,344 1,351,313 89,524,486
15 Current liabilities - Trade payables
Particul As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
ik USD INR USD INR
Trade payable 71,049,578 4,612,538,604 65,274,310 4,324,423,038
Inter Company - Payables 11,252,555 730,515,871 13,948,666 924,099,123
Total 82,302,133 5,343,054,475 79,222,976 5,248,522,161
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Tata Communications (America) Inc.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

16 Current liabilities - other financial liabilities

B As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
MRS USD INR USD INR
Deposit from customers and contractors 1,630,565 105,856,280 2,797,814 185,355,178
Others 92,445 6,001,529 104,557 6,926,901
Total _ 1,723,010 111,857,809 2,902,371 192,282,079
17 Current liabilities - other current liabilities
Particul As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
articutars USD INR USD INR
Deferred revenue and advance from 21,771,655 1,413,415,843 22,695,793 1,503,596,286
customers
Other Employee dues 14,656,116 951,475,051 15,542,238 1,029,673,268
Other Statutory dues 938,464 60,925,083 496,624 32,901,340
Others 814,926 52,904,996 770,180 51,024,425
Total 38,181,161 2,478,720,973 39,504,835 2,617,195,319
18 Current liabilities - provisons
As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Particulars
USD INR USD INR
Leave entitlement 2,335,544 151,623,516 1,923,768 127,449,630
Total 2,335,544 151,623,516 1,923,768 127,449,630
19 Revenue from operations
Purticular Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
BRI USD INR USD INR
Data and voice revenue 476,423,291 30,929,400,052 478,679,105 31,712,490,706
Total 476,423,291 30,929,400,052 478,679,105 31,712,490,706
20 Other income
. Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
Particulars T
USD INR USD INR
Interest income - others 1 65 438 29,018
Interest on loan to subsidiaries 7,747,340 502,957,313 8,130,498 538,645,493
Profit on sale of fixed assets 2 130 - -
Exchange gain -Net - - 2,755,571 182,556,579
Miscellaneous income 4,123,023 267,666,653 8,639,877 572,391,851
Total 11,870,366 770,624,161 19,526,384 1,293,622,941
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Tata Communications (America) Inc.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

21 Network and transmission expenses

i Curreat year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
Particulars
USD INR uUSD INR
Charges for use of transmission facilities 258,427,360 16,777,104,211 259,810,245 17,212,428,731
Rent of satellite channels 1 65 59,951 3,971,754
Total 258,427,361 16,777,104,276 259,870,196 17,216,400,485
22 Employee benefit expenses
Particulars Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
USD INR UsD INR
Salaries, bonus and allowances 94,000,588 6,102,518,173 99,215,986 6,573,059,073
Staff welfare expenses 394,092 25,584,453 433,697 28,732,426
Total 94,394,680 6,128,102,626 99,649,683 6,601,791,499
23 Operating and other expenses
. Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
Particulars
USD INR uUSD INR
Advertising and publicity 2,860,507 185,704,114 3,776,759 250,210,284
Auditors remuneration = 25,457 1,652,668 21,605 1,431,331
Bad debts - - 22,345,929 1,480,417,796
Communication expenses 1,647,584 106,961,153 1,669,940 110,633,525
CSR expenses 15,072 978,474 | 1,958 129,718
Donations - - 2,000 132,500
Electricity 8,068,638 523,815,979 7,468,867 494,812,439
Entertainment expenses 162,249 10,533,205 223,241 14,789,716
Exchange loss -Net 3,323,294 215,748,246 = =
Insurance expenses 760,389 49,364,454 852,116 56,452,685
IT consumables 107,030 6,948,388 69,778 4,622,793
Legal and professional fees 6,064,816 393,727,855 6,214,860 411,734,475
Loss on sale of fixed asset 152,862 9,923,801 - =
Miscellaneous expenses 2,874,099 186,586,504 2,904,572 192,427,892
Printing and stationery 177,933 11,551,410 191,202 12,667,133
Provision for doubtful debts 372,306 24,170,106 (21,243,891) (1,407,407,779)
Rates and Taxes 6,607,867 428,982,726 5,208,436 345,058,885
Recruitment expenses 685,769 44,520,123 1,047,061 69,367,791
Relocation Expense 511,793 33,225,602 517,598 34,290,868
Rent 12,144,724 788,435,482 12,645,535 837,766,694
Repairs and Maintenance 22,331,987 1,449,792,596 23,229,951 1,538,984,254
- Plant & Machinery
Repairs and Maintenance -Building 81,889 5,316,234 112,234 7,435,503
Security charges 146,314 9,498,705 115,677 7,663,601
Seminars, trainings and conferences 1,156,031 75,049,533 1,420,884 94,133,565
Services rendered by agencies 6,425,090 417,116,843 5,522,583 365,871,124
Sundry balances written off - - -
Travelling and conveyance expenses 4,471,601 290,296,337 4,955,425 328,296,906
Total 81,175,301 5,269,900,538 79,274,320 5,251,923,699
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Tata Communications (America) Inc.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

24 Finance costs -

Particulars

Current year 2016-17

Previous year 2015-16

Total

USD INR USD INR
Interest expenses 4,782,601 310,486,457 5,320,570 352,487,763
Guarantee fees - - (1,963,940) (130,111,025)

4,782,601 310,486,457 3,356,630 222,376,738
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ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON COMPILATION OF UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To
The Board of Directors
Tata Communications Limited

On the basis of the trail balance and other information and explanations provided to us by the
management, we have compiled the balance sheet of Tata Communications (Australia) Pty.
Ltd. (“the subsidiary”) registered in Australia as at 31 March 2017 and the related statement of
profit and loss for the year then ended, attached herewith.

The management of the subsidiary is responsible for:

a) Completeness and accuracy of the underlying data and complete disclosure of all material
and relevant information to the accountant;

b) Maintaining adequate accounting and other records and internal controls and selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies;

c) Preparation and presentation of financial statements in accordance with the applicable laws
and regulations;

d) Establishing controls to safeguard the assets of the entity and preventing and detecting frauds
or other irregularities;

e) Establishing controls for ensuring that the activities of the entity are carried out in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations and preventing and detecting any non-compliance.

The compilation engagement was carried out by us in accordance with the Standards on Related
Services Engagements (ISRS 4410) “Engagements to Compile Financial Information”, issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

This balance sheet and statement of profit and loss has been compiled by us for the purpose of
preparation of statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, based on trial
balance and other information provided by the management.

. Reglstered Office
9. Tata Communications (Australia) Pty Limited 308:300, Tachnopelis Knowlodga Park, Mahskali Guvos EbEY




Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

The balance sheet and the statement of profit and loss are in agreement with the books of
account. We have not audited or reviewed these financial statements and accordingly express no

opinion thereon.

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 121750W / W-100010

o
JOAYF ‘ \\}
(Vinodkumar Varma) R A\
PARTNER Rl [}
Membership No. 105545 o/

Place Mumbai
Date: 03 May 2017

9. Tata Communications (Australia) Pty Limited

107




Tata Communications (Australia) Pty. Ltd.

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

Particulars Note As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
No. USD INR* USD INR*
(A)|ASSETS
(1) [Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1 1,569,728 101,906,742 1,431,302 94,823,756
Capital work-in-progress 217,127 14,095,885 170,026 11,264,223
Intangible assets under development = - 24,735 1,638,694
Financial assets
(1) Loans 2 - - 1,729,607 114,586,464
Deferred tax assets (Net) 319,924 20,769,466 288,986 19,145,323
Non current tax asset 212,233 13,778,166 415,299 27,513,559
Other non-current assets 3 20,075 1,303,269 - -
2,339,087 151,853,528 4,059,955 268,972,019
(2) |Current assets
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 4 3,606,531 234,135,992 5,420,135 359,083,944
(ii) Cash and cash equivalent 5 3,955,102 256,765,222 938,570 62,180,263
(iii) Other financial assets 0 34,294 2,226,366 92,380 6,120,175
Other current assets 7 33,632 2,183,389 34,293 2,271,911
7,629,559 495,310,969 6,485,378 429,656,293
TOTAL ASSETS 9,968,646 647,164,497 10,545,333 698,628,312
(B)|EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) | Equity
Equity share capital 8 357,000 23,176,440 357,000 23,651,250
Other equity 9 1,035,655 67,234,722 1,418,855 93,999,143
. Total Equity 1,392,655 90,411,162 1,775,855 117,650,393
(2) |Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Other financial liabilities 10 16,450 1,067,934 15,702 1,040,258
16,450 1,067,934 15,702 1,040,258
(3) [Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 11 376,015 24,410,894 - 2
(ii) Trade payables 12 7,534,195 489,119,939 8,172,905 541,454,956
(iii) Other financial liabilities 13 33,950 2,204,034 31,490 2,086,213
Other current liabilities 14 378,359 24,563,066 337,526 22,361,098
Provisions 15 237,022 15,387,468 211,855 14,035,394
8,559,541 555,685,401 8,753,776 579,937,661
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 9,968,646 647,164,497 10,545,333 698,628,312
*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 USD = INR 64.92 (as at 31 March 2016 1 USD = INR 66.25 )
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Tata Communications (Australia) Pty. Ltd.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

. Note No. Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
Particulars -
USD INR* uSh INR*

i |Revenue from telecommunications services 16 33,372,334 2,166,531,923 29,915,582 1,981,907,308

ii |Other Income 17 512,896 33,297,208 352,554 23,356,702

iii [Total income (i + ii) 33,885,230 2,199,829,131 30,268,136 2,005,264,010

iv |Expenses:

(i) Network and transmission expenses 18 28,709,691 1,863,833,140 25,097,601 1,662,716,066

(ii) Employee benefits expenses 19 2,229,302 144,726,286 1,897,222 125,690,958

(iii) Operating and other expenses 20 2,178,309 141,415,820 2,547,100 168,745,376

(iv) Finance costs 21 1,481 96,147 31 2,054

(v) Depreciation and amortisation expenses ’ 401,146 26,042,398 421,805 27,944,581

Total expenses 33,519,929 2,176,113,791 29,963,759 1,985,099,035

v |Profit before taxes (iii - iv) 365,301 23,715,340 304,377 20,164,975
vi [Tax expenses

(i) Current tax expense/(benefit) 669,127 43,439,725 14,452 957,445

(ii) Deferred tax expense (benefit) (30,938) (2,008,495) 267,392 17,714,720

Net tax expenses 638,189 41,431,230 281,844 18,672,165

vii | Profit/ (loss) for the year (v-vi) (272,888) (17,715,890) 22,533 1,492,810

*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 USD = INR 64.92 (as at 31 March 2016 1 USD = INR 66.25 )
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Tata Communications (Australia) Pty. Ltd.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

1 Property, plant and equipment

. As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Particulars
USD INR uUsSD INR
Gross block:
Cables 365,273 23,713,523 365,273 24,199,336
Plant and machinery 6,194,251 402,130,775 6,308,932 417,966,745
Furniture and fixtures 19,941 1,294,570 19,941 1,321,091
Computers 36,237 2,352,506 38,789 2,569,771
Office equipment 647 42,003 647 42,864
(a) 6,616,349 429,533,377 6,733,582 446,099,807
Accumulated depreciation:
Cables 360,150 23,380,938 340,679 22,569,984
Plant and machinery 4,635,745 300,952,565 4,910,137 325,296,576
Furniture and fixtures 15,163 984,382 14,455 957,644
Computers 34,916 2,266,747 36,362 2,408,983
Office equipment 647 42,003 647 : 42,864
(b) 5,046,621 327,626,635 5,302,280 351,276,051
Net block (a) - (b) 1,569,728 101,906,742 1,431,302 94,823,756

2 Non-current assets - financial assets - loans

Particulars As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

USD INR USD INR
Inter company loans given - - 1,729,607 114,586,464
Total - - 1,729,607 114,586,464

3 Non-current assets - others

Particulars As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
USD INR USD INR
Prepaid expenses 20,075 1,303,269 - -
Total 20,075 1,303,269 - -
4 Trade receivables
Particul As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Yl USD INR USD INR
Trade receivables 3,686,386 239,320,179 5,430,220 359,752,075
Provision for doubtful debts (79,855) (5,184,187) (10,085) (668,131)
Total 3,606,531 234,135,992 5,420,135 359,083,944

9. Tata Communications (Australia) Pty Limited

110



Tata Communications (Australia) Pty. Ltd.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

5 Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR USD INR
Cash in hand - - 7 464
Balance with bank 3,955,102 256,765,222 938,563 62,179,799
Total 3,955,102 256,765,222 938,570 62,180,263

Current assets - other financial assets

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

UsSD INR USD INR
Advances to employees 6,103 396,207 19,969 1,322,946
Interest Receivable 28,184 1,829,705 51,507 3,412,339
Others 7 454 20,904 1,384,890
Total 34,294 2,226,366 92,380 6,120,175
Current assets - other assets
Particulars As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
L USD INR USD INR
Prepaid expenses 33,632 2,183,389 34,293 2,271,911
Total 33,632 2,183,389 34,293 2,271,911
Equity share capital
Particnl As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
i USD INR USD IR
Equity share capital 357,000 23,176,440 357,000 23,651,250
Total 357,000 23,176,440 357,000 23,651,250
Other Equity
Sesbata As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
I USD INR USD INR
Surplus / (Deficit)
Opening balance 1,308,543 84,950,612 1,286,010 85,198,163
Profit / (loss) for the year (272,888) (17,715,890) 22,533 1,492,810
Closing balance 1,035,655 67,234,722 1,308,543 86,690,973
Capital reserves - - 110,312 7,308,170
Total 1,035,655 67,234,722 1,418,855 93,999,143
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Tata Communications (Australia) Pty. Ltd.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

10 Non-current liabilities - other financial liabilities

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

Particulars
USD INR USD INR
Lease equalisation 16,450 1,067,934 15,702 1,040,258
Total 16,450 1,067,934 15,702 1,040,258

11 Current liabilities - borrowings

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR USD INR
Inter company loans taken 376,015 24,410,894 - -
Total 376,015 24,410,894 - -

12 Current liabilities - Trade payables

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

P I l -

Ll USD INR USD INR

Trade payable 2,533,086 164,447,943 2,273,593 150,625,536
Inter Company - Payables 5,001,109 324,671,996 5,899,312 390,829,420
Total 7,534,195 489,119,939 8,172,905 541,454,956

13 Current liabilities - other financial liabilities

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

Asat 31 March 2016

USD INR USD INR
Deposit from customers and contractors 31,307 2,032,450 31,490 2,086,213
Others 2,643 171,584 - =
Total 33,950 2,204,034 31,490 2,086,213

14 Current liabilities - other current liabilities

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

337,526

Fartigilos USD INR USD INR
Deferred revenue and advance from - - 783 51,874
customers
Other Employee dues 189,597 12,308,637 163,624 10,840,090
Other Statutory dues 188,762 12,254,429 150,827 9,992,289
Others - . 22,292 1,476,845
Total 378,359 24,563,066 22,361,098
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Tata Communications (Australia) Pty. Ltd.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

15 Current liabilities - provisons

P As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Arfiewtars USD INR USD INR
Leave entitlement 237,022 15,387,468 211,855 14,035,394
Total 237,022 15,387,468 211,855 14,035,394
16 Revenue from operations
Partioulan Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
S USD INR USD INR
Data and voice revenue 33,372,334 2,166,531,923 29,915,582 1,981,907,308
Total 33,372,334 2,166,531,923 29,915,582 1,981,907,308
17 Other income
Particul Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
artientars USD INR USD INR
listerest income - others 885 57,454 1,836 121,635
Interest on loan to subsidiaries 96,151 6,242,123 94,325 6,249,031
Exchange gain -Net - - 127,365 8,437,931
Miscellaneous income 415,860 26,997,631 129,028 8,548,105
Total 512,896 33,297,208 352,554 23,356,702
18 Network and transmission expenses
Particul Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
e USD INR USD INR
Charges for use of transmission facilities 28,709,691 1,863,833,140 25,097,601 1,662,716,066
Total 28,709,691 1,863,833,140 25,097,601 1,662,716,066
19 Employee benefit expenses
Particulars ~ Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
USD INR USD INR
Salaries, bonus and allowances 2,217,679 143,971,721 1,888,103 125,086,824
Staff welfare expenses 11,623 754,565 9,119 604,134
Total 2,229,302 | . 144,726,286 1,897,222 125,690,958
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Tata Communications (Australia) Pty. Ltd.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

20 Operating and other expenses

21

Current year 2016-17

Previous year 2015-16

Particulars
USD INR USD INR

Advertising and publicity 34,488 2,238,961 54,116 3,585,185
Auditors remuneration 25,859 1,678,766 ) = =
Bad debts - - 95,909 6,353,971
Communication expenses 37,268 2,419,439 41,982 2,781,308
Directors fees - = 975 64,594
Donations - - 12,290 814,213
Electricity 191,850 12,454,902 173,931 11,522,929
Entertainment expenses 22,228 1,443,042 21,162 1,401,983
Exchange loss -Net 37,031 2,404,053 - =
Insurance expenses 29,533 1,917,282 23,800 1,576,750
IT consumables 612 39,731 477 31,601
Legal and professional fees 103,705 6,732,529 66,552 4,409,070
Miscellaneous expenses 75,480 4,900,162 44,335 2,937,193
Printing and stationery 5,695 369,719 11,239 744,584
Provision for doubtful debts 69,770 4,529,468 (91,126) (6,037,098)
Rates and Taxes 89,134 5,786,579 67,340 4,461,275
Recruitment expenses 41,175 2,673,081 - =
Relocation Expense 20,746 1,346,830 53,695 3,557,294
Rent 225,422 14,634,396 233,068 15,440,755
Repairs and Maintenance 359,396 23,331,988 275,978 18,283,543
- Plant & Machinery
Repairs and Maintenance -Building 22 1,428 617 40,876
Seminars, trainings and conferences 492 31,941 25,228 1,671,355
Services rendered by agencies 684,716 44,451,763 1,230,413 81,514,861
Travelling and conveyance expenses 123,687 8,029,760 205,119 13,589,134
Total 2,178,309 141,415,820 2,547,100 168,745,376

Finance costs

Current year 2016-17

Previous year 2015-16

Particulars
USD INR USD INR
Interest expenses 1,481 96,147 - -
Guarantee fees - - 31 2,054
Total 1,481 96,147 31 2,054
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Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON COMPILATION OF UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To
The Board of Directors
Tata Communications Limited

On the basis of the accounting records and other information and explanations provided to us by
the management, we have compiled the balance sheet of Tata Communications (Beijing)
Technology Limited. (“the subsidiary”) registered in Shanghai The Republic of China as at
31 March 2017 and the related statement of profit and loss for the year then ended, attached
herewith.

The management of the subsidiary is responsible for:

a) Completeness and accuracy of the underlying data and complete disclosure of all material
and relevant information to the accountant;

b) Maintaining adequate accounting and other records and internal controls and selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies;

c) Preparation and presentation of financial statements in accordance with the applicable laws
and regulations, if any;

d) Establishing controls to safeguard the assets of the entity and preventing and detecting frauds
or other irregularities;

e) Establishing controls for ensuring that the activities of the entity are carried out in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations and preventing and detecting any non-compliance.

The compilation engagement was carried out by us in accordance with the Standards on Related
Services Engagements (ISRS 4410) “Engagements to Compile Financial Information”, issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

This balance sheet and statement of profit and loss has been compiled by us for the purpose of
preparation of statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, based on trial
balance and other information provided by the management.
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Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

The balance sheet and the statement of profit and loss are in agreement with the books of
account. We have not audited or reviewed these financial statements and accordingly express no
opinion thereon.

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 121750W / W-100010

o
NG

(Vinodkumar Varma)

PARTNER

Membership No. 105545

Place Mumbai
Date: 03 May 2017
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Tata Communications {Beijing) Technology Limited.

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

Particulars Note As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
No. USD INR* USD INR*
(A)|ASSETS
(1) [Current assets
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 1 43,576 2,828,954 9,588 635,205
(ii) Cash and cash equivalent 2 144,385 9,373,474 156,377 10,359,976
(iii) Other financial assets 3 7,453 483,849 7,154 473,953
Other current assets 4 1,823 118,350 770 51,013
197,237 12,804,627 173,889 11,520,147
TOTAL ASSETS 197,237 12,804,627 173,889 11,520,147
(B)|EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) | Equity
Equity share capital ’ 5 163,081 10,587,219 163,081 10,804,116
Other equity . 6 (37,657) (2,444,692) (42,736) (2,831,259)
Total Equity 125,424 8,142,527 120,345 7,972,857
(2) [Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables 7 16,834 1,092,863 25,804 1,709,515
(ii) Other financial liabilities 8 778 50,508 497 32,926
Other current liabilities 9 43,239 2,807,076 19,936 1,320,760
Provisions 10 10,962 711,653 7.307 484,089
71,813 4,662,100 53,544 3,547,290
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 197,237 12,804,627 173,889 11,520,147

*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 USD=INR 64.92 (as at 31 March 2016 1 USD = INR 66.25)
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Tata Communications (Beijing) Technology Limited.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

. Note No. Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
Particulars -
USD INR* uUsSD INR*
i |Revenue from telecommunications services 1 505,617 32,824,656 293,805 19,464,581
ii |Other Income 12 328 21,294 351 23,254
iii |Total income (i + ii) 505,945 32,845,950 294,156 19,487,835
iv |Expenses:
(i) Employee benefits expenses 132 366,703 23,806,359 175,173 11,605,211
(ii) Operating and other expenses ’ . 14 134,163 8,709,862 110,571 7,325,328
Total expenses 500,866 32,516,221 285,744 18,930,539
v [Profit before taxes (iii - iv) 5,079 329,729 8,412 557,296
vi [Tax expenses
(i) Current tax expense/(benefit) = = = =
(ii) Deferred tax expense/(benefit) =3 = - -
Net tax expenses = = - =
vii | Profit / (loss) for the year (v-vi) 5,079 329,729 8,412 557,296
*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 USD = INR 64.92 (as at 31 March 2016 1 USD = INR 66.25 )
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Tata Communications (Beijing) Technology Limited.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

1

Trade receivables

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

Fartigula USD INR USD INR
Intercompany receivables 43,576 2,828,954 9,588 635,205
Total 43,576 2,828,954 9,588 635,205

Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR USD INR
Balance with bank 144,385 9,373,474 156,377 10,359,976
Total 144,385 9,373,474 156,377 10,359,976

Current assets - other financial assets

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USDh INR USD INR
Security Deposit 7,453 483,849 7,154 473,953
Total 7,453 483,849 7,154 473,953

Current assets - other assets

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

Darfie l

Partignlars USD INR USD INR
Prepaid expenses 1,806 117,246 770 51,013
Others 17 1,104 - -
Total 1,823 118,350 770 51,013
Equity share capital

Particul As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

S USD INR USD INR

Equity share capital 163,081 10,587,219 163,081 10,804,116
Total 163,081 10,587,219 10,804,116

163,081
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Tata Communications (Beijing) Technology Limited.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Other Equity

As at 31 March 2017

-As at 31 March 2016

Particul

et USD INR USD INR
Surplus / (Deficit)

Opening balance (42,907) (2,785,522) (51,319) (3,399,884)
Profit / (loss) for the year 5,079 329,729 8,412 557,296
Closing balance (37,828) (2,455,793) (42,907) (2,842,588)
Capital reserves 171 11,101 171 11,329
Total (37,657) (2,444,692) (42,736) (2,831,259)

Current liabilities - Trade payables

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR USD INR
Trade payable 16,834 1,092,863 25,804 1,709,515
Total 16,834 1,092,863 25,804 1,709,515

Current liabilities - other financial liabilities

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD

INR

USD

INR

Gihers

778

50,508

497

32,926

Total

778

50,508

497

32,926

Current liabilities - other current liabilities

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR USD INR
Other Employee dues 43,239 2,807,076 19,899 1,318,309
Others = - 37 2,451
Total 43,239 2,807,076 19,936 1,320,760
10 Current liabilities - provisons
Particilar As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
b ek USD INR USD INR
Leave entitlement 10,962 711,653 7,307 484,089
Total 10,962 711,653 7,307 484,089
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Tata Communications (Beijing) Technology Limited.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

11

12

13

14

Revenue from operations

Curyent year 2016-17

Previous year 2015-16

Particul

PLHEI S USD INR USD INR

|Management consultancy Services 505,617 32,824,656 293,805 19,464,581
Total 505,617 32,824,656 293,805 19,464,581

Other income

Current year 2016-17

Previous year 2015-16

P 1 l -

GO USD INR USD INR
Interest income - others 328 21,294 148 9,805
Exchange gain -Net - - 203 13,449
Total 328 21,294 351 23,254

Employee benefit expenses
Particulars Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
USD INR USD INR
Salaries, bonus and allowances 366,667 23,804,022 175,173 11,605,211
Staff welfare expenses 36 2,337 - -
Total 366,703 23,806,359 175,173 11,605,211

Operating and other expenses

Particulars

Current year 2016-17

Previous year 2015-16

USD INR USD INR
Advertising and publicity 19,392 1,258,929 - =
Auditors remuneration 1,910 123,997 2,648 175,430
Communication expenses 1,484 96,341 829 54,921
Entertainment expenses 53 3,441 35 2,319
Exchange loss -Net 9,594 622,842 - 5
Insurance expenses 9,308 604,275 1,760 116,600
IT consumables 753 48,885 = 5
Legal and professional fees 42,710 2,772,733 60,134 3,983,878
Miscellaneous expenses 170 11,037 175 11,592
Printing and stationery 9 584 15 994
Rates and Taxes 1,305 84,721 81 5,366
Recruitment expenses 426 27,656 = =
Rent 40,709 2,642,828 40,635 2,692,069
Travelling and conveyance expenses 6,340 411,593 4,259 282,159
Total 134,163 110,571 7,325,328

8,709,862
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ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON COMPILATION OF UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To
The Board of Directors
Tata Communications Limited

On the basis of the trail balance and other information and explanations provided to us by the
management, we have compiled the balance sheet of Tata Communications (Belgium) SPRL
(“the subsidiary”) registered in Belgium as at 31 March 2017 and the related statement of profit
and loss for the year then ended, attached herewith.

The management of the subsidiary is responsible for:

a) Completeness and accuracy of the underlying data and complete disclosure of all material
and relevant information to the accountant;

b) Maintaining adequate accounting and other records and internal controls and selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies;

c) Preparation and presentation of financial statements in accordance with the applicable laws
and regulations;

d) Establishing controls to safeguard the assets of the entity and preventing and detecting frauds
or other irregularities;

e) Establishing controls for ensuring that the activities of the entity are carried out in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations and preventing and detecting any non-compliance.

The compilation engagement was carried out by us in accordance with the Standards on Related
Services Engagements (ISRS 4410) “Engagements to Compile Financial Information”, issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

This balance sheet and statement of profit and loss has been compiled by us for the purpose of
preparation of statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, based on trial
balance and other information provided by the management.
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Suresh Surana &/

Chartered Accountants

The balance sheet and the statement of profit and loss are in agreement with the books of
account. We have not audited or reviewed these financial statements and accordingly express no
opinion thereon.

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 121750W / W-100010 P =

J 757m
' 4 o\
\r% ' (‘r‘u‘l Tl \,
(Vinodkumar Varma) \2\ ek /=)
PARTNER \\\m_ )
Membership No. 105545 Sl L

Place Mumbai
Date: 03 May 2017
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Tata Communications (Belgium) SPRL

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

Particulars Note As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016.
No. USD INR* usD INR*
(A)|ASSETS
(1) [Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1 80,473 5,224,307 108,986 7,220,322
Financial assets
(i) Loans 2 96,267 6,249,654 - -
(ii) Other financial assets 3 18,468 1,198,943 19,660 1,302,475
Non current tax asset 1,956 126,984 1,956 129,585
197,164 12,799,888 130,602 8,652,382
(2) [Current assets
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 4 64,517 4,188,443 74,040 4,905,150
(ii) Other financial assets 5 3,416 221,767 3,217 213,126
Other current assets 6 5,052 327,976 29,330 1,943,113
72,985 4,738,186 106,587 7,061,389
TOTAL ASSETS 270,149 17,538,074 237,189 15,713,771
(B)|EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) | Equity
Equity share capital 7 3,337,592 216,676,473 3,337,592 221,115,470
Other equity 8 (3,237,902) (210,204,597) (3,250,034) (215,314,753)
Total Equity 99,690 6,471,876 87,558 5,800,717
(2) [Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 9 - - 35,310 2,339,288
(ii) Trade payables 10 170,271 11,053,993 111,426 7,381,972
(iii) Other financial liabilities 11 188 12,205 1,945 128,856
Other current liabilities 12 - - 950 62,938
170,459 11,066,198 149,631 9,913,054
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 270,149 17,538,074 237,189 15,713,771
*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 USD = INR 64.92 (as at 31 March 2016 1 USD = INR 66.25 )
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Tata Communications (Belgium) SPRL

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

11. Tata Communications (Belgium) SPRL

. Note No. Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
Particulars :
USD INR* USD INR*
i |Revenue from telecommunications services 13 614,694 39,905,934 588,200 38,968,250
ii |Other Income 14 6,676 433,406 12,158 805,468
iii [Total income (i + ii) 621,370 40,339,340 600,358 39,773,718
iv |Expenses:
(i) Network and transmission expenses 15 400,712 26,014,223 380,422 25,202,958
(ii) Operating and other expenses 16 163,050 10,585,205 150,693 9,983,412
(iii) Finance costs 17 888 57,649 (19,648) (1,301,680)
(iv) Depreciation and amortisation expenses 44,588 2,894,653 82,048 5,435,680
Total expenses 609,238 39,551,730 593,515 39,320,370
v |Profit before taxes (iii - iv) 12,132 787,610 6,843 453,348
vi |Tax expenses
(i) Current tax expense/(benefit) = - - -
(ii) Deferred tax expense/(benefit) & i = %
Net tax expenses g = 2 -
vii | Profit / (loss) for the year (v-vi) 12,132 787,610 6,843 453,348
*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 USD = INR 64.92 (as at 31 March 2016 1 USD = INR 66.25 )
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Tata Communications (Belgium) SPRL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

1 Property, plant and equipment

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

Particular
A e USD INR USD INR
Gross block:
Plant and machinery 1,297,409 84,227,792 1,667,484 110,470,815
(a) 1,297,409 84,227,792 1,667,484 110,470,815
Accumulated depreciation:
Plant and machinery 1,216,936 79,003,485 1,558,498 103,250,493
(b) 1,216,936 79,003,485 1,558,498 103,250,493
(a)-(b) 80,473 5,224,307 108,986 7,220,322

Net block

2 Non-current assets - financial assets - loans

Particulars As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

USD INR USD INR
Inter company loans given © 96,267 6,249,654 - -
Total 96,267 6,249,654 - -

3 Non-current assets - financial assets - nther financial assets

Particulars As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
USD INR uSD INR
Vendor deposits 18,468 1,198,943 19,660 1,302,475
Total 18,468 1,198,943 19,660 1,302,475
4 Trade receivables
Particular As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
ERLee USD INR USD INR
Trade receivables 49,198 3,193,934 74,040 4,905,150
Intercompany receivables 16,174 1,050,016 - -
Provision for doubtful debts (855) (55,507) - -
Total 64,517 4,188,443 74,040 4,905,150
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Tata Communications (Belgium) SPRL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

5 Current assets - other financial assets

ot As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
A USD INR USD INR
Security Deposit 3,217 208,848 3,217 213,126
Others 199 12,919 - -
Total 3,416 221,767 3,217 213,126
6 Current assets - other assets
Barticular As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
R USD INR USD INR
Prepaid expenses 684 | 44,405 29,330 1,943,113
Indirect tax receivable 4,368 283,571 - _ -
Total 5,052 327,976 29,330 ' 1,943,113
7 Equity share capital
Particnlar As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
by USD INR USD INR
Equity share capital 3,337,592 216,676,473 3,337,592 221,115,470
Total i 3,337,592 216,676,473 3,337,592 221,115,470
8 Other Equity
As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Particulars
USD INR - USD INR
Surplus / (Deficit)
Opening balance (3,250,034) (210,992,207) (3,256,877) (215,768,101)
Profit / (loss) for the year 12,132 787,610 6,843 453,348
Closing balance (3,237,902) (210,204,597) (3,250,034) (215,314,753)
9  Current liabilities - borrowings
Particila As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
i 19 USD INR USD INR
Inter company loans taken - - 35,310 2,339,288
Total - - 35,310 2,339,288
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Tata Communications (Belgium) SPRL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

10 Current liabilities - Trade payables

Particul As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
i USD INR USD INR
Trade payable 170,271 11,053,993 103,877 6,881,851
Inter Company - Payables - - 7,549 500,121
Total 170,271 11,053,993 111,426 7,381,972
11 Current liabilities - other financial liabilities
Paticalar As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
= USD INR USD INR
Interest accrued but not due 188 12,205 1,057 70,026
Others - - 888 58,830
Total 188 12,205 1,945 128,856
12 Current liabilities - other current liabilities
As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Particulars
USD INR USD INR
Other Statutory dues - - 950 62,938
Total - - 950 62,938
13 Revenue from operations
Partical Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
s USD INR USD INR
Data and voice revenue 614,694 39,905,934 588,200 38,968,250
Total 614,694 39,905,934 588,200 38,968,250
14 Other income
Fariculus Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
e USD INR USD INR
Interest on loan to subsidiaries 791 51,352 119 7,884
Profit on sale of fixed assets 1 65 - -
Exchange gain -Net - - 11,661 772,541
Miscellaneous income 5,884 381,989 378 25,043
Total 6,676 433,406 | 12,158 805,468
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Tata Communications (Belgium) SPRL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

15 Network and transmission expenses

. Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
Particulars
USD INR USD INR
Charges for use of transmission facilities 400,712 26,014,223 380,422 25,202,958
Total 400,712 26,014,223 380,422 25,202,958
16 Operating and other expenses
. Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
Particulars
USD INR USD INR
Advertising and publicity - - 1,405 93,081
Auditors remuneration 46,200 2,999,304 46,200 3,060,750
Bad debts _ - 71,128 4,712,230
Communication expenses - - 56 3,710
Electricity 8,249 535,525 13,416 888,810
Exchange loss -Net 486 31,551 - -
Insurance expenses 2,575 167,169 2,784 184,440
Legal and professional fees 26,719 1,734,597 16,610 1,100,413
Miscellaneous expenses 2.851 185,086 1,695 112,293
Provision for doubtful debts 855 55,507 (71,128) (4,712,230)
Rates and Taxes 1,676 108,806 1,815 120,244
Rent - - 20,864 1,382,240
Repairs and Maintenance 72,174 4,685,536 44,498 2,947,993
- Plant & Machinery
Services rendered by agencies 1,265 82,124 1,350 89,438
Total 163,050 10,585,205 150,693 9,983,412
17 Finance costs
. Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
Particulars
USD INR USD INR
Interest expenses 871 56,545 1,418 93,943
Guarantee fees 17 1,104 (21,066) (1,395,623)
Total 888 57,649 (19,648) (1,301,680)
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Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON COMPILATION OF UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To
The Board of Directors
Tata Communications Limited

On the basis of the trail balance and other information and explanations provided to us by the
management, we have compiled the balance sheet of Tata Communications (Bermuda) Ltd.
(“the subsidiary”) registered in Bermuda as at 31 March 2017 and the related statement of profit
and loss for the year then ended, attached herewith.

The management of the subsidiary is responsible for:

a) Completeness and accuracy of the underlying data and complete disclosure of all material
and relevant information to the accountant;

b) Maintaining adequate accounting and other records and internal controls and selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies;

c) Preparation and presentation of financial statements in accordance with the applicable laws
and regulations;

d) Establishing controls to safeguard the assets of the entity and preventing and detecting frauds
or other irregularities;

e) Establishing controls for ensuring that the activities of the entity are carried out in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations and preventing and detecting any non-compliance.

The compilation engagement was carried out by us in accordance with the Standards on Related
Services Engagements (ISRS 4410) “Engagements to Compile Financial Information”, issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

This balance sheet and statement of profit and loss has been compiled by us for the purpose of
preparation of statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, based on trial
balance and other information provided by the management.

B
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Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

The balance sheet and the statement of profit and loss are in agreement with the books of :
account. We have not audited or reviewed these financial statements and accordingly express no
opinion thereon.

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 121750W / W-100010

W
N
NI
(Vinodkumar Varma)

PARTNER
Membership No. 105545

Place Mumbai
Date: 03 May 2017
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Tata Communications (Bermuda) Ltd.

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

Particulars Note As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
No. USD INR* uUSD INR*
(A)|ASSETS
(1) |[Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1 560,599,638 36,394,128,499 605,710,601 40,128,327,316
Capital work-in-progress 1,375,114 89,272,401 2,573,318 170,482,318
Goodwill : - - 71,967,630 4,767,855,488
Investments in subsidiaries & associates 2 20,452,924 1,327,803,826 21,787,365 1,443,412,931
Other non-current assets 3 5,337,087 346,483,688 6,604,258 437,532,093
587,764,763 38,157,688,414 708,643,172 46,947,610,146
(2) [Current assets
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 4 3,250,420 211,017,267 13,870,299 918,907,309
(ii) Cash and cash equivalent 5 108,271 7,028,953 3,592,027 237,971,789
(iii) Other financial assets 6 131,805 8,556,781 3,938 260,893
Other current assets a 1,940,447 125,973,819 1,615,981 107,058,741
5,430,943 352,576,820 19,082,245 1,264,198,732
TOTAL ASSETS 593,195,706 38,510,265,234 727,725,417 48.211,808,878
(BY|EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) | Equity
Equity share capital 8 13,061 847,920 13,061 865,291
Other equity 9| (374,895,744) (24,338,231,699)| (290,423,966)| (19,240,587,746)
Total Equity (374,882,683) (24,337,383,779) (290,410,905)| (19,239,722,455)
(2) |Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 10 48,297,905 3,135,499,993 64,275,380 4,258,243,925
(ii) Other financial liabilities 1 - - 158,076 10,472,535
Provisions 12 629,733 40,882,266 577,987 38,291,639
Other non current liabilities (Deferred revenue) 223,030,519 14,479,141,293 | 244,041,451 16,167,746,129
271,958,157 17,655,523,552 309,052,894 20,474,754,228
(3) [Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 1 628,484,920 40,801,241,006 638,343,405 42,290,250,581
(ii) Trade payables 14 16,706,697 1,084,598,769 18,470,945 1,223,700,106
(iii) Other financial liabilities 15 29,265,467 1,899,914,118 30,554,662 2,024,246,358
Other current liabilities 16 21,663,148 1,406,371,568 21,714,416 1,438,580,060
696,120,232 45,192,125,461 709,083,428 46,976,777,105
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 593,195,706 38,510,265,234 727,725,417 48,211,808,878

*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 USD =INR 64.92 (as at 31 March 2016 1 USD = INR 66.25)
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Tata Communications (Bermuda) Ltd.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

. Note No. Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
Particulars
USD INR* uSh INR*
i [Revenue from lelecommunicmi.ons services 17 56,932,297 3,696,044,721 43,066,568 2,853,160,130
i [Other Income 18 42,543,527 2,761,925,773 59,806,119 3,962,155,384

iii |Total income (i + ii) 99,475,824 6,457,970,494 102,872,687 6,815,315,514

iv |Expenses:

(i) Network and transmission expenses 19 2,554,360 165,829,051 2,786,792 184,624,970
(ii) Employee benefits expenses 20 391,780 25,434,358 410,049 27,165,747
(iii) Operating and other expenses 21 30,770,243 1,997,604,175 28,360,112 1,878,857,419
(iv) Finance costs 22 31,206,250 2,025,909,750 11,402,561 755,419,666
(v) Depreciation and amortisation expenses 47,644,069 3,093,052,959 47,170,869 3,125,070,071
(vi) Impairment loss on goodwill ) 71,967,632 4,672,138,669 - -
Total expenses 184,534,334 11,979,968,962 90,130,383 5,971,137,873
v |Profit before taxes (iii - iv) (85,058,510) (5,521,998,468) 12,742,304 844,177,641
vi [Tax expenses
(i) Current tax expense/(benefit) 5 H = §
(i) Deferred tax expense/(benefit) = i i -
Net tax expenses = & = 5
{
vii l Profit / (loss) for the year (v-vi) (85,058,510) (5,521,998,468) 12,742,304 844,177,641

*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 USD = INR 64.92 (as at 31 March 2016 1 USD = INR 66.25 )
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Tata Communications (Bermuda) Ltd.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

1 Property, plant and equipment

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

Particulars
USD INR usSD INR
Gross block:
Lease hold improvement 9,323 605,249 - -
Cables 862,468,803 55,991,474,691 859,770,403 56,959,789,199
Plant and machinery 48,762,769 3,165,678,963 48,941,460 3,242,371,725
Furniture and fixtures 2,000 129,840 - -
Computers 2,430 157,756 800 53,000
911,245,325 59,158,046,499 908,712,663 60,202,213,924
Accumulated depreciation:
Lease hold improvement 3,996 259,420 - =
Cables 317,186,758 20,591,764,329 273,445,012 18,115,732,045
Plant and machinery 33,452,253 2,171,720,265 29,556,250 1,958,101,563
Furniture and fixtures 250 16,230 - -
Computers 2,430 157,756 800 53,000
350,645,687 22,763,918,000 303,002,062 20,073,886,608
Net block 560,599,638 36,394,128,499 605,710,601 40,128,327,316

2 Investments in subsidiaries & associates

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

Particulars USD INR USD INR
stiats b subsidinties 20,452,924 1,327,803,826 | 21,787,365 1,443.412,931
Total 20,452,924 1327,803,826 | 21,787,365 1,443,412,931

3 Non-current assets - others

Particulars As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

USD INR USD INR
Prepaid expenses 5,337,087 346,483,688 6,604,258 437,532,093
Total 5,337,087 346,483,688 6,604,258 437,532,093

4 Trade receivables

e As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

s USD INR USD INR
Trade receivables 411,053 26,685,561 3,667,195 242,951,669
Intercompany receivables 2,839,367 184,331,706 10,203,104 675,955,640
Total 3,250,420 211,017,267 13,870,299 918,907,309
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Tata Communications (Bermuda) Ltd.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

5 Cash and cash equivalents

Particular As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
S USD INR USD INR
Balance with bank 108,271 7,028,953 3,592,027 237,971,789
Total 108,271 7,028,953 3,592,027 237,971,789
6 Current assets - other financial assets
As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Particulars
USD INR USD INR
Others 131,805 8,556,781 3,938 260,893
Total 131,805 8,556,781 3,938 260,893
7  Current assets - other assets
Particular As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
i USD INR USD INR
Prepaid expenses 1,940,447 125,973,819 1,615,981 107,058,741
Total 1,940,447 125,973,819 1,615,981 107,058,741
8 Equity share capital
Particular As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
ARCECAIE USD INR USD INR
Equity share capital 13,061 847,920 13,061 865,291
Total 13,061 847,920 13,061 865,291
9 Other Equity
Particular As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
S USD INR USD INR
Surplus / (Deficit)
Opening balance (300,569,373)( (19,512,963,695) (313,311,677)| (20,756,898,601)
Profit / (loss) for the year (85,058,510) (5,521,998,468) 12,742,304 844,177,641
Closing balance (385,627,883) (25,034,962,163)| (300,569,373)| (19,912,720,960)
$
Share premium 10,609,539 688,797,240 10,609,939 702,908,459
OCI - Reserves derivatives 122,200 7,933,224 (464,532) (30,775,245)
Total (374,895,744)|  (24,338,231,699)| (290,423,966)| (19,240,587,746)
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Tata Communications (Bermuda) Ltd.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

10 Non-current liabilities - borrowings

11

12

13

14

15

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR USD INR
Loan from banks 48,297,905 3,135,499,993 64,275,380 4,258,243,925
Total 48,297,905 3,135,499,993 64,275,380 4,258,243,925

Non-current liabilities - other financial liabilities

As at 31 March 2017

Asat 31 March 2016

P 3 ] .

Argenars USD INR USD INR
Derivative liabilities - - 158,076 10,472,535
Total - - 158,076 10,472,535

Non-current liabilities - provisions

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR USD INR
Asset retirement obligation and others 629,733 40,882,266 577,987 38,291,639
Total 629,733 40,882,266 577,987 38,291,639

Current liabilities - borrowings

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

R USD INR USD INR
Inter company loans taken 628,484,920 40,801,241,006 638,343,405 42,290,250,581
Total 628,484,920 40,801,241,006 638,343,405 42,290,250,581

Current liabilities - Trade payables

As'at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

Particular

aptriaxs USD INR USD INR

Trade payable 16,706,697 1,084,598,769 18,470,945 1,223,700,106
Total 16,706,697 1,084,598,769 18,470,045 1.223.700,106

Current liabilities - other financial liabilities

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR USD INR
Current portion of long term loans 15,977,4'15 1,037,257,677 15,977,475 1,058,507,719
Deposit from customers and contractors 1,006,650 65,351,718 201,941 13,378,591
Interest accrued but not due 12,281,342 797,304,723 14,068,790 932,057,338
Derivative Liabilities s - 306,456 20,302,710
Total 29,265,467 1,899,914,118 30,554,662 2,024,246,358
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Tata Communications (Bermuda) Ltd.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

16 Current liabilities - other current liabilities

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR USD INR
Deferred revenue and advance from 21,634,276 1,404,497,198 21,677,443 1,436,130,599
customers
Other Employee dues 28,872 1,874,370 36,973 2,449,461
Total 21,663,148 1,406,371,568 21,714,416 1,438,580,060

17 Revenue from operations

Current year 2016-17

Previous year 2015-16

P 1 -

axtoulgss USD INR USD INR

Data and voice revenue 56,932,297 3,696,044,721 43,066,568 2,853,160,130
Total 56,932,297 3,696,044,721 43,066,568 2,853,160,130

18 Other income

Current year 2016-17

Previous year 2015-16

Raiculare USD INR USD INR
Dividend income 42,300,000 2,746,116,000 54,850,000 3,633,812,500
Interest income - others 2,036 132,177 136 9,010
Interest on loan to subsidiaries - - 3,853,117 255,269,001
Profit on sale of fixed assets 239,701 15,561,389 997,387 66,076,889
Exchange gain -Net 1,790 116,207 105,479 6,987,984
Total 42,543,527 2,761,925,773 59,806,119 3,962,155,384

19 Network and transmission expenses

Current year 2016-17

Previous year 2015-16

Particulars ) INR UsD INR
Charges for use of transmission facilities 2,554,360 165,829,051 2,786,792 184,624,970
Total 2,554,360 165,829,051 2,786,792 184,624,970

20 Employee benefit expenses

Particulars Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16

USDh INR USD INR
Salaries, bonus and allowances 391,780 25,434,358 409,751 27,146,004
Staff welfare expenses - - 298 19,743
Total 391,780 25,434,358 410,049 27,165,747
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Tata Communications (Bermuda) Ltd.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

21

22

Operating and other expenses

Particulars

Current year 2016-17

Previous year 2015-16

USD INR USD INR

Asset retirement expense 135,856 8,819,772 1,738,245 115,158,731
Auditors remuneration 8,837 573,698 5,737 380,076
Bad debts - - 3,749 248,371
Communication expenses 13,225 858,567 13,111 868,604
Entertainment expenses 496 32,200 462 30,608
Insurance expenses 19,286 1,252,047 15,782 1,045,558
IT consumables 191 12,400 225 14,906
Legal and professional fees 16,193 1,051,250 15,679 1,038,734
Miscellaneous expenses 1,978 128,411 104,813 6,943,859
Printing and stationery 2,479 160,937 3,803 251,949
Provision for doubtful debts - - (3,749) (248,371)
Rates and Taxes 3,058 198,525 4,166 275,998
Recruitment expenses 563 36,550 650 43,063
Rent » 21,082 1,368,643 35,677 2,363,601
Repairs and Maintenance 30,416,005 1,974,607,045 26,304,116 1,742,647,685
- Plant & Machinery

Repairs and Maintenance -Building 2,808 182,295 1,817 120,376
Seminars, trainings and conferences - - 124 8,215
Services rendered by agencies 105,964 6,879,183 85,013 5,632,111
Travelling and conveyance expenses 22,222 1,442,652 30,692 2,033,345
Total 30,770,243 1,997,604,175 28,360,112 1,878,857,419

Finance costs

Current year 2016-17

Previous year 2015-16

Particulars

USD INR USD INR
Interest expenses 28,720,019 1,864,503,633 31,490,823 2,086,267,024
Guarantee fees 2,486,231 161,406,117 (20,088,262) (1,330,847,358)
Total 31,206,250 2,025,909,750 11,402,561 755,419,666
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Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON COMPILATION OF UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To
The Board of Directors
Tata Communications Limited

On the basis of the trail balance and other information and explanations provided to us by the
management, we have compiled the balance sheet of Tata Communications (Canada) LTD.
(“the subsidiary”) registered in Canada as at 31 March 2017 and the related statement of profit and
loss for the year then ended, attached herewith.

The management of the subsidiary is responsible for:

a) Completeness and accuracy of the underlying data and complete disclosure of all material
and relevant information to the accountant;

b) Maintaining adequate accounting and other records and internal controls and selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies;

c) Preparation and presentation of financial statements in accordance with the applicable laws
and regulations;

d) Establishing controls to safeguard the assets of the entity and preventing and detecting frauds
or other irregularities;

e) Establishing controls for ensuring that the activities of the entity are carried out in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations and preventing and detecting any non-compliance.

The compilation engagement was carried out by us in accordance with the Standards on Related
Services Engagements (ISRS 4410) “Engagements to Compile Financial Information”, issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

This balance sheet and statement of profit and loss has been compiled by us for the purpose of
preparation of statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, based on trial
balance and other information provided by the management.
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Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

The balance sheet and the statement of profit and loss are in agreement with the books of
account. We have not audited or reviewed these financial statements and accordingly express no
opinion thereon.

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 121750W / W-100010

W
N

NS
(Vinodkumar Varma)

PARTNER
Membership No. 105545

Place Mumbai
Date: 03 May 2017
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Tata Communications (Canada) LTD,

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

Particulars Note As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016‘
No. USD INR* UsSD INR*
(A)|ASSETS
(1) [Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1 30,992,667 2,012,043,943 31,770,341 2,104,785,091
Capital work-in-progress 1,951,343 126,681,188 2,708,376 179,429910
Goodwill - - 10,001,989 662,631,771
Other intangible assets 2 9,115,921 591,805,591 7,774,604 515,067,515
Intangible assets under development 2,551,757 165,660,064 5,020,421 332,602,891
Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 3 2,379 154,445 2,344 155,290
Non current tax asset 1,087,630 70,608,940 437,762 29,001,733
Other non-current assets 4 12,956,898 841,161,818 13,739,363 910,232,799
58,658,595 3,808,115,989 71,455,200 4,733,907,000
(2) |Current assets
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 5 61,058,879 3,963,942,425 99,630,958 6,600,550,968
(ii) Cash and cash equivalent 6 581,379 37,743,125 282,638 18,724,768
(iii) Other financial assets 7 3,146,410 204,264,937 3,215,190 213,006,338
Other current assets 8 3,171,251 205,877,616 1,579,199 104,621,934
67,957,919 4,411,828,103 104,707,985 6,936,904,008
! TOTAL ASSETS 126,616,514 8,219,944,092 176,163,185 11,670,811,008
{
(B)|EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) [Equity
Equity share capita! 9 66,520,000 4,318,478,400 66,520,000 4,406,950,000
Other equity 10| (275,593,980)| (17,891,561,178)| (247,130,404)| (16,372,389,265)
Total Equity (209,073,980)( (13,573,082,778)| (180,610,404)| (11,965,439,265)
(2) |Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 11 100,000,000 6,492,000,000 - -
(ii) Other financial liabilities 12 618,376 40,144,970 752,551 49,856,504
Provisions 13 1,672,389 108,571,494 1,496,131 99,118,679
Other non current liabilities (Deferred revenue) 695,249 45,135,565 819,228 54,273,855
102,986,014 6,685,852,029 3,067,910 203,249,038
(3) [Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings i4 89,456,797 5,807,535,261 205,728,392 13,629,505,970
(ii) Trade payables 15 134,293,854 8,718,357,002 134,759,480 8,927,815,550
(iii) Other financial liabilities 16 2,364,950 153,532,553 6,283,391 416,274,654
Other current liabilities 17 5,652,463 366,957,898 6,140,203 406,788,450
Provisions * 18 936,416 60,792,127 794,213 52,616,611
232,704,480 15,107,174,841 353,705,679 23,433,001,235
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 126,616,514 8,219,944,092 | 176,163,185 11,670,811,008

*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 USD =INR 64.92 (as at 31 March 2016 1 USD =INR 66.25 )
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Tata Communications (Canada) LTD.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

i Note No. Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
Particulars
USD INR* uUsb INR*

i |Revenue from teleccmmunications services 19 473,221,749 30,721,555,945 565,544,724 37.467,337,965
i |Other Income 20 16,342,887 1,060,980,224 4,792,554 317,506,703
iii [Total income (i + ii) 489,564,636 31,782,536,169 | 570,337,278 37,784,844,668
iv |Expenses:

(i) Network and transmission expenses 21 437,904,154 28,428,737,677 | 499,815,332 33,112,765,745

(ii) Employee benefits expenses 22 29,776,310 1,933,078,045 32,219,846 2,134,564,798

(iii) Operating and other expenses 23 20,966,598 1,361,151,540 29,060,803 1,925,278,198

(iv) Finance costs 24 8,478,146 550,401,238 8,343,638 552,766,018

(v) Depreciation and amortisation expenses 9,612,523 624,044,993 14,177,948 939,289,055

(v1) Staff optimisation cost 461,994 29,992,650 2,568,799 170,182,934

(vii) Impairment loss on goodwill 10,001,989 649,329,126 - -

Total expenses 517,201,714 33,576,735,269 | 586,186,366 38,834,846,748
v [Profit before taxes (iii - iv) (27,637,078) (1,794,199,100)| (15,849,088) (1,050,002,080)
vi | Tax expenses

(i) Current tax expense/(benefit) - - 11,205 742,331

(i1) Deferred tax expense/(benefit) - - - -

Net tax expenses - - 11,205 742,331
vii | Profit/ (loss) for the year (v-vi) (27,637,078) (1,794,199,100)| (15,860,293) (1,050,744 411)

*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 USD =INR 64.92 (as at 31 March 2016 1 USD = INR 66.25 )
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Tata Communications (Canada) LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

1 Property, plant and equipment

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

Particulars USD INR UsD INR
Gross block:
Land 7,750,000 503,130,000 7,750,000 513,437,500
Building 6,925,865 449,627,156 6,867,928 455,000,230
Lease hold improvement 3,107,125 201,714,555 3,107,125 205,847,031
Cables 86,152 5,592,988 1,094,941 72,539,841
Plant and machinery 78,290,505 5,082,619,585 77,101,192 5,107,953,970
Furniture and fixtures 5,033,323 326,763,329 4,137,472 274,107,520
Computers 15,876,229 1,030,684,787 15,950,159 1,056,698,034
Office equipment 1,361,962 88,418,573 1,123,962 74,462,483
(a) 118,431,161 7,688,550,973 117,132,779 7,760,046,609
Accumulated depreciation:
Building 2,832,498 183,885,770 2,534,571 167,915,329
Lease hold improvement 2,196,779 142,614,893 1,954,020 129,453,825
Cables 56,440 3,664,085 918,687 60,863,014
Plant and machinery 62,722,044 4,071,915,096 60,799,028 4,027,935,605
Furniture and fixtures 3,414,389 221,662,134 3,188,873 211,262,836
Computers 15,528,147 1,008,087,303 15,382,514 1,019,091,553
Office equipment 688,197 44,677,749 584,745 38,739,356
(b) 87,438,494 5,676,507,030 85,362,438 5,655,261,518
Net block (a) - (b) 30,992,667 2,012,043,943 31,770,341 2,104,785,091
2 Other intangible assets
. As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Fartiylan USD INR USD INR
Gross block:
Computer software 75,019,508 4,870,266,459 69,476,895 4,602,844,294
(a) 75,019,508 4,870,266,459 69,476,895 4,602,844,294
Accumulated amortisation:
Computer software 65,903,587 4,278,460,868 61,702,291 4,087,776,779
(b) 65,903,587 4,278,460,868 61,702,291 4,087,776,779
Net block (a) - (b) 9,115,921 591,805,591 7,774,604 515,067,515

3 Non-current assets - financial assets - other financial assets

Particulars As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

USD INR USD INR
Vendor deposits 2,379 154,445 2,344 155,290
Total 2,379 154,445 2,344 155,290
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Tata Communications (Canada) LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

4

7

Non-current assets - others

Particulars As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

UsSD INR uUSD INR
Prepaid expenses 2,519,801 163,585,481 2,043,937 135,410,826
Prepaid pension asset 10,437,097 677,576,337 11,695,426 774,821,973

Total

12,956,898 841,161,818

910,232,799

13,739,363

Trade receivables

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

Fantienlas USD INR USD INR
Trade receivables 48,783,277 3,167,010,343 67,802,551 4,491,919,004
Intercompany receivables 15,008,456 974,348,964 33,716,175 2,233,696,594
Provision for doubtful debts (2,732,854) (177,416,882) (1,887,768) (125,064,630)
Total 61,058,879 3,963,942,425 99,630,958 6,600,550,968

Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

P‘ e -

ARLlCg USD INR USD INR

Cash in hand - - 98 6,493
Balance with bank 581,379 37,743,125 282,540 18,718,275
Total 581,379 37,743,125 282,638 18,724,768

Current assets - other financial assets

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

Particular
U TS USD INR USD INR
Advances to employees 42,411 2,753,322 48,514 3,214,053
Others 3,103,999 201,511,615 3,166,676 209,792,285
Total 3,146,410 204,264,937 3,215,190 213,006,338

Current assets - other assets

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR USD INR

Advances to Vendors / Suppliers 165,980 10,775,422 102,271 6,775,454
Other Advances 2 130 98 6,493
Prepaid expenses 2,128,856 138,205,332 1,021,185 67,653,506
Indirect tax receivable 876,413 56,896,732 455,645 30,186,481
Total 3,171,251 205,877,616 1,579,199 104,621,934

«'_ {4

\Q
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Tata Communications (Canada) LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

9 Equity share capital

Particular As ai 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Priae USD INR USD INR
Equity share capital 66,520,000 4,318,478,400 66,520,000 4,406,950,000
Total 66,520,000 4,318,478,400 66,520,000 4,406,950,000
10 Other Equity
. As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Particulars
USD INR USD INR
Surplus / (Deficit)
Opening balance (215,838,841)| (14,012,257,558)| (199,978,548)| (13,248,578,805)
Profit / (loss) for the year (27,637,078) (1,794,199,100) (15,860,293) (1,050,744,411)
Closing balance (243,475,919)| (15,806,456,658)| (215,838,841)| (14,299,323,216)
OCI Reserves Employee Benefit Plan (32,118,061) (2,085,104,520) (31,291,563) (2,073,066,049)
Total (275,593,980)| (17,891,561,178)| (247,130,404)| (16,372,389,265)
11 Non-current liabilities - borrowings
Paptici As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
AEeiepes USD INR USD INR
Loan from banks 100,090,000 6,492,000,000 - -
Total| 100,000,000 6,492,000,000 - -
12 Non-current liabilities - other financial liabilities
Particul As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
A USD INR USD INR
Lease equalisation 618,376 40,144,970 752,551 49,856,504
Total 618,376 40,144,970 752,551 49,856,504
13 Non-current liabilities - provisions
Particular As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
e USD INR USD INR
Pension liablity 1,100,533 71,446,602 1,056,041 69,962,716
Retention liability 571,856 37,124,892 440,090 29,155,963
Total 1,672,389 108,571,494 1,496,131 99,118,679
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Tata Communications (Canada) LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

14 Current liabilities - borrowings

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

BarnCObpr USD INR USD INR
Loan from bank 25,000,000 1,623,000,000 - -
Inter company loans taken 64,456,797 4,184,535,261 205,728,392 13,629,505,970
Total 89,456,797 5,807,535,261 205,728,392 13,629,505,970
15 Current liabilities - Trade payables
Pavtioulas As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
aseias USD INR USD INR
Trade payable 134,293,854 8,718,357,002 134,759,480 8,927,815,550
Total 134,293,854 8,718,357,002 134,759,480 8,927,815,550
16 Current liabilities - other financial liabilities
S ortah As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
e USD INR USD INR
Deposit from customers and contractors 1,171,696 76,066,504 1,151,505 76,287,206
Interest accrued but not due 1,100,857 71,467,636 4,535,332 300,465,745
Others 92,397 5,998,413 596,554 39,521,703
Total 2,364,950 153,532,553 6,283,391 416,274,654
17 Current liabilities - other current liabilities
et As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
AR USD INR USD INR
Deferred revenue and advance from 147,163 9,553,822 147,163 9,749,549
customers
Other Employee dues 4,837,796 314,069,716 5,250,082 347,817,933
Other Statutory dues 656,316 42,608,035 738,483 48,924,499
Others 11,188 726,325 4,475 296,469
Total 5,652,463 366,957,898 6,140,203 406,788,450
18 Current liabilities - provisons

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

UsSDh INR USD INR
Leave entitlement 936,416 60,792,127 794,213 52,616,611
Total 936,416 60,792,127 794,213 52,616,611
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Tata Communications (Canada) LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

19 Revenue from operations

Current year 2016-17

Previous year 2015-16

Pardeulars USD INR USD INR
Data and voice revenue 473,221,749 | 30,721,555945 | 565,544,724 | 37,467,337,965
Total 473221749 | 30,721,555945 | 565,544,724 |  37,467,337,965

20 Other income

Current year 2016-17

Previous year 2015-16

Particulars USD INR USD INR
Interest income - others 2,380 154,510 472 31,270
Interest on loan to subsidiaries 438,005 28,435,285 - -
Profit on sale of fixed assets 1,880,660 122,092,447 442 29,283
Exchange gain -Net 11,086,835 719,757,328 - -
Miiscellaneous income 2,935,007 190,540,654 4,791,640 317,446,150
Total 16,342,887 1,060,980,224 4,792,554 317,506,703

21 Network and transmission expenses

Current year 2016-17

Previous year 2015-16

Particulars USD INR USD INR
Charges for use of transmission facilities 434,990,419 |  28,239,578,001 | 492,487,096 |  32,627,270,110
Rent of satellite channels 2,913,735 189,159,676 7,328,236 485,495,635
Total 437,004,154 | 28428,737,677 | 499,815,332 |  33,112,765,745

22 Employee benefit expenses

13. Tata Communications (Canada) Ltd.

Particulars Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
USD INR USD ’ INR
Salaries, bonus and allowances 26,316,321 1,708,455,559 29,293,379 1,940,686,359
Contribution to provident and other funds 3,235,624 210,056,710 2,660,437 176,253,951
Staff welfare expenses 224,365 14,565,776 266,030 17,624,488
Total 29,776,310 1,933,078,045 32,219,846 2,134,564,798
V& A2
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Tata Communications (Canada) LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

23 Operating and other expenses

. Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
Particulars
USD INR USD INR

Advertising and publicity 1,408,348 91,429,952 1,440,766 95,450,748
Auditors remuneration 21,034 1,365,527 17,150 1,136,188
Bad debts - 6,177,370 409,250,763
Communication expenses 481,008 31,227,039 710,773 47,088,711
Donations 1,163 75,502 1,259 83,409
Electricity 1,397,166 90,704,017 1,441,070 95,470,888
Entertainment expenses 26,835 1,742,128 46,875 3,105,469
Exchange loss -Net - - 7,136,571 472,797,829
Insurance expenses 191,953 12,461,589 208,683 13,825,249
IT consumables 13,248 860,060 40,637 2,692,201
Legal and professional fees 2,165,350 140,574,522 2,751,445 182,283,231
Miscellaneous expenses 433,470 28,140,870 480,940 31,862,271
Printing and stationery 72,987 4,738,316 102,600 6,797,250
Provision for doubtful debts 845,087 54,863,048 (6,185,777) (409,807,726)
Rates and Taxes 999,463 64,885,138 1,058,772 70,143,645
Recruitment expenses 32,309 2,097,500 14,701 973,941
Relocation Expense 95,726 6,214,532 102,997 6,823,551
Rent 1,339,302 86,947,486 1,379,635 91,400,819
Repairs and Maintenance 7,283,818 472,865,465 8,717,111 577,508,604
- Plant & Machinery

Repairs and Maintenance -Building 224,288 14,560,777 261,983 17,356,374
Security charges 277,629 18,023,675 255,326 16,915,348
Seminars, trainings and conferences 166,997 10,841,445 237,497 15,734,176
Services rendered by agencies 2,203,028 143,020,578 1,250,514 82,846,553
Travelling and conveyance expenses 1,286,389 83,512,374 1,411,905 93,538,706
Total - 20,966,598 1,361,151,540 29,060,803 1,925,278,198

24 Finance costs

. Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
Particulars
USD INR USD INR
Interest expenses 7,966,064 517,156,875 7,885,279 522,399,734
Guarantee fees 512,082 33,244,363 458,359 30,366,284
Total 8,478,146 550,401,238 8,343,638 552,766,018
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ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON COMPILATION OF UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To
The Board of Directors
Tata Communications Limited

On the basis of the trail balance and other information and explanations provided to us by the
management, we have compiled the balance sheet of Tata Communications (France) SAS (“the
subsidiary”) registered in France as at 31 March 2017 and the related statement of profit and loss
for the year then ended, attached herewith.

The management of the subsidiary is responsible for:

a) Completeness and accuracy of the underlying data and complete disclosure of all material
and relevant information to the accountant;

b) Maintaining adequate accounting and other records and internal controls and selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies;

c) Preparation and presentation of financial statements in accordance with the applicable laws
and regulations;

d) Establishing controls to safeguard the assets of the entity and preventing and detecting frauds
or other irregularities;

e) Establishing controls for ensuring that the activities of the entity are carried out in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations and preventing and detecting any non-compliance.

The compilation engagement was carried out by us in accordance with the Standards on Related
Services Engagements (ISRS 4410) “Engagements to Compile Financial Information”, issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

This balance sheet and statement of profit and loss has been compiled by us for the purpose of
preparation of statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, based on trial
balance and other information provided by the management.

14. Tata Communications (France) SAS



Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

The balance sheet and the statement of profit and loss are in agreement with the books of
account. We have not audited or reviewed these financial statements and accordingly express no
opinion thereon.

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 121750W / W-100010

oV
\IW

(Vinodkumar Varma)

PARTNER

Membership No. 105545

Place Mumbai
Date: 03 May 2017
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Tata Communications (France) SAS

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

Particulars Note As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
No. USD INR* USD INR*
(A)|ASSETS
(1) |[Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1 32,826,011 2,131,064,633 30,322,720 2,008,880,200
Capital work-in-progress 1,183,787 76,851,452 1,104,684 73,185315
Other intangible assets 2 24,880 1,615,210 145,409 9,633,346
Financial assets
(1) Loans 3 1,276,588 82,876,093 - -
(ii) Other financial assets 4 533,900 34,660,788 565,541 37,467,091
Non current tax asset 73,936 4,799,925 73,936 4,898,260
Other non-current assets 5 161,266 10,469,389 140,647 9,317,864
36,080,368 2,342,337,490 32,352,937 2,143,382,076
(2) |Current assets .
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 6 7,627,489 495,176,586 9,644,021 638,916,391
(ii) Cash and cash equivalent 7 1,856 120,492 1 66
(iii) Other financial assets 8 122,288 7,938,937 157,629 10,442,921
Other current assets 9 707,501 45,930,965 625,861 41,463,291
8,459,134 549,166,980 10,427,512 690,822,669
TOTAL ASSETS 44,539,502 2,891,504,470 42,780,449 2,834,204,745
(B)|EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) |[Equity
Equity share capital 10 20,391,358 1,323,806,961 20,391,358 1,350,927,468
Other equity 11 (18,134,422) (1,177,286,674)|  (17,691,675)( (1,172,073,473)
Total Equity 2,256,936 146,520,287 2,699,683 178,853,995
(2) [Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Other financial liabilities 12 416,111 27,013,926 364,802 24,168,133
Provisions 13 455,357 29,561,776 379,583 25,147,374
Other non current liabilities (Deferred revenue) 27,218,676 1,767,036,446 20,484,454 1,357,095,078
28,090,144 1,823,612,148 21,228,839 1,406,410,585
(3) [Current liabilities
TIivancial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 - - 4,887,690 323,809,463
(ii) Trade payables 15 6,684,276 433,943,197 8,447,241 559,629,716
(iii) Other financial liabilities 16 193,582 12,567,344 84,058 5,568,843
Other current liabilities 17 5,961,979 387,051,676 4,271,172 282,965,145
Provisions 18 1,352,585 87,809,818 1,161,766 76,966,998
14,192,422 921,372,035 18,851,927 1,248,940,165
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 44,539,502 2,891,504,470 42,780,449 2,834,204,745
*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 USD = INR 64.92 (as at 31 March 2016 1 USD = INR 66.25 )
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Tata Communications (France) SAS

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Note No. Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
Particulars -
USD INR* uUSD INR*
i [Revenue from telecommunications services 19 40,641,723 2,638,460,657 43,129,990 2,857,361,838
ii |Other Income 20 1,052,334 68,317,522 54,082 3,582,933
iii |Total income (i + ii) 41,694,057 2,706,778,179 43,184,072 2,860,944,771
iv |Expenses:
(i) Network and transmission expenses 21 20,822,926 1,351,824,356 22,810,001 1,511,162,566
(ii) Employee benefits expenses 22 10,959,133 711,466,915 9,792,625 648,761,407
(ii1) Operating and other expenses 23 3,914,636 254,138,165 5,181,376 343,266,164
(iv) Finance costs 24 163,492 10,613,900 (210,516) (13,946,685)
(v) Depreciation and amortisation expenses 5,500,071 357,064,609 5,404,142 358,024,408
(vi) Staff optimisation cost 634,905 41,218,033 317,468 21,032,255
Total expenses 41,995,163 2,726,325,978 43,295,096 2,868,300,115
v |Profit before taxes (iii - iv) (301,106) (19,547,799) (111,024) (7,355,344)
vi |Tax expenses
(i) Current tax expense/(benefit) C; & = -
(i1) Deferred tax expense/(benefit) = = e =
Net tax expenses = 2 = =
vii | Profit / (loss) for the year (v-vi) (301,106) (19,547,799) (111,024) (7,355,344)
*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 USD = INR 64.92 (as at 31 March 2016 1 USD = INR 66.25 )
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Tata Communications (France) SAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

1 Property, plant and equipment

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

Particulars USD NR ) INR
Gross block:
Lease hold improvement 653,718 42,439,373 184,423 12,218,024
Cables 34,235,685 2,222,580,670 28,322,869 1,876,390,071
Plant and machinery 37,683,484 2,446,411,781 36,639,234 2,427,349,253
Furniture and fixtures 157,669 10,235,871 146,502 9,705,758
Computers 111,100 7,212,612 127,404 8,440,515
Office equipment 86,094 5,589,222 85,243 5,647,349
(a) 72,927,750 4,734,469,529 65,505,675 4,339,750,970
Accumulated depreciation:
Lease hold improvement 137,932 8,954,545 92,831 6,150,054
Cables 13,624,091 884,475,988 11,367,896 753,123,110
Plant and machinery 26,059,904 1,691,808,968 23,459,540 1,554,194,525
Furniture and fixtures 131,158 8,514,777 116,754 7,734,953
Computers 93,915 6,096,962 95,952 6,356,820
Office equipment 54,739 3,553,656 49,982 3,311,308
(b) 40,101,739 2,603,404,896 35,182,955 2,330,870,770
Net block (a) - (b) 32,826,011 2,131,064,633 30,322,720 2,008,880,200
2 Other intangible assets
. ] As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Particulars USD INR UsD INR
Gross block:
Computer software 2,095,589 136,045,638 2,095,589 138,832,771
(a) 2,095,589 136,045,638 2,095,589 138,832,771
Accumulated amortisation: ]
Compuler software 2,070,709 134,430,428 1,950,180 129,199,425
(b) 2,070,709 134,430,428 1,950,180 129,199,425
Net block 24,880 1,615,210 145,409 9,633,346

() - (b)

3 Non-current assets - financial assets - loans

Particulars As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

USD INR USD INR
Inter company loans given 1,276,588 82,876,093 - -
Total 1,276,588 82,876,093 - -
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Tata Communications (France) SAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

4 Non-current assets - financial assets - other financial assets

Particulars As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

USD INR uUSD INR
Vendor deposits 533,900 34,660,788 565,541 37,467,091
Total 533,900 34,660,788 565,541 37,467,091

5 Non-current assets - others

Particulars As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
USD INR USD INR
Prepaid expenses "~ 161,266 10,469,389 140,647 9,317,864
Total 161,266 10,469,389 140,647 9,317,864
6 Trade receivables
— As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
HRE USD INR USD INR
Trade receivables 8,081,524 524,652,538 9,882,160 654,693,100
Provision for doubtful debts (454,035) (29,475,952) (238,139) (15,776,709)
Total 7,627,489 495,176,586 9,644,021 638,916,391

7  Cash and cash equivalents

Partienli As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

S USD INR USD T INR
Balance with bank 1,856 120,492 1 66
Total 1,856 120,492 1 66

8 Current assets - other finanéial assets
As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Particulars

USD INR usSD INR
Security Deposit 306 19,866 3,620 239,825
Advances to employees 71,072 4,613,994 105,344 6,979,040
Others 50,910 3,305,077 48,665 3,224,056
Total 122,288 7,938,937 157,629 10,442,921
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Tata Communications (France) SAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

9

10

11

Current assets - other assets

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR uUSD INR
Prepaid expenses 707,501 45,930,965 625,861 41,463,291
Total 707,501 45,930,965 625,861 41,463,291
Equity share capital
Puvticul As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
articutars USD INR USD INR
Equity share capital 20,391,358 1,323,806,961 20,391,358 1,350,927,468
Total 20,391,358 1,323,806,961 20,391,358 1,350,927,468
Other Equity
Partioul As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
b USD INR USD INR
Surplus / (Deficit)
Opening balance (17,833,316) (1,157,738,875) (17,722,292) (1,174,101,845)
Profit / (loss) for the year (301,106) (19,547,799) (111,024) (7,355,344)
Closing balance (18,134,422) (1,177,286,674) (17,833,316) (1,181,457,189)
Capital reserves - - 141,641 9,383,716
Total (18,134,422) 1,177,286,674) (17,691,675) (1,172,073,473)

12 Non-current liabilities - other financial liabilities

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

oty l -
Ve USD INR USD - INR
Lease equalisation 416,111 27,013,926 364,802 24,168,133
Total 416,111 27,013,926 364,802 24,168,133

13 Non-current liabilities - provisions

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR USD INR
Asset retirement obligation and others 343,761 22,316,964 318,471 21,098,704
Retention liability 111,596 7,244,812 61,112 4,048,670
Total 455,357 29,561,776 379,583 25,147,374
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Tata Communications (France) SAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

14 Current liabilities - borrowings

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

Srtlonie USD INR USD INR
Inter company loans taken - - 4,887,690 323,809,463
Total - - 4,887,690 323,809,463

15 Current liabilities - Trade payables

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR USD INR
Trade payable 5,645,769 | 366,523,323 6,869,952 455,134,320
Inter Company - Payables 1,038,507 67,419,874 1,577,289 104,495,396
Total 6,684,276 433,943,197 8,447,241 559,629,716

16 Current liabilities - other financial liabilities

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR uUsSD INR
Deposit from customers and contractors 59,813 3,883,060 62,514 4,141,553
Interest accrued but not due 49,304 3,200,816 18,613 1,233,111
Others 84,465 5,483,468 2,931 194,179
Total 193,582 12,567,344 84,058 5,568,843

17 Current liabilities - other current liabilities

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR UsSD INR
Deferred revenue and advance from 3,278,423 212,835,221 2,496,433 165,388,686
customers
Other Employee dues 2,583,724 167,735,362 1,545,921 102,417,266
Other Statutory dues 99,832 6,481,093 200,870 13,307,638
Others - - 27,948 1,851,555
Total 5,961,979 387,051,676 4,271,172 282,965,145

18 Current liabilities - provisons

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

UsSDh INR USD INR
Leave entitlement 1,352,585 87,809,818 1,161,766 76,966,998
Total 1,352,585 87,809,818 1,161,766 76,966,998
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Tata Communications (France) SAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

19 Revenue from operations

Vanticuds Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
o USD INR USD INR
Data and voice revenue 40,641,723 2,638,460,657 43,129,990 2,857,361,838
Management consultancy Services - - - -
Total 40,641,723 2,638,460,657 43,129,990 2,857,361,838
20 Other income
Partionlan Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
artieutars USD INR USD INR
Interest on loan to subsidiaries 19,044 1,236,336 32,179 2,131,859
Exchange gain -Net 243,757 . 15,824,704 - -
Miscellaneous income 789,533 51,256,482 21,903 1,451,074
Total 1,052,334 68,317,522 54,082 3,582,933
21 Network and transmission expenses
Particuiar Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
CREEN USD INR USD INR
Charges for use of transmission facilities 20,822,926 1,351,824,356 22,810,001 1,511,162,566
Total 20,822,926 1,351,824,356 22,810,001 1,511,162,566
22 Employee benefit expenses
Particulars Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
USD INR usSD INR
Salaries, bonus and allowances 10,847,927 704,247,421 9,751,454 646,033,828
Staff welfare expenses 111,206 7,219,494 41,171 2,727,579
Total - 10,959,133 711,466,915 9,792,625 648,761,407
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Tata Communications (France) SAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

23 Operating and other expenses

Current year 2016-17

Previous year 2015-16

Particulars
USD INR USD INR

Advertising and publicity 134,418 8,726,417 167,881 11,122,116
Auditors remuneration 54,450 3,534,894 54,450 3,607,313
Bad debts - - 416,265 27,577,556
Communication expenses 76,870 4,990,400 127,400 8,440,250
Donations - - 1,123 74,399
Electricity 158,574 10,294,624 41,426 2,744,473
Entertainment expenses 23,235 1,508,416 18,825 1,247,156
Exchange loss -Net - - 249,810 16,549,913
Insurance expenses 23,574 1,530,424 28,022 1,856,458
IT consumables 9,569 621,219 4,214 279,178
Legal and professional fees 247,472 16,065,882 . 176,591 11,699,154
Miscellaneous expenses 65,366 4,243,558 562,352 37,255,820
Printing and stationery 25,493 1,655,006 45,332 3,003,245
Provision for doubtful debts 215,896 14,015,968 (272,323) (18,041,399)
Rates and Taxes 272,736 17,706,021 434,662 28,796,358
Recruitment expenses 43,676 2,835,446 55,724 3,691,715
Relocation Expense 2,295 148,991 1,131 74,929
Rent 584,605 37,952,557 687,617 45,554,626
Repairs and Maintenance 1,295,719 84,118,077 1,366,931 90,559,179
- Plant & Machinery

Repairs and Maintenance -Building 5,019 325,833 4,694 310,978
Security charges 604 39,212 1,300 86,125
Seminars, trainings and conferences 23,652 1,535,488 74,666 4,946,623
Services rendered by agencies 219,534 14,252,147 347,346 23,011,673
Travelling and conveyance expenses 431,879 28,037,585 585,937 38,818,326
Total 3,914,636 254,138,165 5,181,376 343,266,164

24 Finance costs

Current year 2016-17

Previous year 2015-16

Particulars
USDh INR uUSD INR
Interest expenses 150,332 9,759,553 304,170 20,151,263
Guarantee fees 13,160 854,347 (514,686) (34,097,948)
Total 163,492 10,613,900 (210,516) (13,946,685)
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Suresh Surana & Associates L

ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON COMPILATION OF UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To
The Board of Directors
Tata Communications Limited

On the basis of the trail balance and other information and explanations provided to us by the
management, we have compiled the balance sheet of Tata Communications (Guam) LLC (“the
subsidiary”) registered in Guam as at 31 March 2017 and the related statement of profit and loss
for the year then ended, attached herewith.

The management of the subsidiary is responsible for:

a) Completeness and accuracy of the underlying data and complete disclosure of all material
and relevant information to the accountant;

b) Maintaining adequate accounting and other records and internal controls and selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies;

c) Preparation and presentation of financial statements in accordance with the applicable laws
and regulations;

d) Establishing controls to safeguard the assets of the entity and preventing and detecting frauds
or other irregularities;

e) Establishing controls for ensuring that the activities of the entity are carried out in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations and preventing and detecting any non-compliance.

The compilation engagement was carried out by us in accordance with the Standards on Related
Services Engagements (ISRS 4410) “Engagements to Compile Financial Information”, issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

This balance sheet and statement of profit and loss has been compiled by us for the purpose of
preparation of statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, based on trial
balance and other information provided by the management.
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Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

The balance sheet and the statement of profit and loss are in agreement with the books of

account. We have not audited or reviewed these financial statements and accordingly express no
opinion thereon.

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 121750W / W-100010

W

vf‘r\, / -’»P?/:/ﬂi"o(\\
f\!% '[/;:"j; Sian M\\f/’“\\:
(Vinodkumar Varma) ke, Accountanis /f;; |
PARTNER {,}/\__/*7,,
Membership No. 105545 NIUMB R~

Place Mumbai
Date: 03 May 2017
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Tata Communications (Guam) LLC

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

Particulars Note As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
No. USD INR* USD INR*
(A)|ASSETS
(1) [Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1 4,478,495 290,743,895 4,590,046 304,090,547
Capital work-in-progress & - 31,647 2,096,614
Financial assets
(i) Loans 2 15,374,061 998,084,040 14,173,851 939,017,629
Deferred tax assets (Net) 6,702,520 435,127,598 4,969,221 329,210,891
26,555,076 1,723,955,533 23,764,765 1,574,415,681
(2) |Current assets
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 3 138,516 8,992,458 227277 15,057,102
(ii) Other financial assets 4 - - 293,566 19,448,748
Other current assets 5 555,301 36,050,141 553,209 36,650,096
693,817 45,042,599 1,074,052 71,155,946
TOTAL ASSETS 27,248,893 1,768,998,132 24,838,817 1,645,571,627
(B)|EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) [Equity
Equity share capital =i = % =
Other equity 6 20,617,409 1,338,482,191 18,545,543 1,228,642,223
Total Equity 20,617,409 1,338,482,191 18,545,543 1,228,642,223
(2) |[Non-current liabilitics
Other non current liabilities (Deferred revenue) 3,485,297 226,265,481 4,062,232 269,122,870
3,485,297 226,265,481 4,062,232 269,122,870
(3) | Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables 7 436,128 28,313,429 713,398 47,262,618
(ii) Other financial liabilities 8 31,419 2,039,722 13,486 893,448
Other current liabilities 1,324,461 85,984,008 1,258,088 83,348,330
Provisions 10 13,227 858,697 5,279 349,734
Current tax liabilities (Net) 1,340,952 87,054,604 240,791 15,952,404
3,146,187 204,250,460 2,231,042 147,806,534
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 27,248,893 1,768,998,132 24,838,817 1,645,571,627
*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 USD = INR 64.92 (as at 31 March 2016 1 USD = INR 56,25 )
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Tata Communications (Guam) LLC

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

' Note No. Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
Particulars -
USD INR* uUSD INR*
i [Revenue from telecommunications services 11 6,539,267 424,529,214 6,953,090 460,642,213
i |Other Income 12 575,212 37,342,763 579,533 38,394,062
iii |Total income (i + ii) 7,114,479 461,871,977 7,532,623 499,036,275
iv |Expenses:
(i) Network and transmission expenses 13 2,438,515 158,308,394 2,725,781 180,582,991
(ii) Employee benefits expenses 14 444,910 28,883,557 434,109 |. 28,759,721
(iii) Operating and other expenses 15 1,677,129 108,879,217 1,913,055 126,739,895
(iv) Depreciation and aniortisation expenses 332,770 21,603,428 324,798 21,517,868
Total expenses 4,893,324 317,674,596 5,397,743 357,600,475
v |Profit before taxes (iii - iv) 2,221,155 144,197,381 2,134,880 141,435,800
vi [Tax expenses
(i) Current tax expense/(benefit) 1,882,588 122,217,613 370,155 24,522,769
(11) Deferred tax expense/(benefit) (1,733,299) a 12,525,771) (4,969,221) (329,210,89 1)
Net tax expenses 149,289 9,691,842 (4,599,066) (304,688,122)
vii | Profit / (loss) for the year (v-vi) 2,071,866 134,505,539 6,733,946 446,123,922

*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 USD = INR 64.92 (as at 31 March 2016 1 USD = INR 66.25 )
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Tata Communications (Guam) LLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

1 Property, plant and equipment

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

Particulars USD INR ) NR
Gross block:

Land 924,769 60,036,003 924,769 61,265,946
Building 4,858,882 315,438,619 4,858,882 321,900,933
Cables 138,888 9,016,609 56,285 3,728,881
Plant and machinery 2,284,178 148,288,836 2,149,803 142,424,449
Furniture and fixtures 14,007 909,334 14,007 927,964
Computers 63,105 4,096,777 63,105 4,180,706
Office equipment 220,490 14,314,211 155,581 10,307,241
' (a) 8,504,319 552,100,389 8,222,432 544,736,120

Accumulated depreciation:
Building -2,260,580 146,756,854 2,066,224 136,887,340
Cables 27,707 1,798,738 14,395 953,669
Plant and machinery 1,578,992 102,508,161 1,408,101 93,286,691
Furniture and fixtures 14,007 909,334 14,007 927,964
Computers 63,105 4,096,777 63,105 4,180,706
Office equipment 81,433 5,286,630 66,554 4,409,203
(b) 4,025,824 261,356,494 3,632,386 240,645,573
Net block (a) -.(b) 4,478,495 290,743,895 4,590,046 304,090,547

2 Non-current assets - financial assets - loans

Particulars As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
USD INR USD INR
Inter company loans given 15,374,061 998,084,040 14,173,851 939,017,629
Total 15,374,061 998,084,040 14,173,851 939,017,629

3 Trade receivables

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

Parti g

 Bartiegloys USD INR USD INR

Trade receivables 139,657 9,066,532 228,418 15,132,693

Provision for doubtful debts (1,141) (74,074) (1,141) (75,591)
Total 138,516 8,992,458 227,277 15,057,102

15. Tata Communications (Guam) LLC

163




Tata Communications (Guam) LLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

4 Current assets - other financial assets

Particul As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
il USD INR USD INR
Interest Receivable - - 293,566 19,448,748
Total ‘ - - 293,566 19,448,748
5 Current assets - other assets
Particul As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
e USD INR USD INR
Prepaid expenses 555,301 36,050,141 553,209 36,650,096
Total 555,301 36,050,141 553,209 36,650,096
6 Other Equity
Vsl As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
e USD INR USD INR
Surplus / (Deficit)
Opening balance 18,545,543 1,203,976,652 11,811,597 782,518,301
Profit / (loss) for the year 2,071,866 134,505,539 6,733,946 446,123,922
Closing balance 20,617,409 1,338,482,191 18,545,543 1,228,642,223
7  Current liabilities - Trade payables
Particul As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
A age USD INR USD INR
Trade payable 113,144 7,345,308 107,044 . 7,091,665
Inter Company - Payables ’ 322,984 20,968,121 606,354 40,170,953
Total ' 436,128 28,313,429 713,398 47,262,618
8 Current liabilities - other financial liabilities
— As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
SRS USD INR USD INR
Deposit from customers and contractors 13,000 843,960 13,000 861,250
Interest accrued but not due 15,840 1,028,333 - -
Others 2,579 167,429 486 32,198
Total 31,419 2,039,722 13,486 893,448
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Tata Communications (Guam) LLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

9 - Current liabilities - other current liabilities

Particular As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
artiewtars USD INR USD INR
Deferred revenue and advance from 1,297,340 84,223,313 1,221,675 80,935,969
customers
Other Employee dues 27,121 1,760,695 36,413 2,412,361
Total 1,324,461 85,984,008 1,258,088 83,348,330
10 Current liabilities - provisons
Particular As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
e USD INR USD INR
Leave entitlement , 13,227 858,697 5,279 349,734
Total 13,227 858,697 5,279 349,734
11 Revenue from operations
Particular Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
artiewtars USD INR USD INR
Data and voice revenue 6,539,267 424,529,214 6,953,090 460,642,213
Total 6,539,267 424,529,214 6,953,090 460,642,213
12 Other income
Particul Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
o USD INR USD INR
Interest on loan to subsidiaries 575,212 37,342,763 571,755 37,878,769
Miscellaneous income - - 7,778 515,293
Total 575,212 37,342,763 579,533 38,394,062
13 Network and transmission expenses
Fayfieniar Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
ARna USD INR USD INR
Charges for use of transmission facilities 2,438,515 158,308,394 2,725,781 180,582,991
Total 2,438,515 158,308,394 2,725,781 180,582,991
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Tata Communications (Guam) LLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

14 Employee benefit expenses

15

Particulars Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
USD INR USD INR
Salaries, bonus and allowances 444,877 28,881,415 434,109 28,759,721
Staff welfare expenses 33 2,142 - -
Total 444,910 28,883,557 434,109 28,759,721

Operating and other expenses

Current year 2016-17

Previous year 2015-16

Particulars
USD INR USD INR

Auditors remuneration 1,088 70,633 417 27,626
Communication expenses 7,362 477,941 9,677 641,101
Electricity 404,247 26,243,715 419,302 27,778,758
Exchange loss -Net 1 65 - -
Insurance expenses 93,175 6,048,921 91,657 6,072,276
Legal and professional fees 6,414 416,397 6,999 463,684
Miscellaneous expenses 22,382 1,453,042 31,087 2,059,515
Printing and stationery 2,449 158,989 1,216 80,560
Rates and Taxes 11,159 724,4;32 14,283 946,249
Repairs and Maintenance 1,107,879 71,923,505 1,225,989 81,221,771
- Plant & Machinery

Repairs and Maintenance -Building 4,300 279,156 94,972 6,291,895
Services rendered by agencies 16,673 1,082,411 15,859 1,050,659
Travelling and conveyance expenses - - 1,597 105,801
Total 1,677,129 108,879,217 1,913,055 126,739,895
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Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

13th

ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON COMPILATION OF UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To
The Board of Directors
Tata Communications Limited

On the basis of the trail balance and other information and explanations provided to us by the
management, we have compiled the balance sheet of Tata Communications (Hong Kong)
Limited (“the subsidiary”) registered in Hong Kong as at 31 March 2017 and the related statement
of profit and loss for the year then ended, attached herewith.

The management of the subsidiary is responsible for:

a) Completeness and accuracy of the underlying data and complete disclosure of all material
and relevant information to the accountant;

b) Maintaining adequate accounting and other records and internal controls and selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies;

c) Preparation and presentation of financial statements in accordance with the applicable laws
and regulations;

d) Establishing controls to safeguard the assets of the entity and preventing and detecting frauds
or other irregularities;

e) Establishing controls for ensuring that the activities of the entity are carried out in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations and preventing and detecting any non-compliance.

The compilation engagement was carried out by us in accordance with the Standards on Related
Services Engagements (ISRS 4410) “Engagements to Compile Financial Information”, issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

This balance sheet and statement of profit and loss has been compiled by us for the purpose of
preparation of statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, based on trial
balance and other information provided by the management.
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Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

The balance sheet and the statement of profit and loss are in agreement with the books of

account. We have not audited or reviewed these financial statements and accordingly express no
opinion thereon.

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 121750W / W-100010

J ~

\w*/"rﬁ
(Vinodkumar Varma)
PARTNER

Membership No. 105545

Place Mumbai
Date: 03 May 2017

16. Tata Communications (Hong Kong) Limited 168




Tata Communications (Hong Kong) Limited

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

Particulars Note As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
No. USD INR* USD INR*
(A)|ASSETS
(1) |Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1 19,934,066 1,294,119,565 20,782,851 1,376,863,879
Capital work-in-progress 1,496,426 97,147,976 907,436 60,117,635
Other intangible assets 2 99,287 6,445,712 61,892 4,100,345
Investments in subsidiaries & associates 3 195 3 199
Financial assets
(i) Investments -others 20,000,000 1,298,400,000 20,000,000 1,325,000,000
(ii) Loans 4 1,970,843 127,947,128 8,123,725 538,196,781
(iii) Other financial assets 5 729,451 47,355,959 588,643 38,997,599
Non current tax asset 72,384 4,699,169 24,947 1,652,739
Other non-current assets 6 95,222 6,181,812 118,578 7,855,793
44,397,682 2,882,297,516 50,608,075 3,352,784,970
(2) {Current assets
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 7 6,978,723 453,058,697 8,865,712 587,353,421
(ii) Cash and cash equivalent 8 142,164 9,229,287 297,125 19,684,531
(iii) Other financial assets 9 202,739 13,161,815 289,632 19,188,120
Other current assets 10 574,801 37,316,081 535,647 35,486,614
7,898,427 512,765,880 9,988,116 661,712,686
TOTAL ASSETS 52,296,109 3,395,063,396 60,596,191 4,014,497,656
(B)|EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) | Equity
Equity share capital 11 8,022,064 520,792,395 8,022,064 531,461,740
Other equity 12 (13,075,411) (848,855,681) (11,255,282) (745,662,430)
Total Equity (5,053,347) (328,063,286) (3,233,218) (214,200,690)
(2) |Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Other financial liabilities 13 181,987 11,814,596 193,260 12,803,475
Provisions 14 3,826,335 248,405,668 3,336,833 221,065,186
Other non current liabilities (Deferred revenue) 7,373,472 478,685,802 7,598,201 503,380,816
11,381,794 738,906,066 11,128,294 737,249,477
(3) | Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 32,000,000 2,077,440,000 40,000,000 2,650,000,000
(ii) Trade payables 16 10,090,996 655,107,460 8,275,670 548,263,138
(iii) Other financial liabilities 17 274,180 17,799,765 283,966 18,812,748
Other current liabilities 18 3,276,306 212,697,785 3,841,598 254,505,867
Provisions 19 326,180 21,175,606 299,881 19,867,116
45,967,662 2,984,220,616 52,701,115 3,491,448,869
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 52,296,109 3,395,063,396 60,596,191 4,014,497,656
*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 USD = INR 64.92 (as at 31 March 2016 1 USD = INR 66.25 )
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Tata Communications (Hong Kong) Limited

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

X Note No. Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
Particulars
USD INR* USD INR*
i |Revenue from telecommunications services 20 66,174,246 4,296,032,050 64,004,831 4,240,320,054
ii |Other Income 21 397,468 25,803,622 144,013 9,540,861
i [Total income (i + ii) 66,571,714 4,321,835,672 64,148,844 4,249,860,915
iv |Expenses:
(i) Network and transmission expenses 22 39,648,123 | © 2,573,956,145 34,742,726 2,301,705,598
(ii) Employee benefits expenses 23 11,606,121 753,469,375 12,872,852 852,826,446
(iii) Operating and other expenses 24 12,914,134 838,385,579 13,921,955 922,329,514
(iv) Finance costs 25 1,036,928 67,317,365 824,452 54,619,945
(v) Depreciation and amortisation expenses 3,104,229 201,526,547 2,802,576 185,670,660
(vi) Staff optimisation cost 82,308 5,343,435 396,955 26,298,269
Total expenses 68,391,843 4,439,998,446 65,561,516 4,343,450,432
v |Profit before taxes (ii - iv) (1,820,129) (118,162,774) (1,412,672) (93,589,517)
Vi |Tax expenses
(1) Current tax expense/(benefit) = - = =
(ii) Deferred tax expense/(benefit) = - = ~
Net tax expenses - 2 = =
vii | Profit / (loss) for the year (v-vi) (1,820,129) (118,162,774) (1,412,672) (93,589,517)

*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 USD =INR 64.92 (as at 31 March 2016 1 USD =INR 66.25 )
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Tata Communications (Hong Kong) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

1 Property, plant and equipment

. As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Particulars
USD INR usD INR
Gross block:
Building 241,622 15,686,100 241,622 16,007,458
Lease hold improvement 722,363 46,895,806 722,363 47,856,549
Cables 20,028,476 1,300,248,662 19,224,273 1,273,608,086
Plant and machinery 19,326,753 1,254,692,805 17,939,006 1,188,459,148
Furniture and fixtures 49,636 3,222,369 49,636 3,288,385
Computers 476,745 30,950,285 484,618 32,105,943
Office equipment 63,817 4,143,000 63,817 4,227,876
(a) 40,909,412 2,655,839,027 38,725,335 2,565,553,445
Accumulated depreciation:
Building 241,622 15,686,100 241,622 16,007,458
Lease hold improvement 579,541 37,623,802 281,481 18,648,116
Cables 8,081,014 524,619,429 6,846,303 453,567,574
Plant and machinery 11,617,505 754,208,425 10,171,179 673,840,609
Furniture and fixtures 38,957 2,529,088 35,637 2,360,951
Computers 392,084 25,454,093 345,774 22,907,528
Office equipment 24,623 1,598,525 20,488 1,357,330
(b) 20,975,346 1,361,719,462 17,942,484 1,188,689,566
Net block (a) - (b) 19,934,066 1,294,119,565 20,782,851 1,376,863,879
2 Other intangible assets
. As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Particulars USD INR USD INR
Gross block:
Computer software 204,199 13,256,599 126,449 8,377,246
(a) 204,199 13,256,599 126,449 8,377,246
Accumulated amortisation:
Computer software 104,912 6,810,887 64,557 4,276,901
(b) 104,912 6,810,887 64,557 4,276,901
Net block (a)-(b) 99,287 6,445,712 61,892 4,100,345

3 Investments in subsidiaries & associates

Taptinl As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

ik el USD INR USD INR
Investments in subsidiaries 3 195 3 199
Total 3 195 3 199
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Tata Communications (Hong Kong) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

4 Non-current assets - financial assets - loans

Particulars As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

USD INR USD ~ INR
Inter company loans given 1,970,843 127,947,128 8,123,725 538,196,781
Total 1,970,843 127,947,128 8,123,725 538,196,781

Non-current assets - financial assets - other financial assets

Particulars As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

USD INR USD INR
Vendor deposits 729,451 47,355,959 588,643 38,997,599
Total 729,451 47,355,959 588,643 38,997,599

Non-current assets - others

Particulars As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
USD INR USD INR
Prepaid expenses 95,222 6,181,812 118,578 7,855,793
Total 95,222 6,181,812 118,578 7,855,793
Trade receivables
Particul As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Gy USD INR USD INR
Trade receivables 5,340,041 346,675,462 7,986,102 529,079,258
Intercompany receivables 1,958,847 127,168,347 1,234,395 81,778,669
Provision for doubtful debts (320,165) (20,785,112) (354,785) (23,504,506)
Total 6,978,723 453,058,697 8,865,712 587,353,421

Cash and cash equivalents

T As at 31 March 2017 - Asat31 March 2016

ik~ USD INR USD INR
Balance with bank 142,164 9,229,287 297,125 19,684,531
Total 142,164 9,229,287 297,125 19,684,531
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Tata Communications (Hong Kong) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

9  Current assets - other financial assets

Particular As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
A USD INR USD INR
Security Deposit 15,037 976,202 95,700 6,340,125
Advances to employees 21,211 1,377,018 50,046 3,315,548
Interest Receivable 166,157 10,786,912 143,861 9,530,791
Others 334 21,683 25 1,656
Total 202,739 13,161,815 289,632 19,188,120
10 Current assets - other assets
Partivuli As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
S USD INR USD INR
Prepaid expenses 574,781 37,314,783 535,647 35,486,614
Others " 20 1,298 - -
Total : 574,801 37,316,081 535,647 35,486,614
11 Equity share capital
Particul As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
EHEALS USD INR USD INR
Equity share capital 8,022,064 520,792,395 8,022,064 531,461,740
Total 8,022,064 520,792,395 8,022,064 531,461,740
12 Other Equity
Particul As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
LI USD INR USD INR
Surplus / (Deficit)
Opening balance (11,255,282) (730,692,907) (9,842,610) (652,072,913)
Profit / (loss) for the year (1,820,129) (118,162,774) (1,412,672) (93,589,517)
Closing balance (13,075,411) (848,855,681) (11,255,282) (745,662,430)
13 Non-current liabilities - other financial liabilities
Parfion] As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
ReAE = USD INR USD INR
Lease equalisation 181,987 11,814,596 193,260 12,803,475
Total 181,987 11,814,596 193,260 12,803,475
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Tata Communications (Hong Kong) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

14 Non-current liabilities - provisions

As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Particulars
USD INR USD INR
Asset retirement obligation and others 2,978,536 193,366,557 2,854,593 189,116,786
Provision for gratuity 369,852 24,010,792 309,728 20,519,480
Retention liability 477,947 31,028,319 172,512 11,428,920
Total 3,826,335 | 248,405,668 3,336,833 221,065,186
15 Current liabilities - borrowings
Particular As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
S USD INR USD INR
Loan from bank 32,000,000 2,077,440,000 40,000,000 2,650,000,000
Total 32,000,000 2,077,440,000 40,000,000 2,650,000,000
16 Current liabilities - Trade payables
] As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Particulars
USD INR USD INR
Trade payable 10,090,996 655,107,460 8,275,670 548,263,138
Total 10,090,996 655,107,460 8,275,670 548,263,138
17 Current liabilities - other financial liabilities
Particul As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
AR USD INR USD INR
Deposit from customers and contractors 246,761 16,019,724 234,282 15,521,183
Interest accrued but not due 27,419 1,780,041 31,240 2,069,650
Others - - 18,444 1,221,915
Total 274,180 17,799,765 283,966 18,812,748
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Tata Communications (Hong Kong) Limit'ed

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

18 Current liabilities - other current liabilities

S As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

Parbculary USD INR USD INR
Deferred revenue and advance from 1,641,746 106,582,150 1,475,377 97,743,726
customers .
Other Employee dues 1,634,560 106,115,635 2,363,753 156,598,636
Other Statutory dues - - 304 20,140
Others - - 2,164 143,365
Total 3,276,306 212,697,785 3,841,598 254,505,867

19 Current liabilities - provisons

Parficulan As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

S USD INR USD INR
Leave entitlement 326,180 21,175,606 299,881 19,867,116
Total 326,180 21,175,606 299,881 19,867,116

20 Revenue from operations

Particul Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16

A USD INR USD INR
Data and voice revenue 66,174,246 4,296,032,050 64,004,831 4,240,320,054
Total 66,174,246 4,296,032,050 64,004,831 4,240,320,054

21 Other income

Particulars Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
USD INR USD INR
Interest on loan to subsidiaries 338,573 21,980,159 144,013 9,540,861
Profit on sale of fixed assets 1 65 - -
Miscellaneous income 58,894 3,823,398 - -
Total 397,468 25,803,622 144,013 9,540,861

22 Network and transmission expenses

Particulars

Current year 2016-17

Previous year 2015-16

16. Tata Communications (Hong Kong) Limited

USD INR uUsSD INR
Charges for use of transmission facilities 39,648,123 2,573,956,145 34,742,726 2,301,705,598
Total 39,648,123 2,573,956,145 34,742,726 2,301,705,598
175



Tata Communications (Hong Kong) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

23

24

25

Employee benefit expenses
Particulars Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
USD INR USD INR
Salaries, bonus and allowances 11,402,038 \740,220,307 12,680,886 840,108,698
Contribution to provident and other funds 60,124 3,903,250 68,879 4,563,234
Staff welfare expenses 143,959 9,345,818 123,087 8,154,514
Total 11,606,121 753,469,375 12,872,852 852,826,446

Operating and other expenses

Particulars

Current year 2016-17

Previous year 2015-16

USD INR USD INR
Advertising and publicity 100,681 6,536,211 17,343 1,148,974
Auditors remuneration 22,950 1,489,914 21,850 1,447,563
Bad debts - - 291,757 19,328,901
Communication expenses 303,569 19,707,699 359,244 23,799,915
Donations - - 1,806 119,648
Electricity 945,977 61,412,827 711,925 47,165,031
Entertainment expenses 79,950 5,190,354 82,150 5,442,438
Exchange loss -Net 94,695 6,147,599 164,744 10,914,290
Insurance expenses 28,315 1,838,210 32,722 2,167,833
IT consumables 6,683 433,860 9,223 611,024
Legal and professional fees 7,944,799 515,776,351 8,925,119 591,289,134
Loss on sale of fixed asset 244 15,840 - -
Miscellaneous expenses 88,795 5,764,571 101,193 6,704,028
Printing and stationery 56,138 3,644,479 49,278 3,264,668
Provision for doubtful debts (34,619) (2,247,465) (3,932) (260,495)
Rates and Taxes 42,062 2,730,665 48,577 3,218,226
Recruitment expenses 77,055 5,002,411 208,030 13,781,988
Relocation Expense - - 12,541 830,841
Rent 1,255,192 81,487,065 917,710 60,798,288
Repairs and Maintenance 658,065 42,721,580 803,396 53,224,985
- Plant & Machinery
Repairs and Maintenance -Building - - 5,876 389,285
Seminars, trainings and conferences 46,051 2,989,631 33,504 2,219,640
Services rendered by agencies 506,862 32,905,481 404,714 26,812,303
Travelling and conveyance expenses 690,670 44,838,296 723,185 47,911,006
Total 12,914,134 838,385,579 13,921,955 922,329,514

Finance costs

Particulars

Current year 2016-17

Previous year 2015-16

USD INR USD INR
Interest expenses 907,420 58,909,706 830,267 55,005,189
Guarantee fees 129,508 8,407,659 (5,815) (385,244)
Total 1,036,928 67,317,365 824,452 54,619,945
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Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Suresh Surana & Assaociates LLP

ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON COMPILATION OF UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To
The Board of Directors
Tata Communications Limited

On the basis of the trail balance and other information and explanations provided to us by the
management, we have compiled the balance sheet of Tata Communications (Hungary) LLC
(“the subsidiary”) registered in Hungary as at 31 March 2017 and the related statement of profit
and loss for the year then ended, attached herewith.

The management of the subsidiary is responsible for:

a) Completeness and accuracy of the underlying data and complete disclosure of all material
and relevant information to the accountant;

b) Maintaining adequate accounting and other records and internal controls and selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies;

c) Preparation and presentation of financial statements in accordance with the applicable laws
and regulations;

d) Establishing controls to safeguard the assets of the entity and preventing and detecting frauds
or other irregularities;

e) Establishing controls for ensuring that the activities of the entity are carried out in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations and preventing and detecting any non-compliance.

The compilation engagement was carried out by us in accordance with the Standards on Related
Services Engagements (ISRS 4410) “Engagements to Compile Financial Information”, issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

This balance sheet and statement of profit and loss has been compiled by us for the purpose of
preparation of statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, based on trial
balance and other information provided by the management.
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Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

The balance sheet and the statement of profit and loss are in agreement with the books of
account. We have not audited or reviewed these financial statements and accordingly express no
opinion thereon.

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 121750W / W-100010

\,\\)
N
(Vinodkumar Varma)
PARTNER
Membership No. 105545

Place Mumbai
Date: 03 May 2017
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Tata Communications (Hungary) LLC

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

Particulars Note As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
No. USD INR* uUsD INR*
(A)|ASSETS
(1) |Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1 19,767 1,283,274 16,749 1,109,621
Capital work-in-progress 91,446 5,936,674 3,831 253,804
111,213 7,219,948 20,580 1,363,425
(2) | Current assets
Financial assets
(i) Investments
(ii) Trade receivables 2 190,392 12,360,248 147,835 9,794,069
(iii) Cash and cash equivalent 3 392,879 25,505,705 70,870 4,695,138
Other current assets 4 54,054 3,509,186 76,976 5,099,661
637,325 41,375,139 295,681 19,588,868
TOTAL ASSETS 748,538 48,595,087 316,261 20,952,293
(B)|[EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) |[Equity
Equity share capital 5 217,669 14,131,071 217,669 14,420,571
Other equity 6 (107,679) (6,990,520) (93,661) (6,205,040)
Total Equity 109,990 7,140,551 124,008 8,215,531
{2) [Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 7 472,217 30,656,328 41,480 2,748,050
(ii) Trade payables 8 150,113 9,745,336 141,225 9,356,156
(iii) Other financial liabilities 9 9,220 598,562 1,120 74,201
Current tax liabilities (Net) 6,998 454,310 8,428 558,355
638,548 41,454,536 192,253 12,736,762
| _ | TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 748,538 48,595,087 316,261 20,952,293
*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 USD =INR 64.92 (as at 31 March 2016 i USD =INR 66.25 )
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Tata Communications (Hungary) LLC

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THEZ YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

. Note No. Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
Particulars -
USD INR* ushD INR*
i |Revenue from telecommunications services 10 1,136,032 73,751,197 635,486 42,100,948
ii |Other Income 11 10,940 710,225 455 30,144
iii |Total income (i + ii) 1,146,972 74,461,422 635,941 42,131,092
iv |Expenses:
(i) Network and transmission expenses 12 1,035,955 67,254,199 565,908 37,491,405
(ii) Operating and other expenses 13 101,143 6,566,202 46,416 3,075,059
(iii) Finance costs 14 14,888 966,529 1,197 79,301
(iv) Depreciation and amortisation expenses 9,004 584,540 23,492 1,556,345
Total expenses 1,160,990 75,371,470 637,013 42,202,110
v |Profit before taxes (jii - iv) (14,018) (910,048) (1,072) (71,018)
vi |Tax expenses
(i) Current tax expense/(benefit) - - 5,440 360,400
(ii) Deferred tax expense/(benefit) - - (33) (2,186)
Net tax expenses - - 5,407 358,214
vii | Profit / (loss) for the year (v-vi) (14,018) (910,048) (6,479) (429,232)
*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 USD =INR 64.92 (as at 31 March 2016 1 USD = INR 66.25 )
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Tata Communications (Hungary) LLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

1

1]

Property, plant and equipment

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR USD INR
Gross block:
Plant and machinery 271,626 17,633,960 253,637 16,803,451
(a) 271,626 17,633,960 253,637 16,803,451
Accumulated depreciation:
Plant and machinery 251,859 16,350,686 236,888 15,693,830
(b) 251,859 16,350,686 236,888 15,693,830
Net block (a) - (b) 19,767 1,283,274 16,749 1,109,621
Trade receivables
Particul As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
ERpEA USD INR USD INR
Trade receivables 44,982 2,920,231 11,071 733,454
Intercompany receivables 145,410 9,440,017 136,764 9,060,615
Total 190,392 12,360,248 147,835 9,794,069

Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR USD INR
Balance with bank 392,879 25,505,705 70,870 4,695,138
Total 392,879 25,505,705 70,870 4,695,138

Current assets - other assets

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

Parti §

Artiguiirs USD INR USD INR
Advances to Vendors / Suppliers 17,438 1,132,075 - -
Prepaid expenses 11,026 715,808 2,818 186,693
Indirect tax receivable 25,590 1,661,303 74,158 4,912,968
Total 54,054 3,509,186 76,976 5,099,661
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Tata Communications (Hungary) LLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

5 Equity share capital

As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Particulars
UsSDh INR USD INR
Equity share capital 217,669 14,131,071 217,669 14,420,571
Total 217,669 14,131,071 217,669 14,420,571
6 Other Equity
. As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Particulars
: Ush INR USD INR
Surplus / (Deficit)
Opening balance ' (93,661) (6,080,472) (87,182) (5,775,808)
-|Profit / (loss) for the year (14,018) (910,048) (6,479) (429,232)
Closing balance (107,679) (6,990,520) (93,661) (6,205,040)

Current liabilities - borrowings

Patticul As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

L USD INR USD INR
Inter company loans taken 472,217 30,656,328 41,480 2,748,050
Total 472,217 30,656,328 41,480 2,748,050

8 Current liabilities - Trade payables

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR USD INR
Trade payable 150,113 9,745,336 141,225 9,356,156
Total 150,113 9,745,336 141,225 9,356,156

9 Current liabilities - other financial liabilities

. As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Particulars
usSDh INR usSD INR
Interest accrued but not due 8,570 556,364 1,026 67,973
Others 650 42,198 94 6,228
Total 9,220 598,562 1,120 74,201
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Tata Communications (Hungary) LLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

10 Revenue from operations

Particlar Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
i L USD INR USD INR
Data and voice revenue 1,136,032 73,751,197 635,486 42,100,948
Total 1,136,032 73,751,197 635,486 42,100,948
11 Other income
Particular Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
e USD INR USD INR
Interest on loan to subsidiaries - - 455 30,144
Exchange gain -Net 10,940 710,225 - -
Total 10,940 710,225 455 30,144
- 12 Network and transmission expenses
Tttt Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
gl s iy USD INR USD INR
Charges for use of transmission facilities 1,035,955 67,254,199 565,908 37,491,405
Total 1,035,955 67,254,199 565,908 37,491,405
13 Operating and other expenses
kil Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
REatnies USD INR USD INR
Advertising.and publicity 50,097 3,252,297 - z
Communication expenses 353 22,917 157 10,401
Electricity 4,586 297,723 3,623 240,024
Exchange loss -Net - - 10,700 708,875
Insurance expenses 1,862 120,881 2,044 135,415
Legal and professional fees 26,685 1,732,390 22,175 1,469,094
Miscellaneous expenses 2,271 147,432 2,060 136,474
Rates and Taxes 13,443 872,720 4,784 316,940
Repairs and Maintenance 1,564 101,535 712 47,170
- Plant & Machinery
Services rendered by agencies 282 18,307 161 10,666
Total 101,143 6,566,202 46,416 3,075,059
14 Finance costs
. Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
Particulars
USD INR uSsD INR
Interest expenses 14,036 911,217 1,748 115,805
Guarantee fees 852 55,312 (551) (36,504)
Total 14,888 966,529 1,197 79,301
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Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON COMPILATION OF UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To
The Board of Directors
Tata Communications Limited

On the basis of the trail balance and other information and explanations provided to us by the
management, we have compiled the balance sheet of Tata Communications (Ireland) Ltd. (“the
subsidiary”) registered in Ireland as at 31 March 2017 and the related statement of profit and loss
for the year then ended, attached herewith.

The management of the subsidiary is responsible for:

a) Completeness and accuracy of the underlying data and complete disclosure of all material
and relevant information to the accountant;

b) Maintaining adequate accounting and other records and internal controls and selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies;

c) Preparation and presentation of financial statements in accordance with the applicable laws
and regulations;

d) Establishing controls to safeguard the assets of the entity and preventing and detecting frauds
or other irregularities;

e) Establishing controls for ensuring that the activities of the entity are carried out in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations and preventing and detecting any non-compliance.

The compilation engagement was carried out by us in accordance with the Standards on Related
Services Engagements (ISRS 4410) “Engagements to Compile Financial Information”, issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

This balance sheet and statement of profit and loss has been compiled by us for the purpose of
preparation of statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, based on trial
balance and other information provided by the management.

18. Tata Communications (Ireland) Limited




Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

The balance sheet and the statement of profit and loss are in agreement with the books of
account. We have not audited or reviewed these financial statements and accordingly express no
opinion thereon.

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 121750W / W-100010

J

oy
V="

(Vinodkumar Varma)

PARTNER

Membership No. 105545

Place Mumbai
Date: 03 May 2017

18. Tata Communications (Ireland) Limited 185



Tata Communications (Ireland) Ltd.

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

Pirticilars Note As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
No. USD INR* USD INR*
(A)|ASSETS
(1) |Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipinent | 93,851 6,092,807 69,387 4,596,889
Capital work-in-progress 207,612 13,478,171 39,454 2,613,828
Deferred tax assets (Net) 18,924 1,228,546 19,531 1,293,929
320,387 20,799,524 128,372 8,504,646
(2) [Current assets
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 901,259 58,509,734 541,549 35,877,621
(ii) Cash and cash equivalent 28 1,818 - -
Other current assets 62,893 4,083,013 73,662 4,880,108
964,180 62,594,565 615211 40,757,729
TOTAL ASSETS 1,284,567 83,394,089 743,583 49,262,375
(B)|EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) |[Equity
Equity share capital 5 1 65 1 66
Other equity 6 (54,587) (3,543,789) (92,713) (6,142,235)
| |Total Equity (54,586) (3,543,724) 92,712) (6,142,169)
(2} |Cierrent liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 7 1,060,837 68,869,538 343,677 22,768,601
(ii) Trade payables 8 240,462 15,610,793 477,307 31,621,589
(iii) Other financial liabilities 9 37,281 2,420,283 14,738 976,393
Current tax liabilities (Net) 573 37,199 573 37,961
1,339,153 86,937,813 836,295 55,404,544
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,284,567 83,394,089 743,583 49,262,375
*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 USD = INR 64.92 (as at 31 March 2016 1 USD = INR 66.25 )
//
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Tata Communications (Ireland) Ltd.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Particul Note No. Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
articulars
" USD INR* USD INR*
i |Revenue from telecommunications services 10 1,060,389 68,840,454 1,300,688 86,170,580
ii |Other Income = - - -
iii [Total income (i + ii) 1,060,389 68,840,454 1,300,688 86,170,580
iv |Expenses:
(i) Network and transmission expenses 11 579,419 37,615,881 956,822 63,389,458
(ii) Employee benefits expenses 12 - - 3 199
(iii) Operating and other expenses 13 384,224 24,943,824 333,770 22,112,260
(iv) Finance costs 14 27,858 1,808,541 9,643 638,849
(v) Depreciation and amortisation expenses 30,155 1,957,663 19,865 1,316,056
Total expenses 1,021,656 66,325,909 1,320,103 87,456,822
v |Profit before taxes (iii - iv) 38,733 2,514,545 (19,415) (1,286,242)
Vi [Tax expenses
(i) Current tax expense/(benefit) - - (3,316) (219,685)
(ii) Deferred tax expense/(benefit) 607 39,406 823 54,524
Net tax expenses 607 39,406 (2,493) (165,161)
vii | Profit/ (loss) for the year (v-vi) 38,126 2,475,139 (16,922) (1,121,081)
*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 USD = INR 64.92 (as at 31 March 2016 1 USD = INR 66.25 )
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Tata Communications (Ireland) Ltd.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

1

2

3

4

5

Property, plant and equipment

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

Particulars
USD INR USD INR
Gross block:
Plant and machinery 534,785 34,718,242 465,727 30,854,414
Computers 2,751 178,595 2,751 182,254
(a) 537,536 34,896,837 468,478 31,036,668
Accumulated depreciation:
Plant and machinery 440,934 28,625,435 396,340 26,257,525
Computers 2,751 178,595 2,751 182,254
(b) 443,685 28,804,030 399,091 26,439,779
Net block (a) - (b) 93,851 6,092,807 69,387 4,596,889
Trade receivables
Particular As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
artieutars USD INR USD INR
Trade receivables 574,070 37,268,624 142,621 9,448,641
Intercompany receivables 327,189 21,241,110 398,928 26,428,980
Total 901,259 58,509,734 541,549 35,877,621

Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD

INR

USD

INR

Cash in hand

28

1,818

Total

28

1,818

Current assets - other assets

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

Faptionlays USD INR USD INR
Prepaid expenses 35,385 2,297,194 53,931 3,572,929
Indirect tax receivable 27,508 1,785,819 19731 1,307,179
Total 62,893 4,083,013 73,662 4,880,108

Equity share capital

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

od% Y l -
Particulars USD INR USD INR
Equity share capital 1 65 1 66
Total 1 65 e 66
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Tata Communications (Ireland) Ltd.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

6 Other Equity

. As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Particulars
USD INR USD INR
Surplus / (Deficit)
Opening balance (92,713) (6,018,928) (75,791) (5,021,154)
Profit / (loss) for the year 38,126 2,475,139 (16,922) (1,121,081)
Closing balance (54,587) (3,543,789) (92,713) (6,142,235)

Current liabilities - borrowings

. As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Particulars
USD INR USD INR
Inter company loans taken 1,060,837 68,869,538 343,677 22,768,601
Total 1,060,837 68,869,538 343,677 22,768,601

Current liabilities - Trade payables

As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Particulars
USD INR USD INR
Trade payable 240,462 15,610,793 477,307 31,621,589
Total 240,462 15,610,793 477,307 31,621,589

Current liabilities - other financial liabilities

ittt As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

N USD INR USD INR
Interest accrued but not due 12,850 834,222 14,035 929,819
Others 24,431 1,586,061 703 46,574
Total 37,281 2,420,283 14,738 976,393

10 Revenue from operations

Particular Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16

i USD INR USD INR
Data and voice revenue 1,060,389 68,840,454 . 1,300,688 86,170,580
Total 1,060,389 68,840,454 1,300,688 86,170,580
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Tata Communications (Ireland) Ltd.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

11 Network and transmission expenses

. Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
Particulars
USD INR usDh INR
Charges for use of transmission facilities 579,419 37,615,881 956,822 63,389,458
Total 579,419 37,615,881 956,822 63,389,458

12 Employee benefit expenses

Particulars Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
USD INR USD INR
Salaries, bonus and allowances - - 199
Total - - 199
13 Operating and other expenses
Particular Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
g USD INR USD INR
Advertising and publicity 189,042 12,272,607 166,860 11,054,475
Auditors remuneration 12,100 785,532 12,100 801,625
Communication expenses 178 11,556 457 30,276
Exchange loss -Net 13,012 844,739 67,554 4,475,453
Insurance expenses 1,405 91,213 2,632 174,370
Legal and professional fees 102,231 6,636,837 60,318 3,996,068
Miscellaneous expenses 51,312 3,331,176 16,438 1,089,014
Repairs and Maintenance 12,383 803,904 4,869 322,571
- Plant & Machinery
Services rendered by agencies 2,561 166,260 2,542 168,408
Total 384,224 24,943,824 333,770 22,112,260
14 Finance costs
pavticilar Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
i o USD INR USD INR
Interest expenses 25,719 1,669,677 1 9,826 1,313,473
Guarantee fees 2,139 138,864 (10,183) (674,624)
Total 27,858 1,808,541 9,643 638,849
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Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Suresh Surana ¢

ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON COMPILATION OF UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To
The Board of Directors
Tata Communications Limited

On the basis of the trail balance and other information and explanations provided to us by the
management, we have compiled the balance sheet of Tata Communications (ltaly) srl (“the
subsidiary”) registered in ltaly as at 31 March 2017 and the related statement of profit and loss for
the year then ended, attached herewith.

The management of the subsidiary is responsible for:

a) Completeness and accuracy of the underlying data and complete disclosure of all material
and relevant information to the accountant;

b) Maintaining adequate accounting and other records and internal controls and selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies;

c) Preparation and presentation of financial statements in accordance with the applicable laws
and regulations;

d) Establishing controls to safeguard the assets of the entity and preventing and detecting frauds
or other irregularities;

e) Establishing controls for ensuring that the activities of the entity are carried out in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations and preventing and detecting any non-compliance.

The compilation engagement was carried out by us in accordance with the Standards on Related
Services Engagements (ISRS 4410) “Engagements to Compile Financial Information”, issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

This balance sheet and statement of profit and loss has been compiled by us for the purpose of
preparation of statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, based on trial
balance and other information provided by the management.
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Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

The balance sheet and the statement of profit and loss are in agreement with the books of

account. We have not audited or reviewed these financial statements and accordingly express no
opinion thereon.

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 121750W / W-100010 ,

J
N
S
(Vinodkumar Varma)
PARTNER
Membership No. 105545

Place Mumbai
Date: 03 May 2017
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Tata Communications (Italy) srl

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

As at 31 March 2016

Particulars Note As at 31 March 2017
No. USD INR* uUsD INR*
(A)|ASSETS
(1) |Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1 313,342 20,342,162 157,955 10,464,519
Capital work-in-progress 4,366 283,441 2,983 197,624
Non current tax asset 238,667 15,494,262 174,336 11,549,760
556,375 36,119,865 335,274 22,211,903
(2) [Current assets
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 2 1,435,977 93,223,627 14,400,309 954,020,471
(ii) Cash and cash equivalent 3 11,102 720,742 12,356 818,585
(iii) Other financial assets 4 5,217 338,688 27,325 1,810,281
Other current assets S 20,071,580 1,303,046,974 20,157,914 1,335,461,802
21,523,876 1,397,330,031 34,597,904 2,292,111,139
TOTAL ASSETS 22,080,251 1,433,449,896 34,933,178 2,314,323,042
(B)|EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) |Equity
Equity share capitai 6 6,016,835 390,612,928 6,016,835 398,615,319
Other equity 7 (5,746,602) (373,069,401) (4,843,215) (320,862,996)
Total Equity 270,233 17,543,527 1,173,620 77,752,323
(2) | Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 8 20,071,521 1,303,043,143 31,682,509 2,098,966,221
(ii) Trade payables 9 1,039,865 67,508,036 1,520,486 100,732,198
(iii) Other financial liabilities 10 418,922 27,196,417 17.850 1,182,563
Other current liabilities 11 239,923 15,575,801 503,786 33,375,823
Provisions 12 39,787 2,582,972 34,927 2,313,914
21,810,018 1,415,906,369 33,759,558 2,236,570,719
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 22,080,251 1,433,449,896 34,933,178 2,314,323,042
*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 USD =INR 64.92 (as at 31 March 2016 1 USD = INR 66.25 )
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Tata Comimunications (Italy) srl

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

: Note No. Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
Particulars
USD INR* USD INR*
i |Revenue from telecommunications services 13 17,418,860 1,130,832,391 77,161,351 5,111,939,504
ii |Other Income 14 2,037,268 132,259,440 279,957 18,547,152
iii |Total income (i + ii) 19,456,128 1,263,091,831 77,441,308 5,130,486,656
iv [Expenses:
(i) Network and transmission expenses 15 17,881,200 1,160,847,504 75,688,990 5,014,395,588
(ii) Employee benefits expenses 16 650,587 42,236,108 901,871 59,748,954
(iii) Operating and other expenses 17 665,475 43,202,637 585,058 38,760,094
(iv) Finance costs 18 1,085,291 70,457,092 1,053,399 69,787,683
(v) Depreciation and amortisation expenses 76,962 4,996,373 83,206 5,512,398
(vi) Staff optimisation cost - - 206,850 13,703,813
Total expenses 20,359,515 1,321,739,714 78,519,374 5,201,908,530
v |Profit before taxes (iii - iv) (903,387) (58,647,883) (1,078,066) (71,421,874)
vi [Tax expenses
(i) Current tax expense/(benefit) = - = -
“|(ii) Deferred tax expense/(benefit) - - 1,077,675 71,395,969
Net tax expenses - - 1,077,675 71,395,969
vii | Profit / (loss) for the year (v-vi) . (903,387) (58,647,883) (2,155,741) (142,817,843)
*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 USD = INR 64.92 (as at 31 March 2016 1 USD = INR 66.25 )
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Tata Communications (Italy) srl

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

1

Property, plant and equipment

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

Particulars
USD INR USD INR
Gross block:
Plant and machinery 1,787,795 116,063,651 1,502,836 99,562,885
Computers 1,653 107,313 2,888 191,330
(a) 1,789,448 116,170,964 1,505,724 99,754,215
Accumulated depreciation:
Plant and machinery 1,474,453 95,721,489 1,344,881 89,098,366
Computers 1,653 107,313 2,888 191,330
(b) 1,476,106 95,828,802 1,347,769 89,289,696
Net block (a) - (b) 313,342 20,342,162 157,955 10,464,519
Trade receivables
T As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
NSRS USD INR USD INR
Trade receivables 999,712 64,901,303 2,189,937 145,083,326
Intercompany receivables 514,349 33,391,537 12,296,973 814,674,461
Provision for doubtful debts (78,084) (5,069,213) (86,601) (5,737,316)
Total 1,435,977 93,223,627 14,400,309 954,020,471

Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR USD INR
Balance with bank 11,102 720,742 12,356 818,585
Total 11,102 720,742 12,356 818,585

Current assets - other financial assets

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

P oy l o

STHRnARS USD INR USD INR

‘|Advances to employees 1,706 110,754 2,175 144,094
Interest Receivable - - 22,617 1,498,376
Cihers 3,511 227,934 2,533_ 167,811
Total 5,217 338,688 27325 1,810,281
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Tata Communications (Italy) srl

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

5

Current assets - other assets

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR usSD INR
Prepaid expenses 143,713 9,329,848 72,521 4,804,516
Indirect tax receivable 19,927,867 1,293,717,126 20,085,393 1,330,657,286

Total

20,071,580 1,303,046,974

20,157,914 1,335,461,802

Equity share capital

Particul As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

BERES USD INR Usb | INR
Equity share capital 6,016,835 390,612,928 6,016,835 398,615,319
Total 6,016,835 390,612,928 6,016,835 398,615319

Other Equity

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR

USD INR

Surplus / (Deficit)
Opening balance
Profit / (loss) for the year

(4,843,215) (314,421,518)
(903,387) (58,647,883)

(2,687,474)
(2,155,741)

(178,045,153)
(142,817,843)

Closing balance

(5,746,602) (373,069,401)

(4,843,215) (320,862,996)

Current liabilities - borrowings

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

icular
Bt USD INR USD INR

Inter company loans taken 20,071,521 1,303,043,143 31,682,509 2,098,966,221

Total 20,071,521 1,303,043,143 31,682,509 2,098,966,221

Current liabilities - Trade payables

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USDh INR USD INR
Trade payable 1,039,865 67,508,036 1,520,486 100,732,198
Total 1,039,865 67,508,036 1,520,486 100,732,198
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Tata Communications (Italy) srl
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

10 Current liabilities - other financial liabilities

. As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Particulars
USD INR USD INR
Deposit from customers and contractors 16,767 1,088,514 17,850 1,182,563
Interest accrued but not due 400,731 26,015,457 - -
Others 1,424 92,446 - -
Total 418,922 27,196,417 17,850 1,182,563
11 Current liabilities - other current liabilities
As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Particulars
USD INR uUsSD INR
dther Employee dues 239,566 15,552,625 502,979 33,322,359
Others 357 23,176 807 53,464
Total 239,923 15,575,801 503,786 33,375,823
12 Current liabilities - provisons
vt As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
M USD INR USD INR
Leave entitlement 39,787 2,582,972 34,927 2,313,914
Total 39,787 2,582,972 34,927 2,313,914
13 Revenue from operations
Particular Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
fista USD INR USD INR
Data and voice revenue 17,418,860 1,130,832,391 77,161,351 5,111,939,504
Total 17,418,860 1,130,832,391 77,161,351 5,111,939,504
14 Other income
Partionl Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
arfiewiars USD INR USD INR
Interest on loan to subsidiaries 35,531 2,306,673 197,768 13,102,130
Exchange gain -Net 2,000,981 129,903,687 79,463 5,264,424
Miscellaneous income 756 49,080 2,726 180,598
Total 2,037,268 132,259,440 . 279,957 18,547,152
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Tata Communications (Italy) srl
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

15 Network and transmission expenses

Current year 2016-17

Previous year 2015-16

Particulars
USD INR USD INR
Charges for use of transmission facilitics 17,881,200 1,160,847,504 75,688,990 5,014,395,588
Total 17,881,200 1,160,847,504 75,688,990 5,014,395,588
16 Employee benefit expenses
Particulars Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
USD INR USD INR
Salaries, bonus and allowances 646,674 41,982,076 901,704 59,737,890
Staff welfare expenses 3,913 254,032 167 11,064
Total 650,587 42,236,108 901,871 59,748,954
17 Operating and other expenses
. Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
Particulars
USD INR USD INR
Advertising and publicity 41,485 2,693,206 1,047 69,364
Auditors remuneration 50,000 3,246,000 51,628 3,420,355
Bad debts - - 2,133,627 141,352,789
Communication expenses 8,019 520,593 7,944 526,290
Electricity 24,974 1,621,312 13,946 923,923
Entertainment expenses 9 584 36 2,385
Insurance expenses 4,097 265,977 5,098 337,743
IT consumables - - 116 7,685
Legal and professional fees 157,435 10,220,680 83,607 5,538,964
Miscellaneous expenses 7,663 497,484 6,230 412,736
Printing and stationery 1,149 74,593 1,911 126,604
Provision for doubtful debts (8,517) (552,924) (2,169,616) (143,737,060)
Rates and Taxes 100,850 6,547,182 135,555 8,980,519
Rent 2,122 137,760 - -
Repairs and Maintenance 191,881 12,456,915 205,557 13,618,151
- Plant & Machinery
Services rendered by agencies 33,475 2,173,197 48,126 3,188,348
Travelling and conveyance expenses 50,833 3,300,078 60,246 3,991,298
Total 665,475 43,202,637 585,058 38,760,094
18 Finance costs
Particulars Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
USD INR USD INR
Interest expenses 983,624 63,856,870 1,278,969 84,731,696
Guarantee fees 101,667 6,600,222 (225,570) (14,944,013)
Total 1,085,291 70,457,092 1,053,399 69,787,683
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Chartered Accountants

Suresh Surana & Associa

ssaciates LLP

Suresh Surana &

ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON COMPILATION OF UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To
The Board of Directors
Tata Communications Limited

On the basis of the trail balance and other information and explanations provided to us by the
management, we have compiled the balance sheet of Tata Communications (Japan) KK (“the
subsidiary”) registered in Japan as at 31 March 2017 and the related statement of profit and loss
for the year then ended, attached herewith.

The management of the subsidiary is responsible for:

a) Completeness and accuracy of the underlying data and complete disclosure of all material
and relevant information to the accountant;

b) Maintaining adequate accounting and other records and internal controls and selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies;

c) Preparation and presentation of financial statements in accordance with the applicable laws
and regulations;

d) Establishing controls to safeguard the assets of the entity and preventing and detecting frauds
or other irregularities;

e) Establishing controls for ensuring that the activities of the entity are carried out in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations and preventing and detecting any non-compliance.

The compilation engagement was carried out by us in accordance with the Standards on Related
Services Engagements (ISRS 4410) “Engagements to Compile Financial Information”, issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

This balance sheet and statement of profit and loss has been compiled by us for the purpose of
preparation of statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, based on trial
balance and other information provided by the management.

R srod Offlce
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Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

The balance sheet and the statement of profit and loss are in agreement with the books of
account. We have not audited or reviewed these financial statements and accordingly express no

opinion thereon.

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 121750W / W-100010

AR
o @\4 N\
V.I'y-' o/ \.L /7 \\x\
\f&% IVI;'I/ Chartered \I;’:\L}
. o\ Accountants I'(\.';:
(VmOdkumar Varma) E\‘,5“»'\ cuntan ,? /
PARTNER \.‘\\. T

Membership No. 105545

Place Mumbai
Date: 03 May 2017
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Tata Communications (Japan) KKK

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

. Note As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Frrtlonlars No. USD INR* USD INR*
(A)|ASSETS
(1) |Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1 67,060,217 4,353,549,287 65,382,790 4,331,609,837
Capital work-in-progress 2,737,842 177,740,703 1,201,730 79,614,613
Financial assets
(i) Loans 2 - - 2,075,956 137,532,085
(ii) Other financial assets 3 156,475 10,158,357 155,848 10,324,930
Other non-current assets 4 17,456 1,133,244 8,968 594,130
[ 69,971,990 4,542,581,591 68,825,292 4,559,675,595
(2) |Current assets
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 5 2,136,052 138,672,496 1,632,550 108,156,438
(if) Cash and cash equivalent 6 274,049 17,791,261 262,013 17,358,361
(iii) Other financial assets 7 553 35,901 50,938 3,374,642
Other current assets 8 1,375,310 89,285,126 913,373 60,510,962
3,785,964 245,784,784 2,858,874 189,400,403
TOTAL ASSETS 73,757,954 4,788,366,375 71,684,166 4,749,075,998
(B)|EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) [Equity
Equity share capital 9 3,628,039 235,532,292 3,628,039 240,357,584
Other equity 10 (4,542,622) (294,907,018) _(3,670,640) (243,179,901)
Total Equity (914,583) (59,374,726) (42,601) (2,822,317)
(2) Non-current liabilities
,Provisions 11 1,176,329 76,367,279 1,118,226 74,082,473
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 5,099,400 331,053,048 6,744,265 446,807,556
Other non current liabilities (Deferred revenue) 43,626,552 2,832,235,756 49,599,968 |  3,285,997,880
49,902,281 3,239,656,083 57,462,459 3,806,887,909
(3) | Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 12 5,506,593 357,488,018 - -
(ii) Trade payables 13 11,791,714 765,518,072 6,606,360 437,671,350
(iii) Other financial liabilities 14 120,258 7,807,149 40,643 2,692,599
Other current liabilities 15 7,085,036 459,960,537 7,087,806 469,567,148
Provisions 16 63,536 4,124,757 61,484 4,073,315
Current tax liabilities (Net) 203,119 13,186,485 468,015 31,005,994
24,770,256 1,608,085,018 14,264,308 945,010,406
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 73,757,954 4,788,366,375 71,684,166 4,749,075,998

*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 USD = INR 64.92 (as at 31 March 2016 1 USD = INR 66.25 )
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Tata Communications (Japan) KK

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

" Note No. Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
Particulars - -
USD INR* uUSDh INR*
i |Revenue from telecommunications services 17 28,603,264 1,856,923,899 27,712,985 1,835,985,256
ii |Other Income . 18 9,123 592,265 123,064 8,152,990
iii [Total income (i + ii) 28,612,387 1,857,516,164 27,836,049 1,844,138,246
iv |Expenses:
(i) Network and transmission expenses 19 14,719,489 955,589,226 13,348,060 884,308,975
(ii) Employee benefits expenses . 29 1,790,149 116,216,473 1,816,116 120,317,685
(iii) Operating and other expenses 21 4,053,609 263,160,293 3,294,534 218,262,878
(iv) Finance costs 22 154,432 10,025,726 - =
(v) Depreciation and amortisation expenses 9,903,991 642,967,096 10,743,416 711,751,310
(vi) Staff optimisation cost 24,854 1,613,522 70,356 4,661,085
Total expenses 30,646,524 1,989,572,336 29,272,482 1,939,301,933
v |Profit before taxes (iii - iv) (2,034,137) (132,056,172) (1,436,433) (95,163,687)
vi | Tax expenses
(i) Current tax expense/(benefit) 482,710 31,337,533 1,279,938 84,795,893
(ii) Deferred tax expense/(benefit) (1,644,865) (106,784,636) (640,119) (42,407,884)
Net tax expenses (1,162,155) (75,447,103) 639,819 42,388,009
vii | Profit / (loss) for the year (v-vi) (871,982) (56,609,069) (2,076,252) (137,551,696)

*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 USD = INR 64.92 (as at 31 March 2016 1 USD = INR 66.25 )
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Tata Communications (Japan) KK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

1 Property, plant and equipment

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

Bmlars USD INR USD INR
Gross block:
Land 2,087,335 135,509,788 2,087,335 138,285,944
Building 3,639,635 236,285,104 3,639,635 241,125,819
Lease hold improvement 40,434 2,624,975 40,434 2,678,753
Cables 76,268,636 4,951,359,849 65,928,065 4,367,734,306
Plant and machinery 83,352,560 5,411,248,195 82,672,410 5,477,047,163
Furniture and fixtures 41,278 2,679,768 12,397 821,301
Computers 478,331 31,053,249 499,673 33,103,336
Office equipment 235,853 15,311,577 217,712 14,423,420
(a) 166,144,062 10,786,072,505 155,097,661 10,275,220,042
Accumulated depreciation:
Building 1,704,218 110,637,833 1,558,632 103,259,370
Lease hold improvement 40,434 2,624,975 40,434 2,678,753
Cables 39,819,275 2,585,067,333 35,933,575 2,380,599,344
Plant and machinery 56,925,354 3,695,593,982 51,624,639 3,420,132,334
Furniture and fixtures 13,300 863,436 12,397 821,301
Computers 460,174 29,874,496 448,514 29,714,053
Office equipment 121,090 7,861,163 96,680 6,405,050
(b) 99,083,845 6,432,523,218 89,714,871 5,943,610,205
Net block (a) - (b) 67,060,217 4,353,549,287 65,382,790 4,331,609,837

2 Non-current assets - financial assets - loans

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR uSb INR
Inter company loans given - = 2,075,956 137,532,085
Total - - 2,075,956 137,532,085

3 Non-current assets - financial assets -bther financial assets

_ Particulars As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

USD INR USD INR
Vendor deposits 156,475 10,158,357 155,848 10,324,930
Total 156,475 10,158,357 155,848 10,324,930

4 Non-current assets - others

8,968 |

Particulars As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

LN INR uSDh INR
Prepaid expenses 17,456 1,133,244 8,968 594,130
Total 17,456 1,133,244 594,130
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Tata Communications (Japan) KK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

]

Trade receivables

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

Particulars
R USD INR USD INR
Trade receivables 2,143,661 139,166,472 1,637,619 108,492,259
Provision for doubtful debts (7,609) (493,976) (5,069) (335,821)
Total 2,136,052 138,672,496 1,632,550 108,156,438

Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR USD INR
Balance with bank 274,049 17,791,261 262,013 17,358,361
Total 274,049 17,791,261 262,013 17,358,361

Current assets - other financial assets

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR uUSD INR
Interest Receivable - - 50,813 3,366,361
Others 553 35,901 125 8,281
Total 553 35,901 50,938 3,374,642
Current assets - other assets
Parficular As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
[ it USD INR USD INR
Prepaid expenses 438,268 28,452,359 396,367 26,259,314
Indirect tax receivable 937,042 60,832,767 517,006 34,251,648
Total 1,375,310 89,285,126 913,373 60,510,962
Equity share capital
Particul As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
il USD INR USD INR
Equity share capital 3,628,039 235,532,292 3,628,039 240,357,584
Total 3,628,039 235,532,292 3,628,039 240,357,584
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Tata Communications (Japan) KK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

10 Other Equity

As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

Particular
ki USD INR USD TNR
Surplus / (Deficit)
Opening balance (3,670,640) (238,297,949) (1,594,388) (105,628,205)
Profit / (loss) for the year (871,982) (56,609,069) (2,076,252) (137,551,696)
Closing balance (4,542,622) (294,907,018) (3,670,640) (243,179,901)

11 Non-current liabilities - provisions

Particular As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

e USD INR USD INR
|Asset retirement obligation and others 1,176,329 76,367,279 1,118,226 74,082,473
Total 1,176,329 76,367,279 1,118,226 74,082,473

12 Current liabilities - borrowings

Piriiaiins As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

e USD INR USD INR
Inter company loans taken 5,506,593 357,488,018 ' - -
Total 5,506,593 357,488,018 - -

13 Current liabilities - Trade payables

Particulars As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

e USD INR USD INR
Trade payable 9,850,932 639,522,505 5,524,553 366,001,636
Inter Company - Payables 1,940,782 125,995,567 1,081,807 71,669,714
Total 11,791,714 765,518,072 6,606,360 437,671,350

14 Current liabilities - other financial liabilities

r - As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Particulars ) INR UsD INR
Deposit from customers and contractors 11,000 714,120 11,000 728,750
Interest accrued but not due 96,237 6,247,706 . - -
Others - 13,021 845,323 29,643 1,963,849
Total 120,258 7,807,149 40,643 2,692,599
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Tata Communications (Japan) KK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

15 Current liabilities - other current liabilities

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR USD INR
Deferred revenue and advance from 6,782,470 440,317,952 6,844,146 453,424,673
customers
Other Emplovee dues 208,193 | 13,515,890 148,960 9,868,600
Other Statutory dues 94,373 6,126,695 94,373 6,252,211
Others - - 327 21,664
Total 7,085,036 459,960,537 7,087,806 469,567,148

16 Current liabilities - provisons

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR USD INR
Leave entitlement 63,536 4,124,757 61,484 4,073,315
Total 63,536 4,124,757 61,484 4,073,315

17 Revenue from operations

Current year 2016-17

Previous year 2015-16

4 1 I oy

T USD INR USD INR

Data and voice revenue 28,603,264 1,856,923,899 27,712,985 1,835,985,256
Total 28,603,264 1,856,923,899 27,712,985 1,835,985,256

18 Other income

Current year 2016-17

Previous year 2015-16

Particulars

g USD INR USD INR
Interest income - others 1 65 16,948 1,122,805
Interest on loan to subsidiaries 7,221 468,787 105,739 7,005,209
Miscellaneous income 1,901 123,413 377 24,976
Total 9,123 592,265 123,064 8,152,990

19 Network and transmission expenses

Particulars

Current year 2016-17

Previous year 2015-16

USD INR usD INR
Charges for use oftranémission facilities 14,719,489 955,589,226 13,348,060 884,308,975
Total 14,719,489 955,589,226 13,348,060 884,308,975

20. Tata Communications (Japan) KK

206




Tata Communications (Japan) KK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

20 Employee benefit expenses

Particulars Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16

USD INR uSh INR
Salaries, bonus and allowances 1,786,997 116,011,845 1,812,341 120,067,591
Staff welfare expenses 3,152 204,628 3,775 250,094
Total 1,790,149 116,216,473 1,816,116 120,317,685

21 Operating and other expenses

. Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
Particulars
USD INR USD INR
Advertising and publicity 7,051 ' 457,751 4,358 288,718
Bad debts - - 900 59,625
Communication expenses 58,444 3,794,184 57,099 3,782,809
Donations 1,767 114,714 1,462 96,858
Electricity 1,382,521 89,753,263 1,106,377 73,297,476 |-
Entertainment expenses 4,640 301,229 10,315 683,369
Exchange loss -Net 259,903 16,872,903 11,632 770,620
Insurance expenses 66,794 4,336,266 61,305 4,061,456
IT consumables 3,034 196,967 4 265
Legal and professional fees 226,839 14,726,388 342,988 22,722,955
Miscellaneous expenses 24,091 1,563,986 19,845 1,314,728
Printing and stationery 12,557 815,200 8,289 549,146
Provision for doubtful debts 2,540 164,897 (7,952) (526,820)
Rates and Taxes 414,364 26,900,511 389,119 25,779,134
Recruitment expenses 98,646 6,404,098 - -
Relocation Expense 1,629 105,755 4,687 310,514
Rent 108,969 7,074,267 96,886 6,418,698
Repairs and Maintenance 1,169,229 75,906,347 849,840 56,301,900
- Plant & Machinery
Repairs and Maintenance -Building 78,657 5,106,412 202,414 13,409,928
Seminars, trainings and conferences 305 19,801 3,030 200,738
Services rendered by agencies 75,609 4,908,536 73,982 4,901,308
Travelling and conveyance expenses 56,020 3,636,818 57,954 3,839,453
Total 4,053,609 263,160,293 3,294,534 218,262,878
22 Finance costs
. Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
Particulars y
USD INR USD INR

Interest expenses 153,554 9,968,726 C- -
Guarantee fees 878 57,000 - T
Total ; 154,432 10,025,726 - -
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Chartered Accountants

Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON COMPILATION OF UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To
The Board of Directors
Tata Communications Limited

On the basis of the trail balance and other information and explanations provided to us by the
management, we have compiled the balance sheet of Tata Communications (Malaysia) Sdn
Bhd (“the subsidiary”) registered in Malaysia as at 31 March 2017 and the related statement of
profit and loss for the year then ended, attached herewith.

The management of the subsidiary is responsible for:

a) Completeness and accuracy of the underlying data and complete disclosure of all material
and relevant information to the accountant;

b) Maintaining adequate accounting and other records and internal controls and selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies;

c) Preparation and presentation of financial statements in accordance with the applicable laws
and regulations;

d) Establishing controls to safeguard the assets of the entity and preventing and detecting frauds
or other irregularities;

e) Establishing controls for ensuring that the activities of the entity are carried out in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations and preventing and detecting any non-compliance.

The compilation engagement was carried out by us in accordance with the Standards on Related
Services Engagements (ISRS 4410) “Engagements to Compile Financial Information”, issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

This balance sheet and statement of profit and loss has been compiled by us for the purpose of
preparation of statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, based on trial
balance and other information provided by the management.

Registered Office
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Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

The balance sheet and the statement of profit and loss are in agreement with the books of
account. We have not audited or reviewed these financial statements and accordingly express no

opinion thereon.

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 121750W / W-100010 RN

WAL Msj\f‘\\
'V //)J /—Y)V\
)

i (e, )2
(Vinodkumar Varma) 2\ 2
PARTNER \l\ﬁ{: .
Membership No. 105545 =

Place Mumbai
Date: 03 May 2017
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Tata Communications (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

As at 31 March 2016

Particulars Note As at 31 March 2017
No. USD INR* USD INR*
(A)|ASSETS
(1) |[Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1 533,504 34,635,080 369,450 24,476,062
Capital work-in-progress 167,868 10,897,991 17,110 1,133,538
Financial assets
(1) Other financial assets 2 7,909 513,452 8,966 593,998
Non current tax asset 16,833 1,092,798 48,931 3,241,679
Other non-current assets 3 68,681 4,458,771 8,561 567,166
794,795 51,598,092 453,018 30,012,443
(2) |Current assets
Financial assets
(1) Trade receivables 4 843,818 54,780,665 329,049 21,799,496
(ii) Cash and cash equivalent 5 479,064 31,100,835 231,579 15,342,109
(ii1) Other financial assets 6 1,134 73,619 - -
Other current assets 7 80,113 5,200,936 43274 2,866,903
1,404,129 91,156,055 603,902 40,008,508
TOTAL ASSETS 2,198,924 142,754,147 1,056,920 70,020,951
(B)|EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) [Equity
Equity share capital 8 47,560 3,087,595 47,560 3,150,850
Other equity 9 224,480 14,573,243 97,906 6,486,274
Total Equity 272,040 17,660,838 145,466 9,637,124
(2) |Non-current liabilities .
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 86,176 5,594,546 81,315 5,387,119
86,176 5,594,546 81,315 5,387,119
(3) [Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings 10 602,628 39,122,610 219,732 14,557,245
(ii) Trade payables 1 1,161,576 75,409,514 552,789 36,622,271
(iii) Other financial liabilities 12 14,369 932,835 4,473 296,336
Other current liabilities 13 55,537 3,605,462 53,145 3,520,856
Provisions 14 6,598 428,342 - -
1,840,708 119,498,763 830,139 54,996,708
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,198,924 142,754,147 1,056,920 70,020,951
*Exchange rate as ai 31 March 2017 1 USD =INR 64.92 (as at 31 March 2016 1 USD = INR 66.25 )
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Tata Communications (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

. Note No. Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
Particulars
USD INR* uUsD INR*
i |Revenue from telecommunications services 15 3,417,244 221,847,480 1,857,408 123,053,280
ii |Other Income 16 43,748 2,840,120 25 1,656
iii [Total income (i + ii) 3,460,992 224,687,600 1,857,433 123,054,936
iv |Expenses:
(i) Network and transmission expenses 17 2,117,567 137,472,450 1,014,430 67,205,988
(i) Employee benefits expenses 18 462,516 30,026,538 385,278 25,524,668
(iii) Operating and other expenses 19 595,597 38,666,156 270,763 17,938,046
(iv) Finance costs 20 20,373 1,322,615 7,916 524,435
(v) Depreciation and amortisation expenses 104,653 6,794,073 64,361 4,263,916
Total expenses 3,300,706 214,281,832 1,742,748 115,457,053
v |Profit before taxes (iii - iv) 160,286 10,405,768 114,685 7,597,883
Vi {Tax expenses
(i) Current tax expensz/(benefit) 28,851 1,873,007 (12,915) (855,619)
(ii) Deferred tax expense/(benefit) 4,861 315,576 74,663 4,946,424
Net tax expenses 33,712 2,188,583 61,748 4,090,805
vii | Profit/ (loss) for the year (v-vi) 126,574 8,217,185 52,937 3,507,078
*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 USD = INR 64.92 (as at 31 March 2016 1 USD = INR 66.25 )
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Tata Communications (IMalaysia) Sdn Bhd
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

1 Property, plant and equipment

) . As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Particulars
) USD INR USD INR
Gross block:
Plant and machinery 748,436 48,588,465 479,729 31,782,046
(a) 748,436 48,588,465 479,729 31,782,046
Accumulated depreciation: _
Plant and machinery 214,932 13,953,385 110,279 7,305,984
(b) 214,932 13,953,385 110,279 7,305,984
Net block (a)-(b) 533,504 34,635,080 369,450 24,476,062

2 Non-current assets - financial assets - other financial assets

Particulars As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

USD INR USD INR
Vendor deposits 7,909 513,452 8,966 593,998
Total 7,909 513,452 8,966 593,998

3 Non-current assets - others

Particulars As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
USD INR UsSD INR
Prepaid expenses. 68,681 4,458,771 8,561 567,166
[Total 68,681 4,458,771 8,561 567,166
4 Trade receivables
Pl As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
iR USD INR USD INR
Trade receivables 667,592 43,340,073 329,049 21,799,496
Intercompany receivables 179,628 11,661,450 - -
Provision for doubtful debts (3,402) (220,858) - -
Total ) 843,818 54,780,665 329,049 21,799,496
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Tata Communications (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

5 Cash and cash equivalents

Particul As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

k5 USD INR USD INR
Balance with bank 479,064 31,100,835 231,579 15,342,109
Total 479,064 31,100,835 231,579 15,342,109

Current assets - other financial assets

Partioui As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

QSIS USD INR USD INR
Others 1,134 73,619 ; -
Total 1,134 73,619 - 3

Current assets - other assets

Particular As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
SESILAL USD INR USD INR
Prepaid expenses 80,108 5,200,611 43,274 2,866,903
Others 5 325 - -
Total 80,113 5,200,936 43,274 2,866,903
Equity share capital
Parkicul As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
o USD INR USD INR
'Equity share capital 47,560 3,087,595 47,560 3,150,850
Total 47,560 3,087,595 47,560 3,150,850
Other Equity
Particul As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
ST USD INR USD INR
Surplus / (Deficit)
Opening balance 97,906 6,356,058 44,969 2,979,196
Profit / (loss) for the year 126,574 8,217,185 52,937 3,507,078
Closing balance 224,480 14,573,243 97,906 6,486,274
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Tata Communications (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

10 Current liabilities - borrowings

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

Parti g

L USD INR USD INR

Inter company loans taken 602,628 39,122,610 219,732 14,557,245
Total 602,628 39,122,610 219,732 14,557,245

11 Current liabilities - Trade payables .

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

Particul
A USD INR USD INR
Trade payable 1,161,576 75,409,514 235,924 15,629,965
inter Company - Payables - - 316,865 20,992,306
Total 1,161,576 75,409,514 552,789 36,622,271

12 Current liabilities - other financial liabilities

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR UsSD INR
Interest accrued but not due 14,369 932,835 3,580 237,175
Others - - 893 59,161
Total 14,369 932,835 4,473 296,336

13 Current liabilities - other current liabilities

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016

USD INR uUSD INR
Other Employee dues 40,974 2,660,032 24,228 1,605,105
Other Statutory dues 14,563 945,430 28,917 1,915,751
Total 55,537 3,605,462 53,145 3,520,856

14 Current liabilities - provisons

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2016
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Tata Communications (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

15 Revenue from operations

Particular Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
T USD INR USD INR
Data and voice revenue 3,417,244 221,847,480 1,857,408 123,053,280
Total 3,417,244 221,847,480 1,857,408 123,053,280
16 Other income
Particul - Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
- USD INR USD INR
Miscellaneous income 43,748 2,840,120 25 1,656
Total 43,748 2,840,120 25 1,656
17 Network and transmission expenses
Particul Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
e USD INR USD INR
Charges for use of transmission facilities 2,117,567 137,472,450 1,014,430 67,205,988
Total . 2,117,567 137,472,450 1,014,430 67,205,988
18 Employee benefit expenses
Particulars Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
USD INR USD INR
Salaries, bonus and allowances 415,864 26,997,891 345,244 22,872,415
Contribution to provident and other funds 42,957 2,788,768 38,796 2,570,235
Staff welfare expenses 3,695 239,879 1,238 82,018
Total 462,516 30,026,538 385,278 25,524,668
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Tata Communications (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

19

20

Operating and other expenses

Current year 2016-17

Previous year 2015-16

Particulars
USD INR USD INR

Auditors remuneration 2,350 152,562 2,586 171,323
Communication expenses 13,723 890,897 11,960 792,350
Directors fees 5,242 340,311 5,583 369,874
Electricity 4,378 284,220 - -
Entertainment expenses 24,143 1,567,364 26,117 1,730,251
Exchange loss -Net 104,543 6,786,932 14,923 988,649
Insurance expenses 9,063 588,370 5,866 388,623
IT consumables 516 33,499 846 56,048
Legal and professional fees 28,403 1,843,923 16,473 1,091,336
Miscellaneous expenses 39,849 2,586,995 5,630 372,983
Printing and stationery 599 38,887 1,052 69,695
Provision for doubtful debts 3,402 220,858 = =
Rates and Taxes 72,346 4,696,702 - =
Recruitment expenses 16,734 1,086,371 - -
Rent 26,665 1,731,092 13,436 890,135
Repairs and Maintenance 143,677 9,327,511 63,947 4,236,489
- Plant & Machinery

Seminars, trainings and conferences 508 32,979 537 35,576
Services rendered by agencies 82,771 5,373,493 83,342 5,521,408
Travelling and conveyance expenses 16,685 1,083,190 18,465 1,223,306
Total 38,666,156 270,763 17,938,046

Finance costs

595,597

Particulars

Current year 2016-17

Previous year 2015-16

USD INR USD INR
Interest expenses 19,562 1,269,965 11,840 784,400
Guarantee fees 811 52,650 (3,924) (259,965)
Total 20,373 1,322,615 7,916 524,435

21. Tata Communications (Malaysia) SDN BHD

216




Associates LLP

Chartered

Suresh Surana &

Accountants

Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON COMPILATION OF UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To
The Board of Directors
Tata Communications Limited

On the basis of the trail balance and other information and explanations provided to us by the
management, we have compiled the balance sheet of Tata Communications (Middle East) FZ-
LLC (“the subsidiary”) registered in Dubai, United Arab Emirates as at 31 March 2017 and the
related statement of profit and loss for the year then ended, attached herewith.

The management of the subsidiary is responsible for:

a) Completeness and accuracy of the underlying data and complete disclosure of all material
and relevant information to the accountant;

b) Maintaining adequate accounting and other records and internal controls and selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies;

c) Preparation and presentation of financial statements in accordance with the applicable laws
and regulations;

d) Establishing controls to safeguard the assets of the entity and preventing and detecting frauds
or other irregularities;

e) Establishing controls for ensuring that the activities of the entity are carried out in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations and preventing and detecting any non-compliance.

The compilation engagement was carried out by us in accordance with the Standards on Related
Services Engagements (ISRS 4410) “Engagements to Compile Financial Information”, issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

This balance sheet and statement of profit and loss has been compiled by us for the purpose of
preparation of statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, based on trial
balance and other information provided by the management.

e
/'//;-\'_‘— & A
/t/ 1 (>/
w{ C ¢
\‘\E,. Acc "'\
A J"\f *,J/\
‘Unme hg?

terad Oflce
22. Tata Communications (Middle East) FZ-LLC En B30 Tabowiolls Kpaaign Pik. Hiahaisi Guvie ROKY




Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

The balance sheet and the statement of profit and loss are in agreement with the books of
account. We have not audited or reviewed these financial statements and accordingly express no

opinion thereon.

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 121750W / W-100010

o PTE

NS /2
(Vinodkumar Varma) B Craneres %))
PARTNER zN /o

Membership No. 105545 3 W/

Place Mumbai
Date: 03 May 2017
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Tata Communications (Middle East) FZ-LLC

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

Partic‘ulﬂrs Note As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016.
No. USD INR* USD INR*
(A)|ASSETS
(1) [Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1 31,027 2,014,273 37,498 2,484,243
Investments in subsidiaries & associates 2 136,006 8,829,510 136,006 9,010,398
Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 3 16,335 1,060,468 - -
i Non current tax asset 38 2,467 38 2,518
183,406 11,906,718 173,542 11,497,159
(2) [Current assets
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 4 850,767 55,231,794 2,410,084 159,668,065
(ii) Cash and cash equivalent 5 305,216 19,814,623 57,396 3,802,485
(iii) Other financial assets 6 28,402 1,843,858 88,680 5,875,050
Other current assets 7 38,305 2,486,761 43,567 2,886,314
1,222,690 79,377,036 2,599,727 172,231,914
TOTAL ASSETS 1,406,096 91,283,754 2,773,269 183,729,073
(B)|EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) [Equity
Equity share capital 8 13,750 892,650 13,750 910,938
Other equity 9 (3,675,898) (238,639,297) (3,837,920) (254,262,199)
Total Equity (3,662,148) (237,746,647) (3,824,170) (253,351,261)
(2) [Non-current liabilities
Provisions 10 477,447 30,995,860 329,081 21,801,616
477,447 30,995,860 329,081 21,801,616
(3) [Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i (i) Borrowings 11 3,733,058 242,350,125 5,073,153 336,096,386
(i1) Trade payables 12 83,335 5,410,108 88,715 5,877,369
(iii) Other financial liabilities 13 106,081 6,886,779 133,032 8,813,370
Other current liabilities » . 14 553,165 35,911,472 909,752 © 60,271,070
Provisions 15 115,158 7,476,057 63,706 4,220,523
4,590,797 298,034,541 6,268,358 415,278,718
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,406,096 91,283,754 2,773,269 183,729,073

*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 USD = INR 64.92 (as at 31 March 2016 1 USD = INR 66.25 )

22. Tata Communications (Middle East) FZ-LLC 219



Tata Communications (Middle East) FZ-LLC

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

. Note No. Current year 2016-17 Previous year 2015-16
Particulars
USD INR* USD INR*
i [Revenue from telecommunications services - 16 7,045,996 457,426,060 8,429,810 558,474,913
ii |Other Income 17 1,042,546 67,682,086 1,091,619 72,319,759
iii |Total income (i + ii) 8,088,542 525,108,146 9,521,429 630,794,672
iv |Expenses:
(i) Employee benefits expenses 18 6,655,521 432,076,424 6,719,311 445,154,354
(ii) Opgrating and other expenses 19 1,022,519 66,381,932 1,252,479 82,976,733
(iii) Finance costs 20 233,722 15,173,232 220,120 14,582,950
(iv) Depreciation and amortisation expenses 14,758 958,089 84,333 5,587,061
(v) Staff optimisation cost - - 68,667 4,549,189
Total expenses 7,926,520 514,589,677 8,344,910 552,850,287
v |Profit before taxes (iii - iv) 162,022 10,518,469 1,176,519 77,944,385
vi [Tax expenses
(1) Current tax expense/(benefit) = - - -
(ii) Deferred tax expense/(benefit) = - - -
Net tax expenses = = = =
vii [ Profit / (loss) for the year (v-vi) 162,022 10,518,469 1,176,519 77,944,385
*Exchange rate as at 31 March 2017 1 USD = INR 64.92 (as at 31 March 2016 1 USD = INR 66.25 )
22. Tata Communication<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>